
FLORIDA BIRTH-RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY 
COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION  

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
December 1, 2022 

10:00 a.m. 

1. Call to Order and Welcome

2. Minutes
A. August 25, 2022 Meeting Minutes……………………………………….A 
B. November 8, 2022 Meeting Minutes……………………………………..B 

3. Discussion of Rate Increase

4. Report on Executive Director Search

5. Executive Director Report

6. Proposed Legislative Agenda

7. Investment Update
A. Performance Review……………………………………………………...C 
B. Asset Allocation Approach & Assumptions……………………………...D 
C. Fee Analysis……………………………………………………………....E 

8. Reserve Review/Update…………………………………………….………….…F 

9. Cash Flow Review/Update………………………………………………………..G 

10. Actuarial Reserve Evaluation and Threshold Calculations
A. June 30, 2022, Final Actuarial Report………………………….………...H 
B. Threshold Calculations………………………………….………………...I 

11. June 30, 2022, Final Audited Financial Statements and Audit Report……………J 

12. Public Testimony

13. Board Votes



 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 2.A. (Tab A) 
 

Minutes-August 25, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 

1 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING 
THE FLORIDA BIRTH-RELATED 

NEUROLOGICAL INJURY COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION 
 

August 25, 2022 
Orlando Airport Hyatt 

Orlando, Florida 
 
The August 25, 2022; meeting of the Board of Directors of the Florida Birth-Related 
Neurological Injury Compensation Association was called to order by Chair, Jim 
DeBeaugrine.  
 
Board members present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
  Jim DeBeaugrine, MPA 
  Renee Oliver 
  Robert A. London, M.D. (via Zoom) 
  Narendra Dereddy, M.D. 
  Julie Ann Zemaitis DeCesare, MD 
 
Also present: 
 
  Melissa Jaacks, NICA Interim Executive Director 
  Tim Daughtry, NICA Deputy Director 
  Steve Ecenia, NICA General Counsel 
  Matt Dufek, Kikoda/NICA’s IT Contractor 

Felicia Bennett, Wilshire Consulting 
Russell Perkins, Thomas Howell Ferguson 
Ashley Hammer 
Dan Bookhout 
Arwen Bookhout 
Ongel Phillips 
Nadiyah Antoine 
Mellisa Gambon 

 
Attendees via Zoom 
 

Katy Wojciechowski, NICA Investment Consultant 
Mark Crawshaw Ph.D., Madison Consulting 
Tasha Carter, Florida Insurance Consumer Advocate 
Denishia Sword, Office of the Insurance Consumer Advocate 
Robert Ridenour, Florida Office of Insurance Regulation 
Sheryl Parker, Florida Office of Insurance Regulation 
Ashley Evelo, NICA Nurse Case Manager 
Cathy Siciak, NICA Nurse Case Manager  
Carol Marbin Miller, Miami Herald 



 
 

 
 
 

2 

Linda Nelson, NICA Compliance 
Ben Lee, BlackRock 
Abdul Jabbar Alansi 
Alma Hurtic 
Ann Goshorn 
Ashley Mathis 
Barbara Lopez Avila 
Becky Griffith 
Carlos Velazquez 
Celia Lampert 
Chelsea Reyes 
Christiana Buffington 
Christina Okesson 
Dan Bookhout 
Danielle Faivus 
Dwight Ebron 
Eric Fuller 
Fatima Cruz 
Jackie Amorim 
Jacqueline Moody 
James Bell 
Jason wilburn 
Jennifer Andrews Collins 
Jennifer Lynn Whittington-Bookhout 
Jessica Lorenzi 
John Romine 
Joseph Dawood 
Kim Hagerstrom 
Laura Sokalski 
Martha Gonzalez 
Michael Williams 
Michelle Glisar 
Nicole Snipes 
Nina Wilcox 
Paul Whitfield 
Robert Hagerstrom 
Robert okesson 
Sabrina Jostes 
Shaymaa Alansi 
Tricia Parrish 
Tricia Roth Mccarter 
Vanessa Augustin 
Yasmin Fuller 

     
 



 
 

 
 
 

3 

**Attendees who did not provide full names, were only logged in briefly or who did not 
identify themselves are not included on this list. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
The Chair recognized NICA’s General Counsel, Steve Ecenia. Mr. Ecenia asked that the 
Board hold Executive Session at its next meeting. He also reminded the Board that there was 
an Executive Session scheduled for the current meeting. The purpose of the Executive 
Session would be to discuss pending litigation. Attendees would be members of the Board, 
Steve Ecenia, Marty Goldberg, Daryl Saylor, Melissa Jaacks and a court reporter. The 
Executive Session was scheduled to begin at 4:30. 
 
 
MINUTES 
 
The Chair asked for a motion to approve the minutes of the March 17, 2022 Board meeting.  
 
A motion was made to approve the minutes as drafted. The motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
Add Signer to Bank Account 
 
Authorized signers on NICA’s checking account were Melissa Jaacks, Jim DeBeaugrine and 
Steve Ecenia. Since NICA processes payments on a daily basis and some checks require dual 
signatures, Ms. Jaacks requested that the Board approve adding Kathe Alexander as an 
alternate authorized signer on NICA’s checking account when Ms. Jaacks is not available.  
 
A motion was made to approve adding Kathe Alexander as an authorized signer on 
NICA’s checking account. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Executive Director Search 
 
Ms. Jaacks had been hired as a short term interim executive director. Everyone had been 
pleased with the work she had done. If Ms. Jaacks were to apply as the permanent Executive 
Director, she would be a strong candidate. Ms. Jaacks had committed to remain as Executive 
Director through the next legislative session. 
 

**Dr. Dereddy joined the meeting** 
 
Qualified individuals had reached out to the Chair who would make a very good pool of 
starting candidates. The Chair proposed establishing a search committee for the purpose of 
hiring a permanent executive director. The committee would be composed of only one NICA 
Board member as well as other individuals. Mr. DeBeaugrine would Chair the committee and 
asked Ms. Oliver to assist with identifying an individual from the Parent Advisory 



 
 

 
 
 

4 

Committee who could serve on the search committee. The Committee should also include an 
OB/Gyn and the physicians on the Board were asked to offer suggestions. Additional 
members of the committee would come from the CFO’s office and the Office of Insurance 
Regulation. The Chair would also like to have someone from the non-profit area on the 
committee. The committee would do the initial vetting of potential candidates. The top two 
or three candidates would be asked to interview with the full Board. The Board discussed 
whether to engage a recruitment firm to assist in identifying potential candidates but were not 
in favor of that approach.  
 
 
 
A motion was made to accept the Chair’s recommendation. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
PARENTAL PAY RATES 
 
Ms. Jaacks followed with a presentation regarding parental pay. NICA’s hourly rates were 
$15 for CNA level care, $25.40 for LPN level care and $29.10 for RN level care. The annual 
reimbursements were approximately $20.3 million paid by NICA to families, $2.2 million 
paid by NICA to other caregivers and approximately $2.7 million paid by others such as third 
party insurance.  
 
Over half of NICA’s participants were authorized by their physician for 24 hour care. The 
physician completes a form indicating the number of hours per day as well as the level of 
care needed. The form also includes an attestation by the physician as to whether or not the 
parent is capable of providing the level of care needed. 
 
Summaries of the number of hours authorized for the 225 open active participants and annual 
payment levels were provided. 
 

Authorized care – of 225 families: 
• 120 families @ 24 hours 
• 37 families @ 20-22 hours 
• 14 families @ 16-19 hours 
• 8 families @ 12-15 hours 
• 17 families @ 10 or fewer hours 
• 29 families @ no hours 

 
Ms. Jaacks reminded the Board that NICA had obtained a ruling from the IRS that these 
payments were not taxable income to the families.  
 

Range of reimbursement to 225 families (none taxed as income per IRS ruling): 
• 117 families (52%) receive between $100k and $255k 

o 6 receive more than $200k because majority of hours authorized by 
physician are for nursing care and one parent is a nurse 



 
 

 
 
 

5 

o 4 receive between $150k and $185k because some hours authorized by 
physician are for nursing care and one parent is a nurse 
o Remaining are between $104k and $147k because 20-24 hours are 
authorized and parent provides all (or almost all) care @ $15 per hour 

• 25 families (11%) receive between $75k and 99k 
o Authorized for fewer hours or some care is paid to other provider (i.e. parent 
does not provide 100% of care) 

• 39 families (17%) receive between $50k and $74k 
o 21 of these have 20-24 hours authorized but half the care is provided by 
other provider (many require some nursing care provided by staffing agency 
or private duty nurse) 

• 12 families (5%) receive between $25k and $49k 
o About half are authorized for more than 16 hours but some care provided by 
other provider 

• Remaining 32 (14%) receive no reimbursement 
o 29 no hours authorized 
o 3 all care is reimbursed to others (almost all LPN / RN) 

 
 
PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 
Several families of NICA participants addressed the Board regarding parental pay. 
 
Some of the issues that were raised included: 
 

Many parents provide care 24 hours a day, seven days a week and are always on call.  
 

Parents who provide care are not contributing to social security and will not be 
eligible for those benefits. 

 
There had been no hourly rate increases for many years. 

 
Parents were not eligible for other benefits such as 401k, health insurance, disability 
or life insurance. 

 
For many families, there are no other alternatives to care than to provide that care 
themselves. 

 
The average salary increase in Florida is approximately 3%. 

 
When someone is out of the work force for many years, it will be very difficult to get 
back into the work force.  

 
Many parents are limited to $15 per hour and yet the parents must train the 
professional nurses who come into their homes. 

 



 
 

 
 
 

6 

Parents who would otherwise continue careers, frequently have to stay home from 
work due to illness of the NICA participant. 

 
Parents leave careers that could have been very lucrative. 

 
Pay rates should not remain stagnant because the cost of living does not remain 
stagnant. 

 
Parents had been told that they would not be able to be paid to provide care unless 
they had no other employment. 

 
 Some parents who are providing care would have no other work experience. 
 

The parental pay rate should have an automatic annual increase consistent with 
increases in the cost of the living. 

 
The class action families did not receive full retroactive benefits but families outside 
the class action may be compensated for the full amount of care provided. 
 
The state of Florida minimum wage was $15 per hour.  
 
Parents provide the level of care that is required for their child but are not paid at that 
level unless they hold that professional designation. 
 
Parents are not able to “clock out” and often miss time with their other children. 
 
Parents were very thankful for Ms. Jaacks and her efforts. 
 
Concerns were expressed for the future when the parent is no longer able to care for 
the NICA participant. 
 
Parents lose their income in the event something happens to the participant.   
 
During the time since the last NICA rate increase, social security has increased many 
times. 
 
Divorced parents who have joint custody only receive half the pay but find it difficult 
to find a job outside the home.  
 
The lower rates that NICA pays makes it difficult to hire outside caregivers. 
 

The Chair asked for clarification regarding parents not being able to have other employment. 
Ms. Jaacks advised the Board that this was no longer the case but had been the policy prior to 
her tenure. 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT  



 
 

 
 
 

7 

 
 
Ms. Jaacks followed with the Executive Director’s report. She had reviewed the minutes of 
the past two Board meetings and updated the Board on items that had changed or where she 
had missed a deadline. 
 
Retroactive Parental Award 
 
As discussed at the last Board meeting, the Legislature passed the amendment to allow for 
the retroactive payment of the increased parental award to parents of deceased children. All 
but 20 of them had been paid. Staff had even been able to contact some families who they 
had not been able to contact in the prior year for the increased death benefit. 
 
Medical Director 
 
With Dr. London’s assistance, the Florida Medical School Quality Network (FMSQN) had 
been contacted regarding the Medical Director position. FMSQN posted a Request For 
Information (RFI) to solicit candidates for the position.  
 
Medicaid Transition 
 
NICA engaged Health Management Associates to assist with the transition from Medicaid as 
primary to NICA as primary. NICA’s primary contact on the engagement, Beth Kidder, was 
the former Medicaid director at the Agency for Health Care Administration.  
 
Explanation of Benefits 
 
Explanation of Benefits (EOBs) that could be provided to parents had been scheduled to be 
available for regular distribution by July 1. This deadline had not been met. The EOBs were 
ready to send to members of the Parent Advisory Committee to review.  
 
Staffing 
 
Two new nurse case managers had been hired. Emails were sent to NICA families asking 
who might be willing to change case managers. Most families responded that they preferred 
to stay with their current case manager. Thoughtful consideration would be given to 
managing any case manager changes. New cases coming in would be assigned to the new 
case managers.  
 
Family Care -Retroactive Payments 
 
At previous meetings, Ms. Jaacks had discussed the Family Care benefit and the disparate 
treatment that had taken place in the payment and timing of that benefit. The Board had 
authorized staff to enter into settlement agreements to address the issue. It was expected that 
these payments would be made by September 30. Approximately half of the families had 
been contacted with an initial summary of what their experience had been.  



 
 

 
 
 

8 

 
As the Board had authorized, for families who were not part of the class action and for new 
families coming into the program, Family Care would be available retroactively to the date of 
NICU discharge.  
 
Class action families had previously entered into settlement agreements regarding this type of 
care. Within the class action settlement agreements, there are opportunities to increase hours. 
Ms. Jaacks committed to the class action families that she would review their hours once she 
has completed the review for the non class action families.  
 
At the request of Ms. Oliver, Ms. Jaacks provided the following summary of the class action. 
In June 2002, when the legislature amended the NICA statutes to include Family Care, there 
was a 10 hour per day limit. A class action lawsuit was filed on behalf of families already in 
the program alleging that the benefit was already available without limitation on the number 
of hours. Settlement agreements were entered into. The benefit these families received was 
that they were not subject to the 10 hour retroactive to 2005 but they were not compensated 
for any care provided prior to 2005.  
 
Legislative Agenda 
 
Ms. Jaacks had been working with the Parent Advisory Committee on possible legislation. 
Four areas had been identified for potential changes: 
 
Technical – throughout the statutes, NICA participants are referred to as child although many 
of them are now adults. The wording and language should be updated to reflect the program 
as it is today. 
  
Cost of living adjustment – Similar to the cost of living adjustment for the parental award. 
Parents have asked that the housing benefit and death benefit also include a cost of living 
adjustment since these two amounts are specifically listed in the statutes.  
 
Positive Momentum – Amend the statutes to include certain benefits that the Board has 
authorized.  
 
Maturation changes – Many of NICA’s participants are adults with aging parents which 
presents different challenges. Examples discussed were the housing benefit which is set at a 
maximum of $100,000, providing food for adult participants living at home, siblings taking 
over the care from aging parents.  
 
Ms. Jaacks stressed that the legislative agenda was not fully formed and that she would not 
move forward without Board approval.   
 
BENEFIT HANDBOOK 
 



 
 

 
 
 

9 

Ms. Jaacks presented the revised Benefit Handbook for approval by the Board. Going 
forward, ongoing changes would be tracked in an addendum with the overall Handbook 
being updated once per year. 
 
Dr. London acknowledged Ms. Jaacks and her team for the revised Benefit Handbook which 
he felt was a vast improvement. 
 
A motion was made to approve the Benefit Handbook. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
INVESTMENT UPDATE 
 
Katy Wojciechowski and Felicia Bennett, followed with a summary of NICA’s investment 
results. Prior to the current year, the NICA portfolio had experienced outsized positive 
returns. In the current year, in response to inflation, all markets faltered as the Federal 
Reserve began tightening liquidity. For the twelve months ending June 30, 2022, NICA’s 
total fund composite had negative returns of -19.9% compared to policy index negative 
returns of -18.5% As of June 30, 2022, 66% of the portfolio was invested in fixed income 
with the large majority in long duration bonds. Equities were represented in the portfolio at 
17% U.S. and 16% international. Overall, the portfolio is 51% passive and 49% actively 
managed.  
 
A new asset allocation study would be undertaken to incorporate changes in cash flows 
related to legislation, litigation, and market values. 
 
From December 31, 2021 to June 30, 2022, the portfolio decreased from approximately $1.7 
billion to $1.3 billion. Most of the decrease was related to changes in market values. As of 
July 31, 2022, the portfolio experienced increases in market values of approximately $72 
million.  
 
In response to a question from Dr. Dereddy, Ms. Bennett stated that the fees NICA pays for 
active managers would be presented at the next meeting. 
 
ACTUARIAL UPDATE 
 
Mark Crawshaw, PhD of Madison Consulting followed with the December 31, 2021 actuarial 
reserve evaluation and June 30, 2022 draft exhibits. The role of Dr. Crawshaw is to review 
the actuarial analysis prepared by Turner Consulting. It was his opinion that Mr. Turner 
reasonably determined the reserves as of December 31, 2021 and June 30, 2022 based on the 
stated assumptions. Consistent with prior reports, the key assumption was a 1.5% differential 
between the interest discount rate and the rate of inflation affecting future payments.  
 
Dr. Crawshaw pointed out that NICA’s reserves were a liability on its balance sheet and 
represented an estimate of the expected lifetime cost of the benefits to all participants born 
through a given point in time.  The reserves include the assumption that over time the 
amounts paid for specific services will increase due to inflation. He noted that as of June 30, 
2022, NICA’s draft balance sheet showed that its assets were less than its liabilities by 



 
 

 
 
 

10 

approximately $31 million.  After favorable investment results in July 2022, NICA’s assets 
were once again greater than liabilities.  
 
The Threshold Calculation which is required by Florida Statutes was discussed. The last 
formal calculation had been prepared as of September 30, 2021. Based on the draft June 30, 
2022 reserve analysis, Dr. Crawshaw conservatively estimated that NICA would again pass 
the threshold test at June 30, 2022.  
 
During the quarter ending December 31, 2021, enhancements occurred at both the NICA 
level where the basic data is compiled as well as in Turner’s analysis. The claimant level 
reserve worksheets were substantially enhanced by NICA staff to reflect expected costs 
under SB 1786, the assumption that NICA would be covering, on a prospective basis, 
expenses previously paid by Medicaid and assumptions regarding Affordable Care Act 
individual insurance policies. Turner’s analysis incorporated these changes.  
 
For the quarter ending December 31, 2021, the overall recommended reserve for loss and 
loss adjustment expenses, including both allocated and unallocated loss adjustment expense, 
was $1.235 billion. As a result of the enhancements noted above, this was a decrease of $91.7 
million since September 30, 2021. No change was recommended to the risk margin reserve 
of $75.5 million. 
 
For the quarter ending June 30, 2022, the draft reserve for loss and loss adjustment expenses, 
including both allocated and unallocated loss adjustment expense, was $1.259 billion.   
 

**Dr. London left the meeting** 
 
Ms. Jaacks advised the Board that since the June 30, 2022 actuarial exhibits were in draft 
form, they would only need to vote on the December 31, 2021 report.  
 
A motion was made to accept the December 31, 2021 actuarial reserve evaluation. The 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Russell Perkins of Thomas Howell Ferguson presented a draft of the financial statements for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Mr. Perkins reminded the Board that his firm was 
engaged by the Board of Directors. He thanked Ms. Jaacks and Mr. Daughtry for promoting 
an efficient and effective financial statement audit. He expected the audit to be completed 
within the next month.  
 
The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting 
Standards. As a component unit of the State of Florida, NICA’s financial statements are 
submitted to the State to be included as part of the State’s financial statements.  
 
The Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2022 showed total assets of $1.345 billion, total 
liabilities of $1.376 billion which resulted in a net deficit position of -$30.7 million. The 



 
 

 
 
 

11 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position showed a loss for the year of 
over $500 million resulting from investment losses and the inclusion in the claims liabilities 
prospectively of expenses that had previously been paid by Medicaid.  
 
A lengthy discussion followed regarding NICA’s assessment structure and the possibility of 
increasing assessments. 
 
FISCAL PRESENTATION 
 
Reserve Review 
 
Ms. Jaacks presented an overview to pull together the discussions of investments, actuarial 
estimates and financial statements. At the previous meeting, the Board had made decisions 
based on numbers that had been presented as of September 30, 2021. Since that time, 
unreserved assets decreased by $264 million primarily due to decreases in investments of 
$326 million. Claims reserve decreased by $65 million as a result of refinements in the 
estimates of expenses previously paid by Medicaid.  
 
Cash Flow 
 
A summary of historical cash flows for the past three fiscal years as well as projections for 
the upcoming year were presented.  
 
Cash received for assessments was increasing each year. As a result of a recent legislative 
change, prior to renewing a physician’s license, the Department of Health would require non-
participating physicians to attest that their NICA assessment had been paid. The impact of 
that change was not yet known and was not included in the projections.  
 
Cash payments for benefits had increased from $20 million in fiscal year 2020 to $77 million 
in fiscal year 2022. Fiscal year 2022 included the retroactive parental awards. The projection 
for ongoing annual benefit payments was approximately $40 million. Projected cash 
payments for administrative expenses and technology upgrades were approximately $4 
million and $.8 million respectively. 
 
Ms. Jaacks pointed out that in fiscal year 2020, NICA collected more than it paid out by 
$19.7 million. During fiscal years 2021 and 2022, NICA paid out more than it collected in 
assessments. Going forward, NICA would continue to pay out more that it would collect in 
assessments. The difference would be covered by investment income which underscored the 
reason for a new asset allocation study. The current asset allocations were based on the 
assumption that incoming assessments would exceed outgoing payments. The projections 
presented indicated an ongoing cash flow deficit of $8.9 million. 
 
Ms. Jaacks advised the Board that the revised asset allocation study would be ready to 
present in about six months.  
 
Budget 



 
 

 
 
 

12 

 
Ms. Jaacks presented the budget to actual general and administrative expenses for the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2022 as well as the proposed budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2023. She asked that once approved, the budget would be considered ongoing until changes 
are requested.  
 
A motion was made to approve the proposed budget. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
The Chair thanked the families who had attended the meeting.  
 
ADDITIONAL PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 
Ms. Oliver read an email from a NICA parent who had been unable to attend the meeting. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
The Board then adjourned to Executive Session.  
 
Board members present were: 
 
  Jim DeBeaugrine, MPA 
  Renee Oliver 
  Narendra Dereddy, M.D. 

Julie Ann Zemaitis DeCesare, MD 
 
Also present: 
  Melissa Jaacks, NICA Interim Executive Director 
  Steve Ecenia, NICA General Counsel 

Marty Goldberg, Lash and Goldberg  
Daryl Saylor, Lash and Goldberg  
Dorothy Linda Minor, Court Reporter, Phipps Reporting 

 
Pending litigation was discussed. 
 
The Executive Session ended. 
 
PUBLIC SESSION RESUMED 
 
The Chair reconvened the public session of the meeting. 
 
ADJOURN 
 
There being no further business before the Association, the meeting was adjourned. 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 2.B. (Tab B) 
 

Minutes-November 8, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

1 

EMERGENCY MEETING 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING 

THE FLORIDA BIRTH-RELATED 
NEUROLOGICAL INJURY COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION 

 
November 8, 2022 

Virtual Meeting via Zoom Video and Zoom Conference Call 
 
The November 8, 2022, emergency meeting of the Board of Directors of the Florida Birth-
Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association was called to order by Chair, Jim 
DeBeaugrine.  
 
Board members present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
  Jim DeBeaugrine, MPA 
  Renee Oliver 
  Robert A. London, M.D. 
  Narendra Dereddy, M.D. 
  Julie DeCesare, MD 
 
Also present: 
 
  Melissa Jaacks, NICA Interim Executive Director 
  Tim Daughtry, NICA Deputy Director 
  Steve Ecenia, NICA General Counsel 
  Tana Storey, NICA General Counsel’s Office 
  Sheryl Parker, Florida Office of Insurance Regulation 
  Tasha Carter, Florida Insurance Consumer Advocate 
  Denishia Sword, Office of the Insurance Consumer Advocate 

Martin Goldberg, Lash & Goldberg 
  Daryl Saylor, Lash and Goldberg 
  Matt Dufek, Kikoda/NICA’s IT Contractor 

Katy Wojciechowski, NICA Investment Consultant 
Iris Cooper, Court Reporter, Phipps Reporting 
Julian Copeland, BlackRock 
Ashley Mathis 
Celia Lampert 
Laura Fischler 
Michael Finney 
Michelle Glisar 

   
**Attendees who did not provide full names, were only logged in briefly or who did not 
identify themselves are not included on this list. 
 
 



 

 
 
 

2 

The Chair stated that the emergency meeting of the Board was called to discuss the 
settlement agreement related to United States of America ex rel. Arven, et al. v. The Florida 
Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association, et al., No. 19-CV-61053-
WPD. Consideration of the potential settlement of that case was time sensitive because 
interest would continue to accrue until the case was resolved. The Board would meet in 
Executive Session to discuss the Settlement Agreement and would reconvene in public 
session at 5:30.  
 
The Chair asked that any public comment be limited to items on the agenda and reminded 
attendees that a regular Board meeting was scheduled for December 1, 2021 where the public 
could comment on other issues. 
 
The Chair recognized NICA’s General Counsel, Steve Ecenia. Mr. Ecenia reminded the 
Board that at the last meeting, he had requested that the Board hold an Executive Session at 
its next meeting to discuss pending legal issues. He asked that the Board convene an 
Executive Session to discuss the settlement of the Arven lawsuit. He also requested that the 
Board hold an Executive Session at its next meeting.  
 
The Chair agreed to move to Executive Session to discuss the Arven case and stated that the 
public meeting would be reconvened at 5:30 pm. He announced that the following 
individuals who would be attending the Executive Session: 
 

Jim DeBeaugrine, MPA, NICA Board Chair 
    Renee Oliver, NICA Board Member 
    Julie DeCesare, M.D., NICA Board Member 
    Robert A. London, M.D., NICA Board Member 

   Narendra Dereddy, M.D., NICA Board Member 
   Melissa Jaacks, Interim Executive Director 
   Steve Ecenia, NICA General Counsel, Rutledge Ecenia 
   Tana Storey, Rutledge Ecenia 
   Marty Goldberg, Lash and Goldberg 

    Daryl Saylor, Lash and Goldberg  
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
The Board then adjourned to Executive Session. 
 
The Board discussed the settlement agreement related to United States of America ex rel. 
Arven, et al. v. The Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association, et 
al., No. 19-CV-61053-WPD. 
 
The Executive Session ended. 
 
PUBLIC SESSION RESUMED 
 



 

 
 
 

3 

The Chair reconvened the public session of the meeting. 
 
The Chair requested a motion to authorize the Interim Executive Director to execute, on 
behalf of the Board, Settlement Agreements that are substantially in the same form as were 
discussed during the Executive Session regarding the Arven lawsuit. 
 
The motion was made by Ms. Oliver and seconded by Dr. London. 
 
The Chair asked if anyone from the Board or the public had comments or questions regarding 
the motion. There were no comments or questions. 
 
The Chair asked for a motion to authorize the Interim Executive Director to liquidate 
investments as necessary sufficient to satisfy the financial obligations of the Settlement 
Agreements. 
 
The motion was made by Dr. London and seconded by Ms. Oliver. 
 
The Chair asked if anyone from the Board or the public had comments or questions regarding 
the motion. There were no comments or questions. 
 
The Chair called on each Board member individually to vote on each of the two above 
motions. All Board members, including the Chair, voted to approve each of the 
motions, the motions passed unanimously.  
 
ADJOURN 
 
There being no further business before the Association, the meeting was adjourned. 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 7.A. (Tab C) 
 

Investment Update –  
Performance Review 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NICA Investment Summary
December 2022

• Katy Wojciechowski/Independent Investment Consultant
• Felicia Bennett/Wilshire Advisors LLC



Inflation in the US accelerates to levels not seen since the early  1980’s

Stock and Bond market volatility remains elevated



All Asset Classes Produced Negative Returns in 2022



Performance Drivers

• Absolute and excess returns broke 
historical records with their negative 
performance this year.  

• Federal Reserve began moving from 
accommodative to restrictive due to 
40-year high inflation and near 
record low unemployment.

• Federal funds upper bound target 
increased from 0.25% to 4.00%.

• Yield curve inversion and negative 
GDP prints indicate a recession likely.

• Risk assets universally 
underperformed. -4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

10

Fed Funds % v/s CPI YoY%

CPI YoY% Fed UB%



Fed tightening cycle continues in the face of 
persistent inflation

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

US Euro Area Japan U.K. Canada Austalia New Zealand Switzerland Denmark Norway Sweden China Mexico

Global Inflation Rates

Most Recent CPI YoY One Year Prior



Periodic Fund Performance
10/31/2022

-40

-35

-30

-25

-20

-15

-10

-5

0

5

10

15

Cash TIPS Core
Bond

Long
Term
Credit

High
Yield

Total
Fixed

Income

US
Equity

Non-US
Equity

Total
Equity

Total
Fund

1 year 3 year 5 year Inception



Source: Wilshire Advisors LLC



Source: Wilshire Advisors LLC



Plan Assets – October 31, 2022
Asset Allocation

10/31/2022

U.S. Equity Non-U.S. Equity Core Bond Long Duration Bond High Yield TIPS Cash

Cash 0.31%
Fixed Income 65%
US Equity 20%
Intl Equity 15%

100%

Market Value 6/30/2022 1,317,519,548

Capital Apprec/Deprec (99,416,952)

Market Value 10/31/2022 1,218,102,596 



Asset Allocation Compliance

• In November $53mm was liquidated from the Fund, bringing all Asset Classes into compliance



Overall, the fund is slightly more passive.  The US Equity and Fixed 
Income Composites are more passive with the Non-US Equity 
composite being 100% actively managed

49%51%

Portfolio Profile
Total NICA ex Cash

Active

Passive



Dramatic selloffs in the bond market finally offer some opportunities for 
yield/income going forward

High Yield bonds hit a high approaching 10% in 
October

Long duration Investment Grade Credit hit new 
highs in yield in October as well

• •



Looking Forward

• The markets may remain volatile for the upcoming year as the Federal 
Reserve continues to tighten monetary policy in their fight to return 
inflation to a “2% average” target

• There are signs of slowing in the economy, but unemployment 
remains very low.  There is a high probability we will enter a recession 
in the coming year, but predicted to be shallow and brief

• In the NICA fund, we are conducting an asset allocation study which 
should be completed before year end.  Given our change in liquidity 
needs, we feel it’s advisable to add an allocation to a shorter duration 
fixed income vehicle to our bond holdings



Steps for Implementing Results of 
Asset/Liability Study in the Fund
• Assess risk tolerance and liquidity needs
• Develop realistic target portfolio within NICA constraints based on 

Wilshire Optimization model
• Discuss output of Target portfolio 

• Ability to achieve required return
• Ability to provide necessary liquidity

• Finalize plan to implement
• Execute to achieve target portfolio

• Adjust allocations between investments
• Adjust managers as needed and recommended by Wilshire



 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 7.B. (Tab D) 
 

Investment Update –  
Asset Allocation Approach & 

Assumptions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



wilshire.com   |    ©2021 Wilshire Advisors LLC

Wilshire Advisors
Asset Allocation Approach & Assumptions Review

December 2022



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC 2

Contents & Agenda

• Background & Overview

• Asset Allocation - Investment Beliefs

• Wilshire’s Economic Factors & Asset Class 
Bucketing

• Sept 2022 Capital Market Assumptions



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC 3

• Wilshire recommends that plans conduct asset allocation studies every three to five 
years – or more frequently with significant changes in the capital markets or in fund 
liabilities.  This analysis is part of the regular life cycle of the investment program.

• This study is an opportunity for the Board to discuss and express its tolerance for the 
level of risk in the portfolio.  While either de-risking or seeking a significantly higher 
return may be theoretically attractive, the benefits should be considered in the context 
of the overall nature of risk and return in the portfolio and its impact on variables such 
as funded ratio volatility and reserves. 

• Wilshire last reviewed asset allocation for the NICA Portfolio in 2020, but study was 
postponed due to unknown impacts of pending litigation. Prior studies were 
completed in 2016 and 2013.  

Background & Overview



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC 4

Risk Assessment Framework
Wilshire’s multi-dimensional view of risk integrates 
organizational and investment considerations into a 
comprehensive framework for evaluating strategic 
decisions.

• Shortfall: Support distributions and long-term 
growth

• Behavioral: Instill strong governance

• Drawdown: Limit portfolio losses

• Inflation: Preserve long-term purchasing power

• Liquidity: Balance near-term needs, long-term 
opportunities

• Active: Ensure unique exposures

• Emerging & Long-Term: Environmental, Social & 
Governance risks, such as externalities, intangibles 
and reputation may be linked to various risk lenses

BEHAVIORAL

INFLATION

SHORTFALL

DRAWDOWN

LIQUIDITY

ACTIVE

Risk Lenses 
for Plan 

Governance

EMERGING & LONG-TERM RISKS



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC 5

Focus on Decisions That Matter

OBJECTIVES

ASSET ALLOCATION
Biggest driver of the variation

of a portfolio’s return
Drives 90% of return variation

INVESTMENT STRUCTURE 
Secondary driver of 

return variation
Drives 5-7% of 

return variation

MANAGER 
SELECTION

Residual 
return

IMPLEMENTATION

BEHAVIORAL

INFLATION

SHORTFALL

DRAWDOWN

LIQUIDITY

ACTIVE

Address Key Risks 
Throughout the Investment 

Process

Many of the six key risks are 
present at multiple points in 
the investment process, but  

each distinct step in the 
process is focused on one or 

two primary risks.



wilshire.com   |    ©2021 Wilshire Advisors LLC

Economic Factors & 
Asset Allocation Modeling



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC 7

Asset-Only “Mean Variance Optimization”

Role of asset allocation:
• To maximize return

• To minimize risk

Traditional mean-variance optimization considers 
the relationship of assets to each other when 
analyzing portfolios.

Optimal portfolio is a balance of trade-offs
• Return vs. risk

• Liquidity

• Diversification

Match Current 
Expected Return

A Better Policy

Match Current 
Standard Deviation

Current

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

5.0%

5.5%

6.0%

6.5%

7.0% 8.0% 9.0% 10.0% 11.0% 12.0% 13.0% 14.0% 15.0% 16.0%
M

ed
ia

n 
R

et
ur

n 
(%

)
Standard Deviation of Return (%)

Efficient Frontier



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC 8

Need for Constraints

Practical diversification
• Optimizer does not differentiate between public and private markets / factor exposure / role of assets 

in portfolio (e.g., inflation sensitive assets in a deflationary environment)
• Bucketing (growth, defensive, inflation mitigation) is an example of setting practical portfolio 

considerations

Liquidity
• The mathematics driven optimization ignores the need for liquidity
• The model will allocate away from cash and liquid assets towards higher returning assets
• Private markets tend to have higher return expectations partially due to illiquidity premium

Investability
• Implementation challenges may exist in some sectors
• Valuations in the short term need to be weighed against long-term expectations



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC 9

Correlation Instability / Economic Factor Consideration

Correlations can be unstable especially in times of market stress
Supplement with considerations such as economic factor exposure, liquidity and qualitative constraints



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC 10

Economic Factor Exposure

Concentrated factor tilts 
can represent portfolio 

vulnerability (e.g., reliance 
on growth markets)

To the extent possible, a 
portfolio with factor 

neutrality is desirable for 
weathering unexpected 

future market 
environments

US Stock

Global ex-US Stock

Cash Equivalents

Core Bond

TIPS
High Yield 

Bond

Commodities

Core RE

Gold

FI: LT Treasury

FI: LT Corporate

FI: Short/Int Core

NICA Portfolio

(15)

(10)

(5)

0

5

10

15

(15) (10) (5) 0 5 10 15

In
fla

tio
n 

Ex
po

su
re

Growth Exposure

Bubble Size:  Return



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC 11

Benefits & Challenges of Diversification
Investors must take a thoughtful approach to 
diversification

• Avoid DINO (Diversification in name only)

• Diminishing marginal benefit by simply adding 
asset classes, even with uncorrelated assets

Utilize a factor-based and bucketing approach to 
asset allocation decisions

• Concept of grouping asset classes together that 
perform similarly in various market 
environments

• Emphasize asset class economic factors

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

To
ta

l P
or

tf
ol

io
 R

isk

Number of Asset Classes

Impact of Correlation on Risk Reduction

Correlation of 1.00

Correlation of 0.75

Correlation of 0.50

Correlation of 0.25

Correlation of 0.00



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC 12

Wilshire’s Bucketing Approach

Growth : Assets that do well when the economy does well. Relies on positive economic growth. Typically 
higher returning, higher risk asset classes  (Us and Non-US Public Equity)

Defensive-Growth : Assets that are expected to provide some downside protection compared to Growth 
Assets; however, returns are highly correlated to positive GDP growth and Growth Assets (High Yield Bonds)

Defensive : Assets that are expected to provide meaningful downside protection or resilience during an equity 
market sell-off. High-quality fixed income assets such as (Core Bonds, Long Duration Credit, Cash)

Inflation-Sensitive : Real assets that exhibit a non-negative correlation to various forms of inflation (TIPS)

Diversifying : Assets that are meant to provide uncorrelated diversification and/or asymmetrical returns (often 
in form of Hedge Funds)



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC 13

Wilshire’s Bucketing Approach to Asset Allocation

GROWTH DEFENSIVE-
GROWTH DEFENSIVE INFLATION-

SENSITIVE

PRIVATE EQUITY

NON-U.S. EQUITY

U.S. EQUITY PUBLIC CREDIT

PRIVATE CREDIT

ALTERNATIVE 
YIELD

DEFENSIVE / LOW 
VOL EQUITY

CASH

CORE FIXED 
INCOME

TREASURIES

NATURAL 
RESOURCES

TIPS

INFRASTRUCTURE

REAL ESTATE
LONG DURATION 

BONDS



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC 14

Asset Allocation Process
• Wilshire believes the mission of a NICA Fund is to fund 

benefits promised to families when they come due.

• The role of asset allocation is to manage risk in order to 
fulfill that core mission

• Maximize safety of promised benefits 

• Minimize cost of funding these claims 

• Wilshire’s Asset Liability Model provides methodology for 
selecting a target portfolio that considers both goals

• Rigorously developed capital market assumptions for risk 
and return

• Given that short-term volatility is also important, we 
identify the impact of the asset allocation decision on 
surplus ratios, downside risk, and other metrics

• Strategic asset allocation is not a guide to outperforming 
in every market … but it should provide a roadmap for 
success over a market cycle

Optimized Portfolios
“Probability of Success”

Fund’s 
Projected Claims

(Cash Flows)

Wilshire 
Capital Market 
Expectations

Investment 
Policy 

Objectives & 
Constraints

A B C D E

Surplus 
Volatility

Projected 
Surplus/Deficit

Expected 
Risk/Return

WILSHIRE
ASSET / LIABILITY 

MODEL



wilshire.com   |    ©2021 Wilshire Advisors LLC

September 2022 
Capital Markets Assumptions



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC 16

Wilshire’s Forecast Over Time



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC 17

Inflation Assumption

Market-based inflation forecast
• TIPS are used to forecast 

inflation
• Subtract TIPS YTM from 

nominal Treasury YTM with 
same maturity

Inflation assumption = 2.25%
• Just above breakeven 

given the volatility in the 
signal before and after 
quarter-end

Note:  NICA Actuaries use a higher inflation assumption of 3.0%



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC 18

Capital Market Assumptions for the NICA Study
Wilshire’s asset class return, risk and correlation assumptions are developed on multi-year forward looking expected rates of return and historical risk and 
correlation, adjusted to incorporate recent trends

Public market return expectations represent a passive investment in the asset class (beta). They do not reflect value added from active management (alpha).

Asset Classes Expected Return
10 Years

Expected Return
30 Years Risk Cash Yield Factor Exposure 

Growth
Factor Exposure 

Inflation
Liquidity Market 

Level
Liquidity Stressed 

Metric

US Equity 6.75 7.35 17.00 1.80 8.00 -3.00 100 0

Non US Equity 7.85 8.00 19.10 3.30 8.00 1.50 90 0

High Yield 6.85 6.95 10.00 9.65 4.00 -1.00 80 0

Core Fixed Income 4.90 4.85 4.25 5.10 -0.85 -2.50 100 85

Long Credit 5.85 6.15 8.50 6.20 0.00 -5.00 100 70

Cash 3.65 3.45 0.75 3.65 0.00 0.00 100 100

Long Gov/Credit 5.00 5.55 8.90 5.05 -2.50 -7.00 100 70

Short Duration Bond 4.35 4.30 3.00 4.30 -0.45 -1.25 100 90

TIPS 4.05 4.45 6.00 4.30 -3.00 2.50 90 85

Core Real Estate 5.10 5.95 12.00 3.00 4.00 1.00 0 0

Short Duration TIPS 1-5 Years 3.90 4.00 3.10 4.00 -1.50 1.25 90 85



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC 19

Q3 2022 Correlation Matrix

Dev Global LT Dev ex-
US ex-US Emg ex-US Global Private Core Core High US Bond US Global Private Real US

Stock Stock Stock Stock Stock Equity Cash Bond Bond TIPS Yield (Hdg) RES RES RE Cmdty Assets CPI
Compound Return (%) 6.75 7.50 7.75 7.85 7.30 10.25 3.65 4.90 5.10 4.05 6.85 2.85 5.65 5.80 6.35 5.90 7.05 2.25
Expected Risk (%) 17.00 18.00 26.00 19.10 17.10 28.00 0.75 4.25 8.90 6.00 10.00 4.25 17.50 16.45 14.00 16.00 10.35 1.75
Cash Yield (%) 1.80 3.45 2.95 3.30 2.40 0.00 3.65 5.10 5.20 4.30 9.65 3.50 3.95 3.95 2.30 3.65 2.75 0.00
Growth Exposure 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 13.50 0.00 -0.85 -2.25 -3.00 4.00 -1.00 6.00 6.00 3.50 0.00 1.80 0.00
Inflation Exposure -3.00 0.00 5.00 1.50 -1.25 -3.80 0.00 -2.50 -6.70 2.50 -1.00 -3.00 1.00 1.80 1.00 12.00 4.85 1.00

Correlations
US Stock 1.00
Dev ex-US Stock (USD) 0.81 1.00
Emerging Mkt Stock 0.74 0.74 1.00
Global ex-US Stock 0.83 0.96 0.87 1.00
Global Stock 0.95 0.92 0.83 0.94 1.00
Private Equity 0.74 0.64 0.62 0.67 0.74 1.00
Cash Equivalents -0.05 -0.09 -0.05 -0.08 -0.07 0.00 1.00
Core Bond 0.28 0.13 0.00 0.09 0.20 0.31 0.19 1.00
LT Core Bond 0.31 0.16 0.01 0.12 0.23 0.32 0.11 0.92 1.00
TIPS -0.05 0.00 0.15 0.05 0.00 -0.03 0.20 0.59 0.47 1.00
High Yield Bond 0.54 0.39 0.49 0.45 0.51 0.34 -0.10 0.25 0.32 0.05 1.00
Dev ex-US Bond (Hdg) 0.16 0.25 -0.01 0.17 0.18 0.26 0.10 0.66 0.65 0.39 0.26 1.00
US RE Securities 0.58 0.47 0.44 0.49 0.56 0.50 -0.05 0.17 0.23 0.10 0.56 0.05 1.00
Global RE Securities 0.64 0.58 0.56 0.61 0.65 0.58 -0.05 0.17 0.22 0.11 0.61 0.03 0.96 1.00
Private Real Estate 0.54 0.44 0.44 0.47 0.52 0.51 -0.05 0.19 0.25 0.09 0.57 0.05 0.77 0.75 1.00
Commodities 0.25 0.34 0.39 0.38 0.32 0.27 0.00 -0.02 -0.02 0.25 0.29 -0.10 0.25 0.28 0.25 1.00
Real Assets 0.48 0.51 0.58 0.57 0.54 0.47 -0.02 0.23 0.25 0.39 0.56 0.05 0.70 0.75 0.70 0.65 1.00
Inflation (CPI) -0.10 -0.15 -0.13 -0.15 -0.13 -0.10 0.10 -0.12 -0.12 0.15 -0.08 -0.08 0.05 0.03 0.05 0.44 0.26 1.00

Equity Fixed Income Real Assets
Real Estate



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC 20

Important Information
Wilshire is a global financial services firm providing diverse services to various types of investors and intermediaries. Wilshire’s products, services, investment approach and advice may differ between clients and all of Wilshire’s products and services
may not be available to all clients. For more information regarding Wilshire’s services, please see Wilshire’s ADV Part 2 available at www.wilshire.com/ADV.

Wilshire believes that the information obtained from third party sources contained herein is reliable, but has not undertaken to verify such information. Wilshire gives no representations or warranties as to the accuracy of such information, and accepts
no responsibility or liability (including for indirect, consequential or incidental damages) for any error, omission or inaccuracy in such information and for results obtained from its use.

This material may include estimates, projections, assumptions and other "forward-looking statements." Forward-looking statements represent Wilshire's current beliefs and opinions in respect of potential future events. These statements are not
guarantees of future performance and undue reliance should not be placed on them. Such forward-looking statements necessarily involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties, which may cause actual events, performance and financial results to
differ materially from any projections. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they are made and are subject to change without notice. Wilshire undertakes no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements.

Wilshire Advisors, LLC (Wilshire) is an investment advisor registered with the SEC. Wilshire® is a registered service mark.

Copyright © 2022 Wilshire. All rights reserved.



 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 7.C. (Tab E) 
 

Investment Update –  
Fee Analysis  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC

NICA
2022 Fee Analysis

December 1, 2022



2wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC

NICA Manager Fee Comparison

*Standard fee schedule that may not account for relationship discounts.

• Wilshire believes the portfolio’s overall manager fees are competitive

• Aggregate investment management fees of 0.20%

• 4 managers with  52% of portfolio assets are in the lowest fee quartile of their respective peer group

• No managers is in the highest fee quartile of their peer groups

Manager Asset Class Value NICA Fee % NICA Fee Peer Group 25th
(Low) Median 75th

(High)
# of 

Observations

Wellington Management Mid Cap Equity $24,582,322 0.75 $184,367 Mid Cap Core 0.60 0.70 0.80 54

PanAgora Asset Mgmt. Small Cap Equity $28,258,349 0.85 $240,196 Small Cap Core 0.74 0.80 0.89 130

BlackRock TIPS TIPS $68,668,536 0.02 $15,450 US Fixed Income Index/Passive 0.01 0.08 0.10 17

Schroder QEP Int'l Value International Equity $79,608,229 0.65 $517,453 Global Ex-US 0.61 0.70 0.81 130

Baillie Gifford International Equity $107,054,067 0.52 $556,681 Global Ex-US 0.58 0.69 0.80 130

Sterling Capital Mgmt. LLC* Core Fixed Income $125,815,106 0.22 $276,793 Market Core Fixed Income 0.21 0.24 0.27 155

BlackRock High Yield Index High Yield Fixed Income $131,167,043 0.12 $152,154 US High Yield 0.43 0.47 0.50 229

BlackRock Russell 1000 Index Large Cap Equity $185,808,387 0.02 $37,162 US Equity Index/Passive 0.05 0.07 0.10 37

MetLife Long Duration Fixed Income $208,850,218 0.19 $386,373 Long Corportate Fixed Income 0.19 0.22 0.25 55

BlackRock Long Term Credit Long Duration Fixed Income $254,505,864 0.04 $101,802 US Fixed Income Index/Passive 0.01 0.05 0.08 14

Total Portfolio $1,214,318,122 $2,468,432

Aggegate Management Fee 0.20%



3wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC

According to a survey conducted by Greenwich Associates, median fees for 
Trust & Custody from 2018 – 2020 were:
• Insurance Companies: 1.4 bps in 2019, no data for 2018 or 2020
• Health Service Organization: 1.4, 3.0, and 1.3 bps
• Pension Plans $1 - $5 Billion in assets:

• Corporate: 2.6, 2.2, and 1.3 bps

• Public: 1.1, 1.3, and 1.2 bps

• Endowments and Foundations over $1 Billion: 1.8, 1.6 and 1.6 bps

Trust and Custody Fees

Source: 2020 Greenwich Associates US Market Trends



4wilshire.com   |    ©2022 Wilshire Advisors LLC

Important Information
Wilshire is a global financial services firm providing diverse services to various types of investors and intermediaries. Wilshire’s products, services, investment approach and advice may differ between clients and
all of Wilshire’s products and services may not be available to all clients. For more information regarding Wilshire’s services, please see Wilshire’s ADV Part 2 available at www.wilshire.com/ADV.

Wilshire believes that the information obtained from third party sources contained herein is reliable, but has not undertaken to verify such information. Wilshire gives no representations or warranties as to the
accuracy of such information, and accepts no responsibility or liability (including for indirect, consequential or incidental damages) for any error, omission or inaccuracy in such information and for results
obtained from its use.

This material may include estimates, projections, assumptions and other "forward-looking statements." Forward-looking statements represent Wilshire's current beliefs and opinions in respect of potential
future events. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and undue reliance should not be placed on them. Such forward-looking statements necessarily involve known and unknown risks and
uncertainties, which may cause actual events, performance and financial results to differ materially from any projections. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they are made and are
subject to change without notice. Wilshire undertakes no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements.

Wilshire Advisors, LLC (Wilshire) is an investment advisor registered with the SEC. Wilshire® is a registered service mark.

Copyright © 2022 Wilshire. All rights reserved.

DISCLAIMER LAYOUT – COMPLIANCE CODE GOES HERE



 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 8 (Tab F) 
 

Reserve Review/Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



in millions 9/30/2021 12/31/2021 6/30/2022

Change 
from Sep 

to Jun
Assets 1,668         1,722           1,345                   (323)           

Liabilities 1,435         1,342           1,376                   (59)             
Unreserved Assets 233            380              (31)                        (264)           

Change in Investments (275)           
Use of cash (51)             

Other misc year-end adj 3                 
(323)           

Impacts on Unreserved Assets since 6/30/2022:
Use of cash - Medicaid settlement (53)                        

Claims reserve - Medicaid rate increase (100)                     
Change in investment value thru 10/31/2022 (99)                        

(252)                     

Estimated current Unreserved Asset value (283)                     



 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 9 (Tab G) 
 

Cash Flow Review/Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



in millions 9/30/2021 12/31/2021 6/30/2022

Change 
from Sep 

to Jun
Assets 1,668         1,722           1,345                   (323)           

Liabilities 1,435         1,342           1,376                   (59)             
Unreserved Assets 233            380              (31)                        (264)           

Change in Investments (275)           
Use of cash (51)             

Other misc year-end adj 3                 
(323)           

Impacts on Unreserved Assets since 6/30/2022:
Use of cash - Medicaid settlement (53)                        

Claims reserve - Medicaid rate increase (100)                     
Change in investment value thru 10/31/2022 (99)                        

(252)                     

Estimated current Unreserved Asset value (283)                     



 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 10.A. (Tab H) 
 

June 30, 2022 Final Actuarial 
Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Mark Crawshaw
Digitally signed by Mark 
Crawshaw 
Date: 2022.11.29 09:56:12 -05'00'





 TURNER CONSULTING, INC.

FLORIDA BIRTH RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY 
COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION 

REVIEW OF OUTSTANDING LOSS RESERVES 
EVALUATED AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 

Turner Consulting, Inc. 
October, 2022 



TURNER CONSULTING, INC.   
    CONSULTANTS AND ACTUARIES                                                                 
                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                                   

125 Clairemont Avenue 
Suite 540 
Decatur, Georgia 30030 
(404) 373-2326 
Fax (404) 373-2311 

October 10, 2022 

 

 

Ms. Melissa Jaacks 
Executive Director 
Florida Birth Related Neurological 
Injury Compensation Association 
2360 Christopher Place, Suite 1 
Tallahassee, Florida   32308 
 
 
Re: NICA Outstanding Loss Reserves – Evaluated as of June 30, 2022  
 
 
Dear Ms. Jaacks: 
 
 
Please find enclosed our report on loss and loss adjustment expense (LAE) reserves 
established for the Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Association (NICA) as of June 
30, 2022.  
 
We have enjoyed working with you on this project and look forward to discussing any 
questions or comments you may have. 
 
 
 
     Sincerely, 
 
 

                                                  
 
 
     George W. Turner Jr. 
     Fellow of the Casualty Actuarial Society,  
                                                Member of the American Academy of Actuaries 
 
 
 
Cc: Tim Daughtry, Mark Crawshaw 



 

FLORIDA BIRTH RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY ASSOCIATION 
REVIEW OF OUTSTANDING LOSS RESERVE 

EVALUATED AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 
 
                 

Table of Contents 
 
 
 
Section                 Page 
 
    Introduction 
 
   Purpose         1 
 
   Background            1 
 
   Changes Included Beginning in December 2021   3 
 
   Qualifications        5 
 
   Distribution and Use          6 
 
   Conditions and Limitations       6 
 
    Executive Summary        8 
 
        Senate Bill 1786        12 
  
    Methodology – General         14 

    Methodology – New Procedure       15 

    Methodology – Old Loss Estimation Methods     19 

    Historical NICA Inflation        20 

    Prospective NICA Inflation       21 

    Discount Rate          22 

    Payment Pattern         23 

 



 1

INTRODUCTION 

 

Purpose 

Turner Consulting, Inc. (Turner Consulting) was requested by the Florida Birth 

Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) to estimate the 

outstanding loss and loss adjustment expense (LAE) reserves related to claims 

incurred by NICA under the current definition of a “birth related neurological injury” 

as contained in Florida Statute 766.302. The loss and LAE reserve estimate relates 

to claims incurred prior to and evaluated as of June 30,2022. The loss and LAE 

reserve estimates are developed on both a current cost level basis and after 

consideration of prospective period inflation and anticipated investment income (I.e., 

discounted to present-value).  

 

Background 

NICA was created by Florida Statute to provide care for children beginning in 1989 

that meet the birth related injury criteria as defined in Florida Statutes 766.301 to 

766.316. The NICA statute replaces the traditional tort liability remedies with a no-

fault type system for those children that meet the requirements as defined in the 

statute. The qualifying child must be severely mentally and physically impaired. In 

addition, a claim must be filed within five years after birth. Prior to the 1994 birth 

year, a claim had to be filed within seven years of birth. Care is provided for the life 

of the child.  

 

Funds are collected from the various medical care providers during each birth year 

and invested until payments are required on behalf of the qualifying claimants. There 

are very limited resources for collecting additional funds from the insurance industry 

and the Florida Office of Insurance Regulation in the event the funds collected from 

the medical care providers are not adequate. Due to the significant expected delay 

between the time when funds are collected and actual benefits are paid, the 

estimated impact of inflation and anticipated investment income must be considered 

in the establishment of overall loss and LAE reserve levels. 



 2

 

In reports issued prior to September 30, 2012 certain care provided by parents or 

guardians to claimants paid for by NICA was described as “family care”. While the 

estimates as developed in the prior reports as well as in the current report are based 

on a review of all amounts paid and case reserves established related to all care as 

covered under the NICA statutes, a separate estimate of the amounts related to 

“family care” was also shown. In the more recent reports a separate estimate is no 

longer shown for the expense previously labeled as “family care” other than the 

segregation of amounts estimated for the retrospective portion of the class action 

settlement as described in the next paragraph. However, a separate estimate of the 

reserve amounts related to “family residential or custodial care” as defined in Florida 

Statute 766.302 (10) is calculated for purposes of the threshold calculation as 

described in Florida Statute 766.314 (9). This statute specifically excludes benefits 

related to “family residential or custodial care” for purposes of the threshold 

calculation contained in the statute. 

  

A class action settlement agreement was entered into during September 2012 which 

was approved pursuant to a November 26, 2012 Final Judgment and Order by the 

Florida Circuit Court. The settlement terms may impact benefits payable to all 

parents or guardians of a child born with a “birth-related neurological injury” in the 

State of Florida during the time period of January 1, 1989 through June 6, 2002, who 

obtained a final order which imposed on NICA the “continuing obligation under 

provisions of Section 766.31, Florida Statutes, to pay future expenses as incurred”. 

The estimated impact on the case reserves of this settlement agreement was 

incorporated into the case reserve estimates as provided by NICA. The impact was 

separated into estimates related to the retrospective portion of the settlement 

(currently defined as prior to August 1, 2012) and the prospective portion of the 

settlement (currently defined as subsequent to July 31, 2012). It is our understanding 

that the majority of the retrospective portion has been paid as of June 30, 2022.  

 



 3

In May 2021, the Florida Legislature passed Senate Bill 1786 (SB 1786), which 

resulted in increases to the financial obligations of NICA. This report includes 

consideration of the explicit changes set forth in SB 1786 such as an increase in the 

parental award, death benefit, housing assistance, transportation and the inclusion 

of a mental health benefit.  

 

In addition to these explicit benefit changes, pending litigation may result in a change 

in the allocation of expenses historically paid by Medicaid. The estimates as shown 

in this report include the assumption that on a prospective basis Medicaid will no 

longer reimburse NICA claimants for expenses as defined in Florida Statutes 

766.301 to 766.316 and that these expenses will fall on NICA. The reserve estimates 

as included in this report do not include any consideration of payments NICA may 

be ordered to reimburse Medicaid for related to retrospective payments made by 

Medicaid in prior years to NICA claimants. In the event NICA is ordered to reimburse 

Medicaid for prior amounts paid by Medicaid the reserve estimates will need to be 

adjusted to include these additional amounts. 

 

Changes Included December 31, 2021 and Subsequent – Additional Method 

 

As a result of the passage of SB 1786, NICA made a number of one-time loss 

payments during calendar year 2021 and 2022. In addition, NICA extensively 

revised the year-end case reserve worksheets as of December 31, 2021 to reflect 

the SB 1786 changes. The combined impact of these factors resulted in a significant 

one-time change and discontinuity in both the cumulative paid and incurred loss and 

ALAE used in many of the loss projection methods utilized in prior actuarial reports.  

 

The estimates as shown in this report evaluated as of June 30, 2022 include the 

case reserve changes incorporated as of December 31, 2021 plus the additional 

case reserve and claim payment amounts made during the first half of 2022. The 

claim payments made during the first half of 2022 not only included additional 

payments as anticipated related to the reserves set forth in our December 31, 2021 



 4

report but also included additional statutory changes related to a broadening of the 

increase in the parental award from $ 100,000 to $ 250,000 for all prior deceased 

claimants. The estimated increase in payments during the first half of 2022 related 

to this change in beneficiaries qualifying for the parental award increase is 

approximately $ 26 million. In addition, there is an increase in the case reserve 

amounts of $ 17 million related to expected additional payments for retroactive family 

care not previously included. Other than the above mentioned items the 

assumptions included in the reserve estimates as of June 30, 2022 are similar to 

those included in our December 31, 2021 report. 

 

As a result of the impact of the reserve and claim payment adjustments related to 

the implementation of SB 1786, an additional method is included in this report as 

well as the prior report evaluated as of December 31, 2021. While certain aspects 

of this additional methodology are similar to the incremental payment method 

included in our prior reports the new procedure includes a number of additional 

refinements. On an overall basis this new procedure relies on the segregation of all 

NICA claimants into two separate impairment groups. Actual historical NICA 

mortality experience is used to estimate two separate mortality tables for the two 

groups. In addition, average annual claim payments are developed for three 

separate expense categories at 2021 loss levels. The average 2021 level annual 

payment amounts are developed based on the review of actual NICA claim payment 

information, Medicaid payment information and Affordable Care Act (ACA) health 

insurance premium information as provided in a report prepared for NICA by Wakely 

Consulting Group, LLC (Wakely).  

 

 

An illustration of the magnitude of changes incorporated during 2021 can be made 

based on the change in the cumulative paid loss and ALAE and the increase in the 

case outstanding loss and ALAE reserves during the 2021 year in comparison to the 

changes observed in the two prior years, 2020 and 2019. For example, the 

incremental loss and ALAE payments during 2021 was $ 67.98 million in comparison 



 5

to $ 20.92 million and $ 17.74 million in 2020 and 2019, respectively. The current 

level case outstanding loss and ALAE increased by $ 200.04 million in 2021 in 

comparison to increases the current level case outstanding of $ 75.00 million and $ 

48.36 million in 2020 and 2019, respectively.  

 

Many of the actuarial methods included prior to December 31, 2021 are based on 

an implicit assumption of continuity in paid and incurred claim amounts from 

valuation to valuation. The large changes occurring in 2021 and 2022 compromise 

this assumption. To address this situation, we have adjusted the paid and incurred 

loss and ALAE information in an attempt to minimize the impact on the methods 

used prior to December 31, 2021. As additional data emerges over the coming years 

the loss emergence patterns will adjust to the new benefit definitions and the impact 

of these one-time adjustments will be reduced. The results of the application of the 

prior (“Old”) methods on the loss experience after adjustment are shown in Section 

V based on the year-end analysis (i.e. as of December 31, 2021).  

 

Due to the magnitude of these changes and the uncertainty related to any 

adjustment procedure to minimize their impact, we included an additional 

methodology to address the changes related to SB 1786 on a prospective basis. 

This new methodology will be the primary basis of our estimate until adequate 

historical experience is captured for the prior methods. 

 

 

Qualifications 

I, George W. Turner Jr. am a consulting actuary for Turner Consulting, Inc. I am a 

Fellow of the Casualty Actuarial Society and a member of the American Academy of 

Actuaries and I meet the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of 

Actuaries to render the opinions as expressed in this report. 

 

 

 



 6

Distribution and Use 

This report is intended solely for the use of NICA and its Board of Directors and 

advisors. Any further use or distribution of this report is not intended or authorized 

without our prior written consent. 

 

 

Conditions and Limitations 

In preparing the estimates as shown in this report we relied without audit or 

verification on loss, exposure and expense information provided to us by responsible 

employees of NICA. 

  

The indicated ultimate loss and LAE estimates provided in this report are based on 

the accuracy of the loss projection methods included. In addition, the final loss and 

LAE reserve estimates will be affected by the prospective period inflation and 

investment returns realized by NICA. The combined impact of these factors results 

in a significant degree of uncertainty in the estimated NICA loss and LAE reserve 

evaluated as of December 31, 2021 and as of June 30, 2022. This uncertainty arises 

from the estimation of many internal and external factors that have yet to occur or 

be reported, but which will impact the ultimate settlement value of claims incurred 

prior to June 30, 2022. Due to the level of uncertainty of the impact of these factors 

on the ultimate number and settlement value of losses incurred by NICA, there can 

be no guarantee that actual losses will not vary, perhaps significantly, from the 

estimates shown in this report. However, we have employed actuarial methods and 

assumptions that are appropriate given the information as provided. 

 

The loss and LAE reserve estimates shown in this report reflect consideration of 

payments made on the behalf of NICA claimants by other providers, such as health 

insurance coverage, Medicaid, etc. Since the payments made by these other providers 

in many cases reduce the amounts that would otherwise be paid by NICA, any change 

in the portion of benefits covered by these other providers will impact the loss and LAE 

reserve estimates shown in this report. To the extent any of these providers change 



 7

the level of benefit payments (e.g. change from a primary provider to an excess 

provider) from those made previously, the reserve estimates shown in this report will 

need to be adjusted. 

 

An additional source of variation is introduced in the development of loss and LAE 

reserve estimates on a present value basis. This variation arises from the fact that 

actual loss and LAE payments may occur more rapidly or more slowly than 

contemplated in the assumed payment pattern. Thus, the calculated investment 

income would differ from the actual investment income earned in proportion to the 

variation in actual payments from expected payments. 

 

The loss and LAE reserve estimates contained in this report include explicit 

consideration of estimated prospective period inflation and investment returns. 

Specifically, the loss and LAE reserve estimates include consideration of the 

anticipated investment income earned on funds collected prior to the actual payment 

of claims. The estimated investment income is based on the assumption that 

sufficient assets will be available for investment to cover the present value of the 

ultimate losses. To the extent sufficient funds are not available the ultimate loss 

reserve estimates will need to be increased to account for the reduction in 

anticipated investment income. 

 

The last remaining reinsurance treaty was commuted during 2019. Since all 

reinsurance treaties have been commuted, the outstanding loss and LAE reserves 

shown as of June 30, 2022 do not include any additional anticipated reinsurance 

recoveries.  

 

The attached exhibits summarizing the assumptions and calculations underlying the 

estimates are to be considered an integral part of the report. Thus, an accurate 

understanding of the conclusions set forth in the report is conditional upon an 

examination of both the text and the attached exhibits. Further, any distribution of 

this report should be provided in its entirety and with the understanding that we are 



 8

available to answer questions with regard to the methods and assumptions 

underlying the conclusions herein.  

 

 

Executive Summary  

The outstanding loss and LAE reserve (i.e. Loss, ALAE, and ULAE reserves after 

inflation and discount) as of June 30, 2022 is $ 1,258.6 million. In contrast to prior 

reports there is no segregation in the portion of the total outstanding loss and ALAE 

related to SB 1786 as the current case reserve estimates now include consideration 

of SB 1786 changes. The estimated unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve 

of $ 20.2 million is shown in Item (11A) of Section I, Exhibit I. 

  

The outstanding loss and ALAE reserve is valued using an annual interest discount 

rate that exceeds the annual inflation in claim payments by 1.5%. This assumption 

is unchanged from our recent prior analyses. The outstanding loss and LAE reserve 

is determined using actuarial methods similar to those used in our recent prior 

analyses. 

 

Total case outstanding loss and ALAE reserves after to the inclusion of the SB 1786 

benefit revisions and prior to adjustment for prospective inflation and discount 

increased by $ 17.3 million during the first six months of 2022 (as of June 30, 2022 

relative to December 31, 2021 Section I, Exhibit I, Column (4)). Total loss and ALAE 

payments during the first half of 2022 were approximately $ 48.5 million (Section I, 

Exhibit I, Column (2) minus Section I, Exhibit I, Column (2) of the December 31, 

2021 report).  

 

Total ultimate loss and ALAE estimates after consideration of anticipated inflation 

and investment income increased by approximately $ 72.1 million relative to the 

estimates as shown in December 31, 2021 report (Section I, Exhibit I, Column (10) 

+ Item (11B) minus Section I, Exhibit I, Column (10) of the December 31, 2021 

report). A large portion of the increase in ultimate loss and ALAE during the first six 



 9

months of 2022 is due to changes in the parental award increase to include all 

previously deceased NICA accepted claimants and the increase in reserves to cover 

additional retroactive family care payments.  Current reserve estimates reflect the 

purchase of insurance coverage to cover a large portion of the cost on a prospective 

basis. 

 

A summary of the changes in the overall estimate of ultimate loss and ALAE from 

December 31, 2021 to June 30, 2022 (excluding the $ 17.0 million increase related 

to retroactive family care not allocated to birth year) is shown in the table on the 

following page. 

 

 

 

 



 10

 
  Ultimate - After Inflation & Discount 

   ----------------------------------------------- 
Birth     Change 
Year   12/31/21  6/30/22  (3) - (2) 

----------  ---------- ---------- ---------- 
(1)  (2) (3) (4) 

     
1989  29,164,798  30,635,523  1,470,724  
1990  20,108,535  20,736,127  627,592  
1991  29,000,326  29,822,505  822,179  
1992  60,959,954  61,396,644  436,690  
1993  55,851,901  56,816,935  965,035  
1994  23,840,925  25,668,784  1,827,859  
1995  38,191,482  38,749,639  558,157  
1996  37,761,935  38,619,234  857,299  
1997  55,204,643  56,172,502  967,859  
1998  78,542,806  79,159,282  616,476  
1999  26,751,661  28,677,722  1,926,061  
2000  22,045,609  23,166,811  1,121,202  
2001 27,943,745  28,984,844  1,041,099  
2002 75,244,402  76,347,837  1,103,434  
2003  20,700,364  21,428,042  727,678  
2004  32,086,377  32,958,631  872,253  
2005  41,169,699  42,105,667  935,968  
2006  55,702,969  56,649,910  946,941  
2007  42,093,230  43,445,772  1,352,541  
2008  54,154,198  55,105,306  951,108  
2009  58,232,412  59,204,457  972,045  
2010  31,666,339  32,662,768  996,428  
2011  56,679,611  57,009,938  330,327  
2012  41,886,269  42,213,719  327,449  
2013  36,167,322  36,926,852  759,529  
2014  46,087,771  47,246,090  1,158,319  
2015  73,182,063  73,880,051  697,988  
2016  25,752,098  31,633,556  5,881,458  
2017  67,290,308  68,052,004  761,696  
2018  86,657,081  89,332,785  2,675,705  
2019  72,365,997  67,632,195  (4,733,802) 
2020  77,734,132  67,320,234  (10,413,899) 
2021  61,630,342  61,941,784  311,442  

2022 - 6   35,269,248  35,269,248  
     

Totals:  1,561,851,306  1,616,973,394  55,122,088  
 

 



 11

            Loss and LAE reserve estimates referenced above include the separate estimation of 

loss and ALAE and ULAE reserves. The ULAE reserve as of June 30, 2022 is 

developed on Section V, Exhibit I, Sheets 4a and 4b of the prior year-end report (i.e. 

as of December 31, 2021) and will be updated on an annual basis. The present value 

of the ULAE reserve estimate as of December 31, 2021 and as of June 30, 2022 is 

$20.2 million and relates to the loss adjustment expense not allocated to a specific 

claim file that is associated with actual settlement of claims incurred prior to June 30, 

2022. 

 

The loss and LAE reserves are shown in the attached Section I, Exhibit I are stated 

on a present value basis. Since current case reserves established by NICA in the 

case reserve worksheets are recorded on a current (2021) cost level basis, both 

case reserves and the bulk / incurred but not reported (IBNR) reserves as shown in 

Section I, Exhibit I have been adjusted to include the estimated impact of inflation 

between the current (2021) evaluation date and the time at which actual payments 

are expected to be made by NICA. In addition, the payment stream after adjustment 

for inflation has been discounted to reflect an estimate of the investment income 

expected to be earned by NICA on assets representing the reserve funds, between 

the evaluation date of this report and the time period payments are expected to be 

made. The present value loss and LAE reserve estimate of $1,258.6 million is shown 

in Item (12) of Section I, Exhibit I.  

 

Alternative estimates of the loss and ALAE reserve based on a short-term variation 

in the inflation and interest rate assumptions are shown in Section I, Exhibit II. As 

mentioned previously, this alternative is intended to illustrate the potential impact of 

a short term adverse variation in the inflation / interest rate differential from the long 

term selected assumptions of 3.5 % / 5.0 %. The selected inflation and interest rate 

assumptions based on the best estimate and the alternative illustration are shown 

by year in Section IV, Exhibit III, Sheets 3a and 3b. 

 



 12

Actuarial Standards of Practice provide that a risk margin may be included in an 

unpaid claim estimate, and if it is, the risk margin and the basis for calculating it 

should be disclosed. As part of our determination of actuarially sound and 

appropriate reserve levels for NICA, an estimated risk margin was provided in prior 

reports. 

 

The passage of SB 1786 (described below) will impact the risk margin calculation. 

Once the final decisions related to the changes under consideration as a result of 

this law change are taken, a revised risk margin calculation will be developed. In the 

interim we recommend that NICA maintain the current risk margin at a level no lower 

than $75.5 million.  

 

Senate Bill 1786 

 The passage of Senate Bill 1786 (SB 1786), by the Florida Legislature in May 2021 

resulted in increases to the benefit obligations of NICA. As mentioned previously, 

SB 1786 resulted in a number of explicit benefit changes (e.g. an increase in the 

parental award from $ 100,000 to $ 250,000). In addition to these explicit 

modifications SB 1786 will likely result in a change to the allocation of expenses 

previously reimbursed by Medicaid. It is our understanding these expenses may on 

a prospective basis be covered by NICA. Further, it is our understanding there is no 

current specific requirement for NICA to reimburse Medicaid for any payments 

previously made by Medicaid to NICA claimants.  

 

Our understanding of the most significant explicit changes set forth in SB 1786 are 

described below: 

(1) Increase in the Parental Award from the current $ 100,000 maximum to a 

maximum of $ 250,000 for all current NICA claimants. This change will apply 

retroactively to all NICA claimants currently receiving benefit payments. The 

maximum Parental Award will increase by three percent a year beginning on 

January 1, 2022. 



 13

(2) The current death benefit of $ 10,000 will increase to $ 50,000. The new death 

benefit of $ 50,000 will apply to all current open claimants upon their death, 

as well as to all prior children who died since the inception of the program. 

Prior beneficiaries will receive additional amounts to bring the total to $ 50,000 

by July 1, 2021.  

(3) Housing assistance of up to $ 100,000 for the life of the child, including home 

construction and modification cost. 

(4) A total annual benefit of up to $ 10,000 for immediate family members who 

reside with the infant for psychotherapeutic services obtained from providers 

licensed under chapter 490 or chapter 491. We understand NICA interprets 

the $ 10,000 as an aggregate limit for all family members. 

(5) For the life of the child, providing parents or legal guardians with a reliable 

method of transportation for the care of the child or reimbursing the cost of 

upgrading an existing vehicle to accommodate the child’s needs when it 

becomes medically necessary for wheelchair transportation. The plan must 

replace any vans purchased by the plan every seven years or 150,000 miles, 

whichever comes first.  

 

In addition to the changes described above, Section 7 of SB 1786 required the 

Agency for Health Care Administration (“the Agency”) to review its Medicaid third 

party liability functions and rights under Florida statutes relative to NICA. This review 

must assess the extent and value of liabilities owed by NICA as a third-party benefit 

provider. Based on its findings, the Agency shall provide recommendations 

regarding the development of policies and procedures to ensure robust 

implementation of Agency functions and rights relative to the primacy of NICA’s third-

party benefits payable under NICA Statute 766.31 (1)(a)1 and any recoveries due 

the Agency. The final additional liability to NICA will be contingent upon the decisions 

taken by public officials related to the Agency’s report, submitted November 1, 2021.  

 

The reserve estimates as included in this report are based on the assumption that 

NICA will cover the majority of covered expenses on a prospective basis. This may 



 14

include some or all of the expenses that in prior years would have been reimbursed 

by Medicaid. These expenses include Nursing, Hospital, Physician, Drug and 

miscellaneous expenses. However, we are not aware of any specific legislation 

related to potential liability for prior payments made by Medicaid on behalf of NICA 

claimants until specific action is taken, it would be speculative to estimate the 

potential for reimbursement by NICA to Medicaid for payments actually made by 

Medicaid to NICA claimants.  

 

Methodology - General 

As mentioned previously, the methodology used in this report and the prior year-end 

report evaluated as of December 31, 201 changed from the procedures used in 

reports prepared prior to December 31, 2021 (prior reports). While many of the 

methods as used in prior reports remain in the current report in Section V based on 

the year-end report, the majority of the analysis in the current report is new. A 

summary of the new procedure was provided earlier in the text. As mentioned this 

new procedure was included to overcome the one-time changes (i.e. in both 

amounts paid during 2021 and in the case reserving methods implemented at the 

end of 2021) to paid and incurred loss and ALAE amounts as of December 31, 2021 

as a result of the impact of SB 1786. 

 

While many aspects of the new and old procedures are similar the actual application 

varies. The new procedure includes a more directly explicit recognition of the impact 

of expected mortality with regard to the two primary claimant groups (i.e. Class A 

and Classes B, C and D). The mortality tables as selected directly impact the 

duration over which benefits are to be paid. The estimated 2021 level annual 

payment amount selected for each of the three benefit categories are selected based 

on a review of actual payment amounts for the NICA claimants over the period from 

2013 to 2020. The combination of these two components (i.e. duration of payments 

and average 2021 level annual payment) result in an estimate of the current 

outstanding loss and ALAE prior to consideration of anticipated inflation and 

investment income. 



 15

 

In a similar manner the prior procedure results in an estimate of the 2021 level 

outstanding loss and ALAE for each birth year. However, the procedure relied 

primarily on a review of changes in the amounts paid by year and the changes in 

case outstanding loss and ALAE. A primary component of the prior approach 

included an implicit adjustment for increases in life expectancy over time as well as 

for changes in the estimated expense levels. The prior procedure relies upon the 

long-term consistency in the application of benefit levels and case reserving 

procedures. This approach results in the implicit adjustment over time based on 

historical development patterns. The changes resulting from the passage of SB 1786 

distorted the long-term development patterns and will likely require the passage of 

time to fully understand. 

 

While there are advantages and disadvantages to both approaches, the explicit 

consideration included in the new procedure is preferable given the recent legislative 

changes (SB 1786). Both methods result in an estimate of the remaining 2021 level 

outstanding loss and ALAE reserve prior to consideration of anticipated inflation and 

investment income. Since an estimate of the 2021 level payments on a prospective 

basis is required for both methods in order to estimate the impact of prospective 

inflation and investment income another advantage of the revised procedure is the 

explicit payment pattern that results from the new procedure. 

 

 

Methodology – New Procedure 

In summary the new procedure explicitly calculates the benefit payments for parental 

awards and death benefits based on estimates of number of claimants. The 

remaining benefits, are estimated based on the separate estimation of the number 

of years current open NICA claimants will likely require benefits and the average 

annual payment amounts expected. The average payment amounts are segregated 

into three benefit groups and initially stated on a current cost level (2021). The 



 16

estimated 2021 level average annual payment for each of the benefit type are based 

on the review of actual payment information for the period from 2013 to 2020.  

 

 

The three benefit groups are defined as follows: 

(1) Nursing Care – includes all categories 

(2) Hospital, Physician Expense and Drugs 

(3) All Other Expense Categories 

 

This new procedure is also based on the assignment of accepted NICA claimants 

according to the severity of impairment. We initially segregated the claimants into 

four Classes labeled A, B, C or D as shown in Section I, Exhibit III.  In our final 

analysis we regrouped these classes and effectively analyzed the NICA claims 

segregated into two impairment groups (i.e. labeled as Class A and Classes B, C, & 

D). 

 

The historical NICA mortality experience for each of the two impairment groups was 

used to estimate the mortality separately for each of the two impairment groups. 

These mortality tables are used to estimate the expected number of years the 

current NICA open claimants will require payments for the benefits as now defined 

by the NICA legislation. A summary of the number of open claimants by birth year 

and by impairment group, as well as corresponding estimated number of unreported 

claims is shown in Section IV, Exhibit IV, Sheet 1. The number of these claims 

estimated to remain open claimants as of the end of each prospective calendar year 

after consideration of anticipated mortality are shown in Section IV, Exhibit V, Sheets 

1 to 2. 

 

The estimated current level (2021) payment amounts are also developed separately 

for the two impairment groups. In addition, the actual historical payment information 

is further segregated into Medicaid and Non-Medicaid depending on whether or not 

the claimant has historically been receiving Medicaid benefits. This segregation was 



 17

necessary claimants since the prospective payment amounts are based on both 

actual NICA payments as well as Medicaid payments made on behalf of NICA 

claimants. A summary of the actual historical average payment amounts (by 

claimant age) as well as the final selected 2021 level averages for the two 

impairment groups and three benefit types are shown in Section IV, Exhibit IV, 

Sheets 2-5. 

 

The final 2021 level estimates after application of the revised procedure but prior to 

the consideration of prospective inflation and anticipated investment results is shown 

in Section IV, Exhibit I, Sheet 1. 

 

A summary of the year-end 2021 level estimates of ultimate loss and ALAE based 

on the revised procedure as of June 30, 2022, the current procedure developed as 

of December 31, 2021 and the estimates as developed in the quarter ending 

September 31, 2021 are shown in Section III, Exhibit I, Columns (2), (3) and (4), 

respectively. The final selected estimate prior to adjustment to include anticipated 

inflation and discount as of shown in Column (5) is based on the revised 

methodology (i.e. review by impairment severity and payment type). 

 

The final selected current  (year-end 2021) level reserve estimates evaluated as of 

June 30, 2022 are then adjusted to include the estimated impact of prospective 

inflation and anticipated investment income. This adjustment is shown in Section II, 

Exhibit I based on the long-term inflation and investment return selections of 3.5 % 

and 5.0 %, respectively. Due to recent changes in the inflation and investment return 

rates an alternative version is provided as an indication of the sensitivity of the 

current reserve estimate to potential short-term variations in the longer-term 

selections used as our best estimate. The resulting impact on the outstanding loss 

and ALAE reserve based on this alternative variation is shown in Section II, Exhibit 

II. 

 

 



 18

 

The final step in the loss reserve estimation process is to adjust the year-end 2021 

cost level loss reserve estimates referenced above to include the estimated impact 

of prospective inflation (2022 and subsequent) and anticipated investment income 

(discount). The prospective period inflation rate is based on a review of historical 

and recent inflation rates as measured by the Consumer Price Index (both the all 

items and medical services indices) over the time period from 1960 to 2021. The 

prospective period investment returns are selected based on the review of geometric 

averages for investment returns for a model portfolio invested per NICA’s current 

investment policy and for a conservative model portfolio over the period from 1926 

to present as well as actual NICA investment returns over the period from 1991 to 

present. While the actual prospective period inflation rates and investment returns 

are subject to a significant degree of uncertainty the difference or increment between 

inflation and investment returns is of primary importance. Due to recent increases in 

overall inflation levels it is important to monitor any changes in the difference in 

overall inflation and inflation returns. 

 

Based on a review of actual inflation and investment returns we selected an 

increment of one and one – half percent (1.50 %) and a prospective period inflation 

(combination of all items and medical services) rate of three and one-half (3.50%) 

percent. The indicated investment return percentage is then calculated to be five 

percent. In order to illustrate the impact on the loss reserve estimates of changes in 

the overall inflation and investment returns we also have included a range of 

estimates based on increments (average investment return minus average inflation 

rate) of one and two percent in addition to our selected estimate of one and one – 

half (1.50%) percent. 

 

The loss and ALAE reserve estimates are developed based on the selected 

prospective period inflation rate, investment return and the assumed loss payment 

pattern for each birth year. The loss and ALAE payment patterns are developed 

separately for each birth year and are based on the open claims by severity 



 19

category, the estimated annual payment amounts for each benefit group and the 

selected mortality factors. A summary of the outstanding loss and ALAE reserves 

before and after consideration of the inflation and interest adjustment applied to the 

indicated birth year components is shown in Section IV, Exhibit II, Sheets 1, 2 and 

3. 

 

Methodology – “Old” Loss Estimation Methods 

The loss development methods as used in prior reports is not included in the interim 

report as of June 30, 2022. The estimates as developed using these prior methods 

based on the loss information as shown in the December 31, 2021 report are shown 

for reference in Section V, Exhibit I. All support for these estimates is included by 

reference to our year – end report evaluated as of December 31, 2021.  

 

The loss and allocated loss adjustment expense (ALAE) reserve estimates do not 

include a provision for unallocated loss adjustment expense (ULAE) reserves. ULAE 

reserves are intended to cover anticipated loss adjustment expenses not covered in 

the loss and ALAE reserve estimates. 

 

The calculation of the ULAE reserve related to specific claims administration and 

settlement expenses for claims incurred prior to June 30, 2022 is based on the year-

end calculation as shown in Section V, Exhibit I, Sheets 4a and 4b of the December 

31, 2021 report. This procedure is similar to that utilized in the calculation of NICA 

loss and ALAE reserves in that current expense levels are projected forward to 

estimated prospective period cost levels and then adjusted to a present value basis. 

The present value calculation includes consideration of both anticipated investment 

income and expected mortality over the time period. The ULAE reserve included as 

of June 30, 2022 is $ 20.2 million. 

 

The prospective period inflation rate of three (3%) percent is selected to project 

anticipated ULAE expense payment as opposed to the three and one-half (3.5%) 

percent inflation rate selected to inflate loss and ALAE reserve. The somewhat lower 



 20

inflation rate is based on the greater concentration of general and administrative 

expense expected for prospective period ULAE payments. 

 

The mortality adjustment is developed based on current estimates of remaining life 

expectancy as included in the current NICA reserve worksheets. The final mortality 

adjustment is a blended average of average mortality assumptions for each birth 

year. 

 

 

 

 

Historical NICA Inflation 

In order to measure NICA’s historical inflationary increases in claims costs, we 

began by segregating NICA’s claim costs into major claim cost groups. The following 

expense groups were identified: 

 

Family Residential or Custodial Care 

Nursing Care by Others 

Legal Costs 

Parental Awards 

Medical Expenses 

Other 

 

Each of these major expense groups were then examined separately for inflationary 

impacts. For example, relative to nursing care, we tracked the hourly cost of nursing 

care as paid by NICA since the program began in 1989. 

 

An increase in the hourly rate for most parents providing care occurred in June 2008. 

The increase in the hourly rate for most parents effective in June, 2008 (from $9.70 

per hour to $15.00 per hour) resulted in cost under the expense category Nursing 



 21

Care By Parents as shown on Section V, Exhibit VII, Sheets 1a, 1b, 1c and 1d. Some 

of the major expense groups’ inflation rates were estimated using CPI indices. 

 

In addition, the daily rates used to estimate the future cost of custodial residential 

care were revised in December 2004, 2006, and 2012. The reserves for custodial 

residential care apply in the later years when the parents of NICA claimant have 

reached an age where they are no longer able to provide the level of care required. 

This change in the daily rate effectively results in the recognition of inflation that has 

taken place over a number of years related to the cost of custodial residential care. 

Since currently there are only two claims with current custodial residential care 

payments, this increase primarily affects case reserves. The estimated increase in 

the cost of custodial care recorded in 2004, 2006 and 2012 is 40%, 40%, and 95%, 

respectively. 

 

We tabulated the total payments and case outstanding reserves by fiscal year for 

each of the major expense group. By far the largest expense category is nursing 

care. The historical inflation rate for each birth year is estimated by weighting the 

historical inflation rates by expense groups with that expense group’s percentage of 

total payments (or case reserves) by year. Overall, the historical “true” inflation rate 

for NICA has been minimal. On a paid basis inflation has averaged approximately 

one percent over the time period from inception (1989) to current (2021) with the 

only major increase occurring during 2008 and 2009. This inflation rate does not 

include increases related to increased utilization of certain types of nursing and 

custodial care or increases in longevity relative to the initial estimates. These 

increases are reflected in the loss development triangles and are assumed to 

continue although at a decreasing rate as indicated by the declining loss 

development factors in the later development periods. 

 

Prospective NICA Inflation 

Future inflation is estimated as a differential to various consumer price indices 

depending on the type of expense. The largest category, nursing expense, is 



 22

assumed to increase at approximately one to two percent above the CPI – all indices 

annual increase. The overall average annual NICA inflation rate is estimated to be 

1.00 to 2.00 percent above the CPI – All items index. We are assuming a 2.00 % 

increase in CPI – All items currently which gives a current estimate of inflation of 

3.50 %. 

 

Discount Rate 

Because of the long term nature of the NICA liabilities it is reasonable to base the 

discount rates to be used in the determination of NICA’s reserve liabilities on a 

conservative estimate of investment returns likely to be realized on NICA’s assets 

over a long term horizon. In determining assumptions for inflation and discount rates, 

we begin with the consumer price index for all items and determine anticipated 

inflation and discount rates based on long term relationships to the consumer price 

index. 

 

The discount rate assumption is selected based on reasonable expectations for a 

prudent, conservative investment strategy. Section IX shows the change in the CPI 

all items index as compared to returns for various classes of investments from 1926-

2021. Specifically, we have examined returns for both large and small company 

stocks, long and intermediate government bonds, and treasury bills. These indices 

are taken from Ibbotson’s 2009 SBBI Classic Yearbook and updated based on 

recent Federal Reserve data and U.S. Bureau of Labor Reports.  

 

We also calculated the geometric average return, the arithmetic average return, and 

the standard deviation for each class of investment and the model portfolios. Returns 

were then calculated for the periods 1926-1929, 1930-1939, 1940-1949, 1950-1959, 

1960-1969, 1970-1979, 1980-1989, 1990-1999, 2000-2009 and 2010-2019. 

 

Based on this analysis, we recommend that the discount rate used in the discounting 

of NICA’s reserve liabilities ranges from 2 % to 4 % above the CPI - All items index. 

In our current reserve calculations we have assumed a 3.0 % spread to the CPI - All 



 23

items index. Based on a current selected CPI – All items inflation rate of two percent 

this produces a discount rate of 5.0 %. The 5.0 % appears to be reasonable based 

on NICA’s actual average investment returns for the last twenty-eight years and 

based on the long-term averages. 

 

It should be noted that in valuing NICA’s reserve liabilities, the spread between 

inflation and interest rates is the key variable rather than the nominal values of each. 

Here we have assumed a 1.50 % spread between the medical inflation rate and the 

investment rate. At current levels of inflation and interest, this produces an 

assumption of 3.50 % for inflation and 5.00 % for interest income. If it turns out to be 

5.00 % inflation and 6.50 % interest income, this has a minimal impact on the overall 

reserve levels. It is the spread between these two key factors that is the critical 

variable. 

 

Payment Pattern 

 

The payment pattern used in include the impact of anticipated prospective inflation 

and investment income is developed explicitly for each birth year. The actual 

payment pattern includes consideration of the number of NICA claimants by 

impairment group for each birth year, estimated mortality applicable to each 

impairment group and the anticipated annual current level annual payment amounts 

for each of the three expense categories. 

 



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section I
Estimation of Outstanding Loss & Expense Exhibit I

Summary of Estimated Outstanding Loss & ALAE
After Consideration of Anticipated Inflation and Investment Income
Based on Current Long Term Inflation and Investment Income (3.5 % and 5.0 %)

Evaluated as of June 30, 2022

2021 2021
Level Level

Indicated Present
Case Selected Indicated Case Indicated Ultimate After Value

Outstanding Total IBNR / Bulk Outstanding IBNR / Bulk Inflation & Factor 
Paid Incurred Loss & Outstanding Loss & Outstanding Loss & Loss & Present Value Applied to

Birth Loss & Loss & ALAE Loss & ALAE Loss & ALAE ALAE Adjustment Reserves
Year ALAE ALAE (3) - (2) ALAE (a) (5) - (4) ALAE (b)  (4) X [(7)/(5)]  (7) - (8)  (2) + (7)  (8) / (4)
 -------  ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

1989 18,639,776 32,543,854 13,904,078 15,365,601 1,461,523 11,995,747 10,854,752 1,140,994 30,635,523 0.78069
1990 8,524,568 17,973,129 9,448,560 15,700,373 6,251,813 12,211,559 7,348,975 4,862,584 20,736,127 0.77779
1991 12,682,173 28,828,609 16,146,435 22,292,685 6,146,250 17,140,331 12,414,622 4,725,710 29,822,505 0.76888
1992 20,876,784 60,071,103 39,194,320 53,825,496 14,631,176 40,519,860 29,505,503 11,014,357 61,396,644 0.75280
1993 26,775,129 61,329,475 34,554,346 39,401,740 4,847,395 30,041,806 26,345,916 3,695,890 56,816,935 0.76245
1994 11,092,191 29,398,181 18,305,990 19,680,960 1,374,970 14,576,593 13,558,229 1,018,364 25,668,784 0.74064
1995 14,429,871 41,199,698 26,769,828 33,096,652 6,326,824 24,319,768 19,670,751 4,649,017 38,749,639 0.73481
1996 13,730,549 35,850,807 22,120,259 32,171,662 10,051,403 24,888,685 17,112,705 7,775,980 38,619,234 0.77362
1997 17,686,872 59,241,767 41,554,894 52,178,328 10,623,434 38,485,629 30,650,010 7,835,620 56,172,502 0.73758
1998 28,827,267 84,663,149 55,835,882 67,671,255 11,835,373 50,332,015 41,529,191 8,802,824 79,159,282 0.74377
1999 16,758,409 29,398,506 12,640,097 15,252,150 2,612,054 11,919,313 9,878,035 2,041,278 28,677,722 0.78148
2000 9,493,662 20,537,947 11,044,284 18,438,057 7,393,773 13,673,149 8,190,133 5,483,016 23,166,811 0.74157
2001 11,794,520 33,431,617 21,637,097 22,807,423 1,170,325 17,190,324 16,308,231 882,093 28,984,844 0.75372
2002 24,401,471 78,743,226 54,341,755 69,262,517 14,920,762 51,946,366 40,755,907 11,190,459 76,347,837 0.74999
2003 7,468,118 17,847,404 10,379,286 19,129,690 8,750,404 13,959,924 7,574,302 6,385,622 21,428,042 0.72975
2004 8,476,321 37,282,944 28,806,623 34,315,609 5,508,987 24,482,310 20,551,949 3,930,361 32,958,631 0.71345
2005 12,414,481 40,717,261 28,302,779 39,850,532 11,547,752 29,691,185 21,087,374 8,603,811 42,105,667 0.74506
2006 14,366,681 60,399,936 46,033,255 59,020,786 12,987,531 42,283,230 32,978,800 9,304,430 56,649,910 0.71641
2007 15,518,377 45,075,078 29,556,702 36,991,367 7,434,666 27,927,395 22,314,441 5,612,954 43,445,772 0.75497
2008 10,600,146 63,353,088 52,752,942 63,715,591 10,962,650 44,505,160 36,847,780 7,657,380 55,105,306 0.69850
2009 13,207,494 66,507,515 53,300,021 64,857,002 11,556,981 45,996,963 37,800,685 8,196,278 59,204,457 0.70921
2010 5,643,032 30,682,798 25,039,765 40,124,509 15,084,743 27,019,735 16,861,710 10,158,025 32,662,768 0.67340
2011 8,513,280 56,095,741 47,582,461 70,008,909 22,426,448 48,496,658 32,961,381 15,535,277 57,009,938 0.69272
2012 5,909,373 44,704,461 38,795,088 53,696,596 14,901,508 36,304,346 26,229,415 10,074,931 42,213,719 0.67610
2013 8,831,218 40,491,463 31,660,245 38,457,393 6,797,148 28,095,634 23,129,874 4,965,760 36,926,852 0.73057
2014 9,943,794 46,482,713 36,538,919 54,542,873 18,003,954 37,302,296 24,989,252 12,313,044 47,246,090 0.68391
2015 9,887,820 82,870,503 72,982,683 93,336,500 20,353,817 63,992,231 50,037,496 13,954,735 73,880,051 0.68561
2016 2,952,791 32,002,006 29,049,215 42,644,037 13,594,822 28,680,765 19,537,402 9,143,363 31,633,556 0.67256
2017 6,306,695 62,946,725 56,640,030 92,612,628 35,972,598 61,745,309 37,762,196 23,983,114 68,052,004 0.66671
2018 9,232,805 93,144,303 83,911,498 122,956,802 39,045,304 80,099,980 54,663,989 25,435,991 89,332,785 0.65145
2019 5,332,847 52,632,430 47,299,583 95,082,762 47,783,178 62,299,348 30,991,245 31,308,102 67,632,195 0.65521
2020 3,520,456 40,359,558 36,839,103 97,229,321 60,390,218 63,799,778 24,173,023 39,626,755 67,320,234 0.65618
2021 1,682,031 4,915,238 3,233,207 91,811,158 88,577,950 60,259,753 2,122,098 58,137,655 61,941,784 0.65634

2022 - 6 mo. 0 0 0 53,524,645 53,524,645 35,269,248 0 35,269,248 35,269,248 0.65893

Totals: 395,520,999 1,531,722,231 1,136,201,231 1,741,053,608 604,852,377 1,221,452,395 806,737,373 414,715,021 1,616,973,394

 (11A) Estimated Outstanding ULAE - 12/31/21 (c) =====> 20,162,351
 (11B) Estimated Outstanding Retroactive Family Care Reserve 6/30/22 (d) =====> 17,000,000

(12) Indicated Outstanding Loss & LAE - 6/30/22  = Col. (7) Total + (11A) + (11B) 1,258,614,746

Notes: (a) See Section II, Exhibit I, Col. (2).
(b) See Section II, Exhibit I, Col. (9).
(c) See Section V, Exhibit I, Sheet 4b, Col. (9) of the NICA December 31, 2021 report.
(d) NICA management's best estimate of retroactive family care payments related to legislative changes implemented in the first half of 2022. The majority of these

one-time family care adjustments are expected to be made by December 31, 2022.

 2021 Level - Information Provided
as of 6/30/22

  -------------------------------------------
Loss & Expense Reserve - After

Inflation and Present Value Adjustment
   -----------------------------------------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section I
Estimation of Outstanding Loss & Expense Exhibit II

Summary of Estimated Outstanding Loss & ALAE
After Consideration of Anticipated Inflation and Investment Income
Alternative Inflation / Investment Assumptions - Short Term Inflation Increase and Investment Decrease 
Before Return to Long Term Assumptions(3.5 % Inflation and 5.0 % Investment Income)

Evaluated as of June 30, 2022

2021 2021
Level Level

Indicated
Case Selected Indicated Case Indicated Ultimate After

Outstanding Total IBNR / Bulk Outstanding IBNR / Bulk Inflation &
Paid Incurred Loss & Outstanding Loss & Outstanding Loss & Loss & Present Value

Birth Loss & Loss & ALAE Loss & ALAE Loss & ALAE ALAE Adjustment
Year ALAE ALAE  (3) - (2) ALAE (a)  (5) - (4) ALAE (b)  (4) X [(7)/(5)]  (7) - (8)  (2) + (7)
 -------  ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)

1989 18,639,776 32,543,854 13,904,078 15,365,601 1,461,523 13,020,641 11,782,162 1,238,479 31,660,417
1990 8,524,568 17,973,129 9,448,560 15,700,373 6,251,813 13,251,118 7,974,587 5,276,531 21,775,686
1991 12,682,173 28,828,609 16,146,435 22,292,685 6,146,250 18,594,936 13,468,182 5,126,754 31,277,109
1992 20,876,784 60,071,103 39,194,320 53,825,496 14,631,176 43,995,886 32,036,655 11,959,231 64,872,670
1993 26,775,129 61,329,475 34,554,346 39,401,740 4,847,395 32,613,275 28,601,031 4,012,244 59,388,404
1994 11,092,191 29,398,181 18,305,990 19,680,960 1,374,970 15,810,543 14,705,972 1,104,571 26,902,734
1995 14,429,871 41,199,698 26,769,828 33,096,652 6,326,824 26,400,907 21,354,055 5,046,852 40,830,778
1996 13,730,549 35,850,807 22,120,259 32,171,662 10,051,403 26,997,303 18,562,527 8,434,776 40,727,852
1997 17,686,872 59,241,767 41,554,894 52,178,328 10,623,434 41,751,778 33,251,175 8,500,603 59,438,650
1998 28,827,267 84,663,149 55,835,882 67,671,255 11,835,373 54,639,864 45,083,618 9,556,246 83,467,131
1999 16,758,409 29,398,506 12,640,097 15,252,150 2,612,054 12,935,310 10,720,034 2,215,276 29,693,718
2000 9,493,662 20,537,947 11,044,284 18,438,057 7,393,773 14,839,928 8,889,027 5,950,901 24,333,590
2001 11,794,520 33,431,617 21,637,097 22,807,423 1,170,325 18,661,162 17,703,595 957,567 30,455,682
2002 24,401,471 78,743,226 54,341,755 69,262,517 14,920,762 56,390,857 44,242,951 12,147,906 80,792,327
2003 7,468,118 17,847,404 10,379,286 19,129,690 8,750,404 15,150,798 8,220,440 6,930,358 22,618,916
2004 8,476,321 37,282,944 28,806,623 34,315,609 5,508,987 26,571,474 22,305,722 4,265,753 35,047,796
2005 12,414,481 40,717,261 28,302,779 39,850,532 11,547,752 32,225,411 22,887,241 9,338,171 44,639,893
2006 14,366,681 60,399,936 46,033,255 59,020,786 12,987,531 45,877,257 35,781,961 10,095,296 60,243,937
2007 15,518,377 45,075,078 29,556,702 36,991,367 7,434,666 30,307,662 24,216,313 6,091,349 45,826,038
2008 10,600,146 63,353,088 52,752,942 63,715,591 10,962,650 48,277,702 39,971,234 8,306,468 58,877,848
2009 13,207,494 66,507,515 53,300,021 64,857,002 11,556,981 49,916,168 41,021,520 8,894,648 63,123,662
2010 5,643,032 30,682,798 25,039,765 40,124,509 15,084,743 29,314,508 18,293,767 11,020,741 34,957,540
2011 8,513,280 56,095,741 47,582,461 70,008,909 22,426,448 52,611,060 35,757,788 16,853,272 61,124,340
2012 5,909,373 44,704,461 38,795,088 53,696,596 14,901,508 39,380,276 28,451,734 10,928,542 45,289,649
2013 8,831,218 40,491,463 31,660,245 38,457,393 6,797,148 30,504,123 25,112,675 5,391,448 39,335,341
2014 9,943,794 46,482,713 36,538,919 54,542,873 18,003,954 40,497,118 27,129,501 13,367,617 50,440,911
2015 9,887,820 82,870,503 72,982,683 93,336,500 20,353,817 69,422,540 54,283,621 15,138,918 79,310,359
2016 2,952,791 32,002,006 29,049,215 42,644,037 13,594,822 31,092,954 21,180,591 9,912,363 34,045,745
2017 6,306,695 62,946,725 56,640,030 92,612,628 35,972,598 66,945,614 40,942,598 26,003,016 73,252,308
2018 9,232,805 93,144,303 83,911,498 122,956,802 39,045,304 86,812,365 59,244,836 27,567,529 96,045,171
2019 5,332,847 52,632,430 47,299,583 95,082,762 47,783,178 67,515,657 33,586,135 33,929,522 72,848,504
2020 3,520,456 40,359,558 36,839,103 97,229,321 60,390,218 69,003,315 26,144,585 42,858,730 72,523,771
2021 1,682,031 4,915,238 3,233,207 91,811,158 88,577,950 65,055,361 2,290,979 62,764,382 66,737,392

2022 - 6 mo. 0 0 0 53,524,645 53,524,645 38,038,219 0 38,038,219 38,038,219

Totals: 395,520,999 1,531,722,231 1,136,201,231 1,741,053,608 604,852,377 1,324,423,088 875,198,808 449,224,280 1,719,944,088

 (11A) Estimated Outstanding ULAE - 12/31/21 (c) =====> 20,162,351
 (11B) Estimated Outstanding Retroactive Family Care Reserve 6/30/22 (d) =====> 17,000,000

 (12) Indicated Outstanding Loss & LAE - 6/30/22  = Col. (7) Total + (11A) + (11B) 1,361,585,439

Notes: (a) See Section II, Exhibit II, Col. (2).
            (b) See Section II, Exhibit II, Col. (9).
            (c) See Section V, Exhibit I, Sheet 4b, Col. (9) of the NICA December 31, 2021 report.
            (d) NICA management's best estimate of retroactive family care payments related to legislative changes implemented in the first half of 2022. The majority of these
                 one-time family care adjustments are expected to be made by December 31, 2022.

   -----------------------------------------------------------

 2021 Level - Information Provided
as of 6/30/22 Loss & Expense Reserve - After

  ------------------------------------------- Inflation and Present Value Adjustment



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section I
Exhibit III

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & Expense

Summary of Estimate Based on Review By Claim Class and Expense Category

Description of Selected Claim Classification Categories

Mobility # Mobility Category Feeding # Feeding Category
 ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐  ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐  ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐  ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

(1) (2) (3) (4)

1 Cannot Lift Head 1 Tube Fed
2 Lifts Head but Unable to Roll or Sit 2 Fed By Others
3 Rolls / Sits but cannot Walk 3 Feeds Self
4 Walks

Combination Combination Final Class Assigned
Mobility Feeding Mobility # Feeding # Combination Number Assignment Severity
 ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐  ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐  ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐  ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐  ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐  ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐  ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

Cannot Lift Head Tube Fed 1 1 1-1 A Most Severe
Lifts Head but Unable to Roll or Sit Tube Fed 2 1 2-1 B Severe

Rolls / Sits but cannot Walk Tube Fed 3 1 3-1 B Severe
Walks Tube Fed 4 1 4-1 C Moderate

Cannot Lift Head Fed By Others 1 2 1-2 B Severe
Lifts Head but Unable to Roll or Sit Fed By Others 2 2 2-2 C Moderate

Rolls / Sits but cannot Walk Fed By Others 3 2 3-2 C Moderate
Walks Fed By Others 4 2 4-2 D Least Severe

Cannot Lift Head Feeds Self 1 3 1-3 B Severe
Lifts Head but Unable to Roll or Sit Feeds Self 2 3 2-3 C Moderate

Rolls / Sits but cannot Walk Feeds Self 3 3 3-3 D Least Severe
Walks Feeds Self 4 3 4-3 D Least Severe



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section II
Estimation of Outstanding Loss & Expense Exhibit I

Summary of Estimated Outstanding Loss & ALAE
Before and After Consideration of Anticipated Inflation and Investment Income
Based on Current Long Term Inflation and Investment Income (3.5 % and 5.0 %)

Evaluated as of June 30, 2022

Selected Indicated
Outstanding Outstanding
Loss & ALAE Outstanding Loss & ALAE
All Categories Loss & ALAE Related to the Review of Related to Related to 

Incl. Related to All Classes and Three Related to Related to Parental Award, Impair. Class /
Parental Award, Parental Award, Expense Categories Parental Award, Impair. Class / Burial Expense & Three Expense

Birth Burial Expense & Burial Expense & Burial Expense & Three Expense DA Claims Group Review Combined
Year DA Claims (a) DA Claims (b)  (2) - (3) DA Claims (c) Group Review  (3) X (5)  (4) X (6)  (7) + (8)
 -------  -------------  -------------  -------------  -------------  -------------  -------------  -------------  -------------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

1989 15,365,601 205,570 15,160,031 0.53061 0.78408 109,077 11,886,669 11,995,747
1990 15,700,373 250,000 15,450,373 0.61067 0.78049 152,667 12,058,892 12,211,559
1991 22,292,685 350,231 21,942,454 0.61260 0.77137 214,550 16,925,781 17,140,331
1992 53,825,496 450,000 53,375,496 0.27610 0.75682 124,247 40,395,613 40,519,860
1993 39,401,740 425,000 38,976,740 0.44116 0.76595 187,493 29,854,313 30,041,806
1994 19,680,960 337,500 19,343,460 0.65938 0.74206 222,542 14,354,051 14,576,593
1995 33,096,652 300,000 32,796,652 0.35723 0.73826 107,168 24,212,600 24,319,768
1996 32,171,662 625,000 31,546,662 0.69704 0.77514 435,649 24,453,036 24,888,685
1997 52,178,328 799,976 51,378,352 0.62776 0.73929 502,192 37,983,437 38,485,629
1998 67,671,255 698,939 66,972,316 0.44439 0.74690 310,598 50,021,417 50,332,015
1999 15,252,150 250,000 15,002,150 0.64226 0.78380 160,564 11,758,749 11,919,313
2000 18,438,057 225,008 18,213,049 0.53536 0.74412 120,460 13,552,689 13,673,149
2001 22,807,423 250,000 22,557,423 0.47774 0.75677 119,435 17,070,889 17,190,324
2002 69,262,517 721,501 68,541,016 0.45378 0.75311 327,404 51,618,962 51,946,366
2003 19,129,690 230,066 18,899,624 0.53782 0.73209 123,735 13,836,189 13,959,924
2004 34,315,609 368,788 33,946,821 0.49082 0.71586 181,010 24,301,299 24,482,310
2005 39,850,532 500,000 39,350,532 0.54658 0.74759 273,288 29,417,898 29,691,185
2006 59,020,786 781,823 58,238,963 0.58555 0.71817 457,799 41,825,431 42,283,230
2007 36,991,367 490,000 36,501,367 0.56119 0.75757 274,985 27,652,410 27,927,395
2008 63,715,591 855,404 62,860,187 0.60053 0.69983 513,694 43,991,466 44,505,160
2009 64,857,002 680,000 64,177,002 0.47637 0.71167 323,931 45,673,032 45,996,963
2010 40,124,509 434,957 39,689,552 0.52286 0.67505 227,421 26,792,314 27,019,735
2011 70,008,909 896,686 69,112,223 0.58287 0.69415 522,654 47,974,004 48,496,658
2012 53,696,596 689,954 53,006,642 0.59607 0.67714 411,258 35,893,087 36,304,346
2013 38,457,393 370,000 38,087,393 0.39693 0.73381 146,863 27,948,771 28,095,634
2014 54,542,873 440,017 54,102,856 0.32991 0.68679 145,166 37,157,131 37,302,296
2015 93,336,500 1,272,964 92,063,536 0.60115 0.68678 765,245 63,226,987 63,992,231
2016 42,644,037 779,510 41,864,527 0.70931 0.67188 552,914 28,127,852 28,680,765
2017 92,612,628 1,512,341 91,100,287 0.67397 0.66658 1,019,268 60,726,041 61,745,309
2018 122,956,802 2,233,431 120,723,371 0.71474 0.65028 1,596,311 78,503,668 80,099,980
2019 95,082,762 1,797,496 93,285,266 0.72088 0.65395 1,295,774 61,003,574 62,299,348
2020 97,229,321 3,450,815 93,778,505 0.85400 0.64890 2,947,009 60,852,769 63,799,778
2021 91,811,158 4,680,360 87,130,798 0.90012 0.64325 4,212,866 56,046,887 60,259,753

2022 - 6 Mo. 53,524,645 3,180,360 50,344,285 0.91508 0.64275 2,910,269 32,358,980 35,269,248

Totals: 1,741,053,608 31,533,697 1,709,519,911 21,995,508 1,199,456,887 1,221,452,395

Notes: (a) See Section IV, Exhibit I, Sheet 1, Col. (4).
            (b) See Section IV, Exhibit I, Sheet 1, Col. (3).
            (c) See Section IV, Exhibit I, Sheet 2, Col. (6).
            (d) See Section IV, Exhibit I, Sheet 2, Col. (5).

Indicated Outstanding Loss & ALAE
After Inflation / Investment

 -------------------------------------------------------

  ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 2021 Level Outstanding - Before Inflation and Investment Income

Estimated Average Inflation /
Investment Discount Factor

 -----------------------------------------

Evaluated as of June 30, 2022



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section II
Estimation of Outstanding Loss & Expense Exhibit II

Summary of Estimated Outstanding Loss & ALAE
Before and After Consideration of Anticipated Inflation and Investment Income
Alternative Inflation / Investment Assumptions - Short Term Inflation Increase and Investment Decrease 
Before Return to Long Term Assumptions (3.5 % Inflation and 5.0 % Investment Income)
Evaluated as of June 30, 2022

Selected Indicated
Outstanding Outstanding
Loss & ALAE Outstanding Loss & ALAE
All Categories Loss & ALAE Related to the Review of Related to Related to 

Incl. Related to All Classes and Three Related to Related to Parental Award, Impair. Class /
Parental Award, Parental Award, Expense Categories Parental Award, Impair. Class / Burial Expense & Three Expense

Birth Burial Expense & Burial Expense & Burial Expense & Three Expense DA Claims Group Review Combined
Year DA Claims (a) DA Claims (b)  (2) - (3) DA Claims (c) Group Review  (3) X (5)  (4) X (6)  (7) + (8)
 -------  -------------  -------------  -------------  -------------  -------------  -------------  -------------  -------------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

1989 15,365,601 205,570 15,160,031 0.53061 0.85168 109,077 12,911,563 13,020,641
1990 15,700,373 250,000 15,450,373 0.61067 0.84778 152,667 13,098,451 13,251,118
1991 22,292,685 350,231 21,942,454 0.61260 0.83766 214,550 18,380,385 18,594,936
1992 53,825,496 450,000 53,375,496 0.27610 0.82194 124,247 43,871,639 43,995,886
1993 39,401,740 425,000 38,976,740 0.44116 0.83193 187,493 32,425,782 32,613,275
1994 19,680,960 337,500 19,343,460 0.65938 0.80585 222,542 15,588,001 15,810,543
1995 33,096,652 300,000 32,796,652 0.35723 0.80172 107,168 26,293,739 26,400,907
1996 32,171,662 625,000 31,546,662 0.69704 0.84198 435,649 26,561,654 26,997,303
1997 52,178,328 799,976 51,378,352 0.62776 0.80286 502,192 41,249,586 41,751,778
1998 67,671,255 698,939 66,972,316 0.44439 0.81122 310,598 54,329,266 54,639,864
1999 15,252,150 250,000 15,002,150 0.64226 0.85153 160,564 12,774,746 12,935,310
2000 18,438,057 225,008 18,213,049 0.53536 0.80818 120,460 14,719,467 14,839,928
2001 22,807,423 250,000 22,557,423 0.47774 0.82198 119,435 18,541,727 18,661,162
2002 69,262,517 721,501 68,541,016 0.45378 0.81795 327,404 56,063,452 56,390,857
2003 19,129,690 230,066 18,899,624 0.53782 0.79510 123,735 15,027,063 15,150,798
2004 34,315,609 368,788 33,946,821 0.49082 0.77741 181,010 26,390,464 26,571,474
2005 39,850,532 500,000 39,350,532 0.54658 0.81199 273,288 31,952,124 32,225,411
2006 59,020,786 781,823 58,238,963 0.58555 0.77988 457,799 45,419,458 45,877,257
2007 36,991,367 490,000 36,501,367 0.56119 0.82278 274,985 30,032,677 30,307,662
2008 63,715,591 855,404 62,860,187 0.60053 0.75985 513,694 47,764,008 48,277,702
2009 64,857,002 680,000 64,177,002 0.47637 0.77274 323,931 49,592,237 49,916,168
2010 40,124,509 434,957 39,689,552 0.52286 0.73287 227,421 29,087,086 29,314,508
2011 70,008,909 896,686 69,112,223 0.58287 0.75368 522,654 52,088,406 52,611,060
2012 53,696,596 689,954 53,006,642 0.59607 0.73517 411,258 38,969,017 39,380,276
2013 38,457,393 370,000 38,087,393 0.39693 0.79704 146,863 30,357,260 30,504,123
2014 54,542,873 440,017 54,102,856 0.32991 0.74584 145,166 40,351,952 40,497,118
2015 93,336,500 1,272,964 92,063,536 0.60115 0.74576 765,245 68,657,295 69,422,540
2016 42,644,037 779,510 41,864,527 0.70931 0.72950 552,914 30,540,041 31,092,954
2017 92,612,628 1,512,341 91,100,287 0.67397 0.72367 1,019,268 65,926,345 66,945,614
2018 122,956,802 2,233,431 120,723,371 0.71474 0.70588 1,596,311 85,216,054 86,812,365
2019 95,082,762 1,797,496 93,285,266 0.72088 0.70986 1,295,774 66,219,883 67,515,657
2020 97,229,321 3,450,815 93,778,505 0.85400 0.70439 2,947,009 66,056,306 69,003,315
2021 91,811,158 4,680,360 87,130,798 0.90012 0.69829 4,212,866 60,842,495 65,055,361

2022 - 6 Mo. 53,524,645 3,180,360 50,344,285 0.91508 0.69775 2,910,269 35,127,950 38,038,219

Totals: 1,741,053,608 31,533,697 1,709,519,911 21,995,508 1,302,427,581 1,324,423,088

Notes: (a) See Section IV, Exhibit I, Sheet 1, Col. (4).
            (b) See Section IV, Exhibit I, Sheet 1, Col. (3).
            (c) See Section IV, Exhibit I, Sheet 3, Col. (6).
            (d) See Section IV, Exhibit I, Sheet 3, Col. (5).

Evaluated as of June 30, 2022
  ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 2021 Level Outstanding - Before Inflation and Investment Income

Investment Discount Factor After Inflation / Investment
 -----------------------------------------  -------------------------------------------------------

Indicated Outstanding Loss & ALAEEstimated Average Inflation /



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section III
Exhibit I

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & Expense

Summary of Estimates of Ultimate Loss & ALAE -  Based on New and Old Methods
Indicated Ultimate Loss & ALAE - 2021 Level

Before Consideration of Inflation and Anticipated Investment Income

Evaluated as of June 30, 2022

Estimate Based Estimate Based
on Analysis By on Analysis By Estimate Selected
Claim Class & Claim Class & Based on Estimate of

Birth Expense Category (a) Expense Category (b) 09/30/21 Ultimate Loss & 
Year  6 30 22 12/31/21 Report ALAE - 2021 Level
 -------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

1989 34,005,377 32,531,835 36,662,263 34,005,377
1990 24,224,941 23,594,532 19,525,709 24,224,941
1991 34,974,858 34,149,931 38,733,928 34,974,858
1992 74,702,279 74,257,775 76,245,975 74,702,279
1993 66,176,869 65,205,384 70,207,559 66,176,869
1994 30,773,151 28,942,798 33,892,584 30,773,151
1995 47,526,522 46,964,221 44,356,167 47,526,522
1996 45,902,210 45,039,010 46,750,616 45,902,210
1997 69,865,200 68,890,417 68,848,332 69,865,200
1998 96,498,522 95,872,867 106,935,501 96,498,522
1999 32,010,559 30,081,657 37,886,976 32,010,559
2000 27,931,720 26,807,961 28,766,865 27,931,720
2001 34,601,943 33,557,243 44,727,572 34,601,943
2002 93,663,988 92,549,748 111,882,483 93,663,988
2003 26,597,808 25,867,967 24,000,284 26,597,808
2004 42,791,931 41,916,185 44,811,277 42,791,931
2005 52,265,013 51,323,709 57,226,123 52,265,013
2006 73,387,467 72,434,030 77,375,631 73,387,467
2007 52,509,744 51,151,688 59,899,710 52,509,744
2008 74,315,737 73,358,300 87,975,106 74,315,737
2009 78,064,496 77,085,108 100,885,337 78,064,496
2010 45,767,541 44,767,787 51,340,292 45,767,541
2011 78,522,189 78,184,688 88,632,666 78,522,189
2012 59,605,969 59,273,688 62,667,540 59,605,969
2013 47,288,611 46,525,009 53,000,465 47,288,611
2014 64,486,667 63,324,219 62,311,851 64,486,667
2015 103,224,320 102,518,960 112,648,795 103,224,320
2016 45,596,828 36,724,044 41,628,923 45,596,828
2017 98,919,323 98,151,022 87,764,194 98,919,323
2018 132,189,607 128,833,007 114,454,803 132,189,607
2019 100,415,608 107,623,510 115,339,086 100,415,608
2020 100,749,776 118,365,025 110,857,185 100,749,776
2021 93,493,188 92,461,768 94,962,746 93,493,188

2022 - 6 mo. 53,524,645 53,524,645

Totals:
1989 to 2022 2,136,574,607 2,068,335,092 2,213,204,546 2,136,574,607
1989 to 2021 2,083,049,962 2,068,335,092 2,213,204,546 2,083,049,962

Notes: (a) See Section IV, Exhibit I, Sheet 1, Col. (6).
            (b) See Section III, Exhibit I Col. (2) of December 31, 2021 report..

Indicated Ultimate Loss & ALAE - 2021 Level
Based on 2021 Level Outstanding + Actual Paid

 -----------------------------------------------------------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section III
Exhibit II

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & Expense

Summary of Estimates of Outstanding Loss & ALAE -  Based on New and Old Methods
 2021 Level - Prior to Inflation and Investment Income

Evaluated as of June 30, 2022

Based on Based on  2021 Level
Analysis By Analysis By 

Claim Class & Claim Class & Case Indicated
Birth Expense Category Expense Category Paid Incurred Outstanding Bulk / IBNR
Year  6 30 22 12/31/21 Selected Loss & ALAE Loss & ALAE  (6) - (5)  (4) - (7)
 -------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

1989 15,365,601 15,645,841 15,365,601 18,639,776 32,543,854 13,904,078 1,461,523
1990 15,700,373 15,980,474 15,700,373 8,524,568 17,973,129 9,448,560 6,251,813
1991 22,292,685 22,565,989 22,292,685 12,682,173 28,828,609 16,146,435 6,146,250
1992 53,825,496 54,602,551 53,825,496 20,876,784 60,071,103 39,194,320 14,631,176
1993 39,401,740 40,043,210 39,401,740 26,775,129 61,329,475 34,554,346 4,847,395
1994 19,680,960 19,928,949 19,680,960 11,092,191 29,398,181 18,305,990 1,374,970
1995 33,096,652 33,508,825 33,096,652 14,429,871 41,199,698 26,769,828 6,326,824
1996 32,171,662 32,758,455 32,171,662 13,730,549 35,850,807 22,120,259 10,051,403
1997 52,178,328 52,866,860 52,178,328 17,686,872 59,241,767 41,554,894 10,623,434
1998 67,671,255 68,583,976 67,671,255 28,827,267 84,663,149 55,835,882 11,835,373
1999 15,252,150 15,534,633 15,252,150 16,758,409 29,398,506 12,640,097 2,612,054
2000 18,438,057 18,692,281 18,438,057 9,493,662 20,537,947 11,044,284 7,393,773
2001 22,807,423 23,165,454 22,807,423 11,794,520 33,431,617 21,637,097 1,170,325
2002 69,262,517 70,337,033 69,262,517 24,401,471 78,743,226 54,341,755 14,920,762
2003 19,129,690 19,344,805 19,129,690 7,468,118 17,847,404 10,379,286 8,750,404
2004 34,315,609 34,662,903 34,315,609 8,476,321 37,282,944 28,806,623 5,508,987
2005 39,850,532 40,381,168 39,850,532 12,414,481 40,717,261 28,302,779 11,547,752
2006 59,020,786 59,666,782 59,020,786 14,366,681 60,399,936 46,033,255 12,987,531
2007 36,991,367 37,539,699 36,991,367 15,518,377 45,075,078 29,556,702 7,434,666
2008 63,715,591 64,344,963 63,715,591 10,600,146 63,353,088 52,752,942 10,962,650
2009 64,857,002 65,587,151 64,857,002 13,207,494 66,507,515 53,300,021 11,556,981
2010 40,124,509 40,455,213 40,124,509 5,643,032 30,682,798 25,039,765 15,084,743
2011 70,008,909 70,722,290 70,008,909 8,513,280 56,095,741 47,582,461 22,426,448
2012 53,696,596 54,177,017 53,696,596 5,909,373 44,704,461 38,795,088 14,901,508
2013 38,457,393 38,862,370 38,457,393 8,831,218 40,491,463 31,660,245 6,797,148
2014 54,542,873 54,953,334 54,542,873 9,943,794 46,482,713 36,538,919 18,003,954
2015 93,336,500 94,069,513 93,336,500 9,887,820 82,870,503 72,982,683 20,353,817
2016 42,644,037 34,548,158 42,644,037 2,952,791 32,002,006 29,049,215 13,594,822
2017 92,612,628 93,269,404 92,612,628 6,306,695 62,946,725 56,640,030 35,972,598
2018 122,956,802 122,657,963 122,956,802 9,232,805 93,144,303 83,911,498 39,045,304
2019 95,082,762 103,179,866 95,082,762 5,332,847 52,632,430 47,299,583 47,783,178
2020 97,229,321 117,224,414 97,229,321 3,520,456 40,359,558 36,839,103 60,390,218
2021 91,811,158 91,467,738 91,811,158 1,682,031 4,915,238 3,233,207 88,577,950

2022 - 6mo. 53,524,645 53,524,645 0 0 0 53,524,645

Totals: 1,741,053,608 1,721,329,283 1,741,053,608 395,520,999 1,531,722,231 1,136,201,231 604,852,377

1989 to 2021 1,687,528,963 1,721,329,283 1,687,528,963 395,520,999 1,531,722,231 1,136,201,231 551,327,731

Notes: (a) See Section IV, Exhibit I, Sheet 1, Column (4).
            (b) See Section V, Exhibit I, Sheet 1, Column (5).

Indicated Outstanding Loss & ALAE - 2021 Level
 -------------------------------------------------------------------------

  -------------------------------------------------------------------
Based on Information Provided By NICA as of 6 30 22



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit I

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & Expense Sheet 1

Summary of Estimate Based on Review By Claim Class and Expense Category

Outstanding Loss & ALAE - 2021 Expense Level
Before Consideration of Inflation and Anticipated Investment Income

Evaluated as of June 30, 2022

2021 Level
2021 Level Outstanding 2021 Level 2021 Level
Outstanding Loss & ALAE Outstanding Cumulative Ultimate
Loss & ALAE Related to Loss & ALAE Loss & ALAE Loss & ALAE

Related to the Review of Parental Award, Combined Payments
Birth All Classes and Three Burial Expense & as of 
Year Expense Categories (a) DA Claims (b)  (2) + (3)  6 30 22  (4) + (5)
 -------  -------------------------  -------------------------  -------------------------  -----------------  -----------------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

1989 15,160,031 205,570 15,365,601 18,639,776 34,005,377
1990 15,450,373 250,000 15,700,373 8,524,568 24,224,941
1991 21,942,454 350,231 22,292,685 12,682,173 34,974,858
1992 53,375,496 450,000 53,825,496 20,876,784 74,702,279
1993 38,976,740 425,000 39,401,740 26,775,129 66,176,869
1994 19,343,460 337,500 19,680,960 11,092,191 30,773,151
1995 32,796,652 300,000 33,096,652 14,429,871 47,526,522
1996 31,546,662 625,000 32,171,662 13,730,549 45,902,210
1997 51,378,352 799,976 52,178,328 17,686,872 69,865,200
1998 66,972,316 698,939 67,671,255 28,827,267 96,498,522
1999 15,002,150 250,000 15,252,150 16,758,409 32,010,559
2000 18,213,049 225,008 18,438,057 9,493,662 27,931,720
2001 22,557,423 250,000 22,807,423 11,794,520 34,601,943
2002 68,541,016 721,501 69,262,517 24,401,471 93,663,988
2003 18,899,624 230,066 19,129,690 7,468,118 26,597,808
2004 33,946,821 368,788 34,315,609 8,476,321 42,791,931
2005 39,350,532 500,000 39,850,532 12,414,481 52,265,013
2006 58,238,963 781,823 59,020,786 14,366,681 73,387,467
2007 36,501,367 490,000 36,991,367 15,518,377 52,509,744
2008 62,860,187 855,404 63,715,591 10,600,146 74,315,737
2009 64,177,002 680,000 64,857,002 13,207,494 78,064,496
2010 39,689,552 434,957 40,124,509 5,643,032 45,767,541
2011 69,112,223 896,686 70,008,909 8,513,280 78,522,189
2012 53,006,642 689,954 53,696,596 5,909,373 59,605,969
2013 38,087,393 370,000 38,457,393 8,831,218 47,288,611
2014 54,102,856 440,017 54,542,873 9,943,794 64,486,667
2015 92,063,536 1,272,964 93,336,500 9,887,820 103,224,320
2016 41,864,527 779,510 42,644,037 2,952,791 45,596,828
2017 91,100,287 1,512,341 92,612,628 6,306,695 98,919,323
2018 120,723,371 2,233,431 122,956,802 9,232,805 132,189,607
2019 93,285,266 1,797,496 95,082,762 5,332,847 100,415,608
2020 93,778,505 3,450,815 97,229,321 3,520,456 100,749,776
2021 87,130,798 4,680,360 91,811,158 1,682,031 93,493,188

 2022 - 6 mo. 50,344,285 3,180,360 53,524,645 0 53,524,645

Totals: 1,709,519,911 31,533,697 1,741,053,608 395,520,999 2,136,574,607

Notes:(a) See Section IV, Exhibit II, Sheet 1, Column (13).
           (b) See Section IV, Exhibit VI, Sheet 1, Column (8).



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit I

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & Expense Sheet 2

Summary of Estimate Based on Review By Claim Class and Expense Category

Outstanding Loss & ALAE - After Estimated Inflation and Anticipated Investment Income
Based on Current Selected Long-Term Inflation and Investment Income

Evaluated as of June 30, 2022

After Inflation & Discounted After Inflation & Related to Related to 
Discount Outstanding Discount Claim Class / Parental Award,

Outstanding Loss & ALAE Outstanding Three Expense Burial Expense &
Loss & ALAE Related to Loss & ALAE Categories DA Claims (b)

Related to the Review of Parental Award, Combined  Col. (2) /  Col. (3) /
Birth All Classes and Three Burial Expense & Col.(2) Sect. IV Col.(3) Sect. IV
Year Expense Categories (a) DA Claims (b)  (2) + (3) Exh. I, Sh. 1 Exh. I, Sh. 1
 -------  -------------------------  -------------------------  --------------------  ----------------  ----------------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

1989 11,886,669 109,077 11,995,747 0.78408 0.53061
1990 12,058,892 152,667 12,211,559 0.78049 0.61067
1991 16,925,781 214,550 17,140,331 0.77137 0.61260
1992 40,395,613 124,247 40,519,860 0.75682 0.27610
1993 29,854,313 187,493 30,041,806 0.76595 0.44116
1994 14,354,051 222,542 14,576,593 0.74206 0.65938
1995 24,212,600 107,168 24,319,768 0.73826 0.35723
1996 24,453,036 435,649 24,888,685 0.77514 0.69704
1997 37,983,437 502,192 38,485,629 0.73929 0.62776
1998 50,021,417 310,598 50,332,015 0.74690 0.44439
1999 11,758,749 160,564 11,919,313 0.78380 0.64226
2000 13,552,689 120,460 13,673,149 0.74412 0.53536
2001 17,070,889 119,435 17,190,324 0.75677 0.47774
2002 51,618,962 327,404 51,946,366 0.75311 0.45378
2003 13,836,189 123,735 13,959,924 0.73209 0.53782
2004 24,301,299 181,010 24,482,310 0.71586 0.49082
2005 29,417,898 273,288 29,691,185 0.74759 0.54658
2006 41,825,431 457,799 42,283,230 0.71817 0.58555
2007 27,652,410 274,985 27,927,395 0.75757 0.56119
2008 43,991,466 513,694 44,505,160 0.69983 0.60053
2009 45,673,032 323,931 45,996,963 0.71167 0.47637
2010 26,792,314 227,421 27,019,735 0.67505 0.52286
2011 47,974,004 522,654 48,496,658 0.69415 0.58287
2012 35,893,087 411,258 36,304,346 0.67714 0.59607
2013 27,948,771 146,863 28,095,634 0.73381 0.39693
2014 37,157,131 145,166 37,302,296 0.68679 0.32991
2015 63,226,987 765,245 63,992,231 0.68678 0.60115
2016 28,127,852 552,914 28,680,765 0.67188 0.70931
2017 60,726,041 1,019,268 61,745,309 0.66658 0.67397
2018 78,503,668 1,596,311 80,099,980 0.65028 0.71474
2019 61,003,574 1,295,774 62,299,348 0.65395 0.72088
2020 60,852,769 2,947,009 63,799,778 0.64890 0.85400
2021 56,046,887 4,212,866 60,259,753 0.64325 0.90012

 2022 - 6 mo. 32,358,980 2,910,269 35,269,248 0.64275 0.91508

Totals: 1,199,456,887 21,995,508 1,221,452,395 0.70163 0.69752

Notes:(a) See Section IV, Exhibit II, Sheet 2, Column (13).
           (b) See Section IV, Exhibit VI, Sheet 1, Column (9).

Implied Average
Inflation / Investment

Discount Factor
 --------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit I

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & Expense Sheet 3

Summary of Estimate Based on Review By Claim Class and Expense Category

Outstanding Loss & ALAE - After Estimated Inflation and Anticipated Investment Income
Alternative Inflation / Investment Assumptions - Short Term Inflation Increase and Investment Decrease
Before Return to Long Term Assumptions(3.5 % Inflation and 5.0 % Investment Income)

Evaluated as of June 30, 2022

After Inflation & Discounted After Inflation & Related to Related to 
Discount Outstanding Discount Claim Class / Parental Award,

Outstanding Loss & ALAE Outstanding Three Expense Burial Expense &
Loss & ALAE Related to Loss & ALAE Categories DA Claims (b)

Related to the Review of Parental Award, Combined  Col. (2) /  Col. (3) /
Birth All Classes and Three Burial Expense & Col.(2) Sect. IV Col.(3) Sect. IV
Year Expense Categories (a) DA Claims (b)  (2) + (3) Exh. I, Sh. 1 Exh. I, Sh. 1
 -------  -------------------------  -------------------------  -------------------------  ----------------  ----------------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

1989 12,911,563 109,077 13,020,641 0.85168 0.53061
1990 13,098,451 152,667 13,251,118 0.84778 0.61067
1991 18,380,385 214,550 18,594,936 0.83766 0.61260
1992 43,871,639 124,247 43,995,886 0.82194 0.27610
1993 32,425,782 187,493 32,613,275 0.83193 0.44116
1994 15,588,001 222,542 15,810,543 0.80585 0.65938
1995 26,293,739 107,168 26,400,907 0.80172 0.35723
1996 26,561,654 435,649 26,997,303 0.84198 0.69704
1997 41,249,586 502,192 41,751,778 0.80286 0.62776
1998 54,329,266 310,598 54,639,864 0.81122 0.44439
1999 12,774,746 160,564 12,935,310 0.85153 0.64226
2000 14,719,467 120,460 14,839,928 0.80818 0.53536
2001 18,541,727 119,435 18,661,162 0.82198 0.47774
2002 56,063,452 327,404 56,390,857 0.81795 0.45378
2003 15,027,063 123,735 15,150,798 0.79510 0.53782
2004 26,390,464 181,010 26,571,474 0.77741 0.49082
2005 31,952,124 273,288 32,225,411 0.81199 0.54658
2006 45,419,458 457,799 45,877,257 0.77988 0.58555
2007 30,032,677 274,985 30,307,662 0.82278 0.56119
2008 47,764,008 513,694 48,277,702 0.75985 0.60053
2009 49,592,237 323,931 49,916,168 0.77274 0.47637
2010 29,087,086 227,421 29,314,508 0.73287 0.52286
2011 52,088,406 522,654 52,611,060 0.75368 0.58287
2012 38,969,017 411,258 39,380,276 0.73517 0.59607
2013 30,357,260 146,863 30,504,123 0.79704 0.39693
2014 40,351,952 145,166 40,497,118 0.74584 0.32991
2015 68,657,295 765,245 69,422,540 0.74576 0.60115
2016 30,540,041 552,914 31,092,954 0.72950 0.70931
2017 65,926,345 1,019,268 66,945,614 0.72367 0.67397
2018 85,216,054 1,596,311 86,812,365 0.70588 0.71474
2019 66,219,883 1,295,774 67,515,657 0.70986 0.72088
2020 66,056,306 2,947,009 69,003,315 0.70439 0.85400
2021 60,842,495 4,212,866 65,055,361 0.69829 0.90012

 2022 - 6 mo. 35,127,950 2,910,269 38,038,219 0.69775 0.91508

Totals: 1,302,427,581 21,995,508 1,324,423,088 0.76187 0.69752

Notes:(a) See Section IV, Exhibit II, Sheet 3, Column (13).
           (b) See Section IV, Exhibit VI, Sheet 1, Column (9).

Implied Average
Inflation / Investment

Discount Factor
 --------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit II

Estimation of Prospective Cost - Current Level (2021) - Before Inflation and Discount (Investment) (a) Sheet 1

By Claim Class and Expense Category
Segregated By Birth Year

Combined Combined All Other Combined
All Other Expense - Except All Other Expense - Except Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Expense - Except

Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Parental Award Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Parental Award Nursing Physicians Parental Award Parental Award
Birth Nursing Physicians Parental Award & Burial Nursing Physicians Parental Award & Burial Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense & Burial
Year Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense  (2) + (3)+ (4) Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense  (6) + (7)+ (8)  (2) + (6)  (3) + (7)  (4) + (8)  (5) + (9)
 -------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12) (13)

1989 2,606,419 275,671 500,738 3,382,828 8,326,007 1,692,216 1,758,981 11,777,203 10,932,425 1,967,887 2,259,719 15,160,031
1990 2,661,283 276,853 511,278 3,449,415 8,499,273 1,706,100 1,795,585 12,000,958 11,160,556 1,982,954 2,306,864 15,450,373
1991 2,805,616 278,001 521,803 3,605,420 13,009,098 2,579,590 2,748,346 18,337,034 15,814,714 2,857,591 3,270,149 21,942,454
1992 2,770,781 279,057 532,315 3,582,154 35,385,693 6,931,947 7,475,702 49,793,342 38,156,474 7,211,005 8,008,017 53,375,496
1993 5,650,880 560,136 1,085,632 7,296,647 22,550,949 4,364,953 4,764,190 31,680,093 28,201,829 4,925,089 5,849,822 38,976,740
1994 0 0 0 0 13,791,850 2,637,897 2,913,713 19,343,460 13,791,850 2,637,897 2,913,713 19,343,460
1995 0 0 0 0 23,422,109 4,426,308 4,948,235 32,796,652 23,422,109 4,426,308 4,948,235 32,796,652
1996 8,966,377 846,319 1,722,596 11,535,292 14,314,511 2,672,726 3,024,132 20,011,370 23,280,888 3,519,046 4,746,728 31,546,662
1997 3,042,842 282,482 584,582 3,909,906 34,009,155 6,274,401 7,184,890 47,468,446 37,051,997 6,556,883 7,769,473 51,378,352
1998 9,265,383 848,641 1,780,040 11,894,065 39,516,401 7,213,480 8,348,370 55,078,251 48,781,784 8,062,122 10,128,410 66,972,316
1999 6,252,633 566,827 1,201,239 8,020,698 5,014,921 907,062 1,059,469 6,981,452 11,267,553 1,473,889 2,260,708 15,002,150
2000 3,164,573 284,095 607,969 4,056,638 10,180,612 1,825,009 2,150,791 14,156,411 13,345,185 2,109,104 2,758,760 18,213,049
2001 6,406,492 569,840 1,230,798 8,207,130 10,331,566 1,836,046 2,182,682 14,350,293 16,738,057 2,405,886 3,413,480 22,557,423
2002 19,454,066 1,715,289 3,737,462 24,906,817 31,448,514 5,541,765 6,643,920 43,634,199 50,902,580 7,257,054 10,381,383 68,541,016
2003 3,263,362 286,969 628,131 4,178,462 10,620,133 1,857,384 2,243,645 14,721,162 13,883,495 2,144,353 2,871,776 18,899,624
2004 3,267,637 288,176 631,230 4,187,043 21,487,378 3,732,904 4,539,497 29,759,779 24,755,015 4,021,080 5,170,727 33,946,821
2005 13,094,444 1,158,008 2,538,302 16,790,755 16,302,112 2,813,625 3,444,040 22,559,777 29,396,556 3,971,633 5,982,342 39,350,532
2006 9,845,230 872,973 1,914,785 12,632,988 32,981,929 5,656,172 6,967,875 45,605,975 42,827,159 6,529,145 8,882,660 58,238,963
2007 16,460,026 1,463,211 3,211,446 21,134,682 11,121,668 1,895,415 2,349,602 15,366,685 27,581,695 3,358,625 5,561,047 36,501,367
2008 6,608,645 588,902 1,293,297 8,490,844 39,379,471 6,670,431 8,319,441 54,369,343 45,988,116 7,259,332 9,612,739 62,860,187
2009 13,274,148 1,185,619 2,605,258 17,065,025 34,147,902 5,749,873 7,214,202 47,111,977 47,422,050 6,935,492 9,819,460 64,177,002
2010 0 0 0 0 28,788,363 4,819,261 6,081,928 39,689,552 28,788,363 4,819,261 6,081,928 39,689,552
2011 10,055,228 902,022 1,984,210 12,941,459 40,770,933 6,786,424 8,613,406 56,170,763 50,826,161 7,688,445 10,597,616 69,112,223
2012 3,370,247 302,948 666,738 4,339,934 35,347,900 5,851,090 7,467,718 48,666,708 38,718,148 6,154,038 8,134,456 53,006,642
2013 16,835,434 1,549,181 3,351,220 21,735,835 11,876,458 1,961,813 2,513,286 16,351,558 28,711,892 3,510,994 5,864,507 38,087,393
2014 10,030,740 963,154 2,016,088 13,009,983 29,826,716 4,933,288 6,332,869 41,092,873 39,857,456 5,896,442 8,348,957 54,102,856
2015 19,933,743 1,992,413 4,044,372 25,970,527 47,941,315 7,939,489 10,212,205 66,093,009 67,875,058 9,931,902 14,256,577 92,063,536
2016 6,606,208 685,802 1,352,660 8,644,670 24,080,857 3,992,983 5,146,016 33,219,857 30,687,065 4,678,785 6,498,677 41,864,527
2017 14,211,481 1,529,138 2,935,891 18,676,510 52,466,167 8,710,424 11,247,185 72,423,777 66,677,648 10,239,562 14,183,077 91,100,287
2018 10,874,408 1,210,447 2,266,008 14,350,863 77,011,519 12,800,938 16,560,052 106,372,508 87,885,927 14,011,384 18,826,060 120,723,371
2019 12,945,028 1,488,018 2,720,237 17,153,283 55,084,018 9,167,051 11,880,913 76,131,983 68,029,046 10,655,070 14,601,150 93,285,266
2020 12,814,165 1,518,616 2,714,792 17,047,573 55,483,661 9,244,409 12,002,863 76,730,932 68,297,826 10,763,024 14,717,655 93,778,505
2021 11,555,780 1,409,763 2,437,797 15,403,341 51,871,433 8,652,505 11,203,518 71,727,457 63,427,214 10,062,269 13,641,315 87,130,798

 2022 -6 mo. 7,403,593 902,142 1,560,076 9,865,811 29,247,376 4,915,997 6,315,101 40,478,474 36,650,969 5,818,139 7,875,177 50,344,285

275,496,891 27,080,714 54,888,993 357,466,599 975,637,968 168,760,975 207,654,369 1,352,053,313 1,251,134,859 195,841,689 262,543,363 1,709,519,911

Notes: (a) Estimated remaining 2021 level loss and ALAE payments by birth year, claim category and expense category. Above estimates are based on calendar year estimates shown in Section IV, Exhibit II, Sheets 4a and 4b
                 allocated to each Birth Year. The above estimates do not include expenses related to Parental Care, Burial Expense and DA claims (i.e. DA = Decesed when Accepted). The expense estimates related to
                these additional components are shown in Section IV, Exhibit VI, Sheet 1.

All Claim Classes
Claim Class A Claim Classes B, C & D   ------------------------------------------------------------------------------

  ------------------------------------------------------------------------------   ------------------------------------------------------------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit II

Estimation of Prospective Cost - After Estimated Inflation and Investment Income (a) Sheet 2
Current Long Term Estimates (3.5 % Inflation and 5.0 % Investment Income)
By Claim Class and Expense Category
Segregated By Birth Year

Combined Combined All Other Combined
All Other Expense - Except All Other Expense - Except Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Expense - Except

Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Parental Award Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Parental Award Nursing Physicians Parental Award Parental Award
Birth Nursing Physicians Parental Award & Burial Nursing Physicians Parental Award & Burial Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense & Burial
Year Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense  (2) + (3)+ (4) Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense  (6) + (7)+ (8)  (2) + (6)  (3) + (7)  (4) + (8)  (5) + (9)

 -------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12) (13)

1989 2,256,575 229,856 433,527 2,919,957 6,397,453 1,217,711 1,351,548 8,966,712 8,654,028 1,447,566 1,785,075 11,886,669
1990 2,297,303 230,053 441,352 2,968,709 6,498,507 1,218,779 1,372,897 9,090,183 8,795,811 1,448,832 1,814,249 12,058,892
1991 2,428,167 230,217 449,116 3,107,500 9,897,847 1,829,381 2,091,053 13,818,281 12,326,014 2,059,598 2,540,169 16,925,781
1992 2,377,828 230,289 456,822 3,064,940 26,790,668 4,880,117 5,659,888 37,330,673 29,168,497 5,110,406 6,116,710 40,395,613
1993 4,835,304 460,635 928,945 6,224,885 16,989,623 3,050,520 3,589,286 23,629,429 21,824,927 3,511,155 4,518,231 29,854,313
1994 0 0 0 0 10,339,643 1,830,020 2,184,388 14,354,051 10,339,643 1,830,020 2,184,388 14,354,051
1995 0 0 0 0 17,473,275 3,047,862 3,691,464 24,212,600 17,473,275 3,047,862 3,691,464 24,212,600
1996 7,605,535 688,290 1,461,155 9,754,980 10,626,532 1,826,527 2,244,997 14,698,057 18,232,067 2,514,817 3,706,152 24,453,036
1997 2,573,554 228,849 494,424 3,296,826 25,123,452 4,255,492 5,307,666 34,686,610 27,697,006 4,484,341 5,802,090 37,983,437
1998 7,809,698 684,914 1,500,378 9,994,990 29,036,467 4,855,616 6,134,343 40,026,427 36,846,165 5,540,530 7,634,721 50,021,417
1999 5,250,233 455,815 1,008,660 6,714,708 3,663,943 606,042 774,057 5,044,041 8,914,175 1,061,856 1,782,717 11,758,749
2000 2,647,432 227,668 508,617 3,383,717 7,396,019 1,210,444 1,562,508 10,168,972 10,043,451 1,438,113 2,071,126 13,552,689
2001 5,340,339 455,155 1,025,971 6,821,465 7,463,633 1,208,997 1,576,793 10,249,423 12,803,972 1,664,152 2,602,764 17,070,889
2002 16,159,910 1,365,759 3,104,598 20,630,267 22,592,485 3,623,244 4,772,965 30,988,695 38,752,395 4,989,004 7,877,563 51,618,962
2003 2,698,175 227,803 519,560 3,445,538 7,583,173 1,205,431 1,602,047 10,390,651 10,281,348 1,433,234 2,121,607 13,836,189
2004 2,686,589 228,097 519,603 3,434,289 15,242,613 2,404,191 3,220,206 20,867,010 17,929,202 2,632,288 3,739,809 24,301,299
2005 10,708,465 914,029 2,079,759 13,702,252 11,489,753 1,798,529 2,427,364 15,715,646 22,198,217 2,712,557 4,507,123 29,417,898
2006 8,010,173 687,189 1,561,915 10,259,277 23,097,663 3,588,800 4,879,691 31,566,154 31,107,835 4,275,989 6,441,606 41,825,431
2007 13,326,581 1,148,808 2,608,441 17,083,830 7,739,625 1,193,855 1,635,100 10,568,580 21,066,206 2,342,663 4,243,541 27,652,410
2008 5,325,521 461,191 1,046,143 6,832,855 27,233,849 4,171,246 5,753,516 37,158,611 32,559,371 4,632,437 6,799,659 43,991,466
2009 10,648,792 926,209 2,099,029 13,674,030 23,470,476 3,570,072 4,958,453 31,999,002 34,119,269 4,496,281 7,057,482 45,673,032
2010 0 0 0 0 19,666,252 2,971,303 4,154,759 26,792,314 19,666,252 2,971,303 4,154,759 26,792,314
2011 7,998,266 701,294 1,586,617 10,286,176 27,683,988 4,155,225 5,848,614 37,687,827 35,682,254 4,856,519 7,435,230 47,974,004
2012 2,670,056 234,984 531,217 3,436,257 23,858,352 3,558,081 5,040,397 32,456,830 26,528,408 3,793,066 5,571,613 35,893,087
2013 13,261,012 1,204,239 2,658,548 17,123,799 7,955,128 1,184,948 1,684,895 10,824,972 21,216,140 2,389,187 4,343,443 27,948,771
2014 7,843,439 752,816 1,591,544 10,187,799 19,795,727 2,959,903 4,213,702 26,969,332 27,639,166 3,712,719 5,805,247 37,157,131
2015 15,477,661 1,564,171 3,177,675 20,219,508 31,530,599 4,732,257 6,744,623 43,007,479 47,008,260 6,296,428 9,922,298 63,226,987
2016 5,094,832 540,278 1,057,969 6,693,079 15,696,407 2,364,519 3,373,847 21,434,772 20,791,239 2,904,797 4,431,816 28,127,852
2017 10,889,114 1,207,917 2,286,242 14,383,273 33,897,106 5,124,931 7,320,731 46,342,768 44,786,220 6,332,849 9,606,972 60,726,041
2018 8,280,277 958,110 1,757,149 10,995,537 49,322,174 7,483,886 10,702,073 67,508,132 57,602,451 8,441,995 12,459,222 78,503,668
2019 9,797,943 1,179,515 2,100,787 13,078,246 34,975,414 5,325,791 7,624,124 47,925,328 44,773,357 6,505,306 9,724,911 61,003,574
2020 9,643,122 1,204,895 2,088,330 12,936,347 34,930,110 5,337,458 7,648,854 47,916,422 44,573,232 6,542,353 9,737,184 60,852,769
2021 8,648,108 1,119,084 1,860,834 11,628,026 32,382,401 4,965,155 7,071,305 44,418,861 41,030,509 6,084,239 8,932,139 56,046,887

2022 6 mo. 5,523,070 713,134 1,187,172 7,423,377 18,168,857 2,800,412 3,966,334 24,935,603 23,691,927 3,513,546 5,153,507 32,358,980

220,113,075 21,461,264 44,132,100 285,706,439 666,009,214 105,556,746 142,184,488 913,750,448 886,122,289 127,018,009 186,316,589 1,199,456,887

Notes: (a) Estimated remaining loss and ALAE payments after consideration of anticipated inflation and investment income by birth year, claim category and expense category. Above estimates are based on calendar year expense estimates
                 as shown in Section IV, Exhibit III, Sheets 1a and 1b allocated to each Birth Year. The above estimates do not include expense estimates related to Parental Care, Burial Expense and DA claims (i.e. DA = Deceased when Accepted).
                 The expense estimates related to these additional components are shown in Section IV, Exhibit VI, Sheet 1. The prospective inflation and investment income assumptions are shown in Section IV, Exhibit III, Sheets 3a and 3b.

All Claim Classes
Claim Class A Claim Classes B, C & D   ------------------------------------------------------------------------------

  ------------------------------------------------------------------------------   ------------------------------------------------------------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit II

Estimation of Prospective Cost - After Alternative Estimates of Anticipated Inflation and Investment Income (a) Sheet 3
Alternative Inflation / Investment Assumptions - Short Term Inflation Increase and Investment Decrease Before a Return to Long Term Assumptions (3.5 % Inflation and 5.0 % Investment Income)
By Claim Class and Expense Category
Segregated By Birth Year

Combined Combined All Other Combined
All Other Expense - Except All Other Expense - Except Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Expense - Except

Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Parental Award Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Parental Award Nursing Physicians Parental Award Parental Award
Birth Nursing Physicians Parental Award & Burial Nursing Physicians Parental Award & Burial Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense & Burial
Year Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense  (2) + (3)+ (4) Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense  (6) + (7)+ (8)  (2) + (6)  (3) + (7)  (4) + (8)  (5) + (9)

 -------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12) (13)

1989 2,452,498 249,734 471,167 3,173,399 6,948,233 1,322,023 1,467,907 9,738,164 9,400,732 1,571,757 1,939,075 12,911,563
1990 2,496,715 249,950 479,662 3,226,327 7,057,874 1,323,180 1,491,071 9,872,124 9,554,589 1,573,129 1,970,733 13,098,451
1991 2,635,424 250,129 488,091 3,373,644 10,749,649 1,986,085 2,271,007 15,006,741 13,385,073 2,236,214 2,759,098 18,380,385
1992 2,584,133 250,210 496,457 3,330,799 29,095,820 5,298,137 6,146,882 40,540,839 31,679,953 5,548,347 6,643,339 43,871,639
1993 5,254,729 500,476 1,009,524 6,764,729 18,451,198 3,311,792 3,898,063 25,661,053 23,705,926 3,812,269 4,907,587 32,425,782
1994 0 0 0 0 11,228,981 1,986,748 2,372,273 15,588,001 11,228,981 1,986,748 2,372,273 15,588,001
1995 0 0 0 0 18,975,940 3,308,877 4,008,922 26,293,739 18,975,940 3,308,877 4,008,922 26,293,739
1996 8,264,831 747,809 1,587,817 10,600,456 11,540,242 1,982,924 2,438,031 15,961,198 19,805,073 2,730,733 4,025,848 26,561,654
1997 2,796,600 248,630 537,275 3,582,505 27,283,322 4,619,790 5,763,968 37,667,080 30,079,922 4,868,421 6,301,243 41,249,586
1998 8,487,363 744,084 1,630,569 10,862,016 31,534,084 5,271,167 6,661,998 43,467,250 40,021,447 6,015,252 8,292,567 54,329,266
1999 5,705,796 495,167 1,096,182 7,297,146 3,979,076 657,891 840,633 5,477,600 9,684,872 1,153,058 1,936,815 12,774,746
2000 2,876,909 247,314 552,704 3,676,928 8,031,747 1,313,978 1,696,814 11,042,540 10,908,657 1,561,292 2,249,518 14,719,467
2001 5,802,915 494,421 1,114,840 7,412,176 8,104,892 1,312,391 1,712,267 11,129,550 13,907,808 1,806,811 2,827,108 18,541,727
2002 17,558,323 1,483,567 3,373,257 22,415,148 24,532,419 3,933,084 5,182,802 33,648,305 42,090,742 5,416,651 8,556,060 56,063,452
2003 2,932,224 247,453 564,583 3,744,260 8,234,580 1,308,557 1,739,665 11,282,803 11,166,804 1,556,010 2,304,249 15,027,063
2004 2,919,646 247,773 564,625 3,732,044 16,551,757 2,609,882 3,496,781 22,658,420 19,471,403 2,857,655 4,061,406 26,390,464
2005 11,635,557 992,876 2,259,722 14,888,154 12,475,912 1,952,353 2,635,704 17,063,969 24,111,469 2,945,229 4,895,425 31,952,124
2006 8,702,800 746,470 1,696,954 11,146,225 25,079,228 3,895,682 5,298,323 34,273,233 33,782,029 4,642,152 6,995,277 45,419,458
2007 14,476,718 1,247,913 2,833,672 18,558,303 8,403,179 1,295,910 1,775,284 11,474,374 22,879,897 2,543,823 4,608,956 30,032,677
2008 5,784,590 500,977 1,136,402 7,421,969 29,567,716 4,527,747 6,246,576 40,342,039 35,352,306 5,028,724 7,382,978 47,764,008
2009 11,566,249 1,006,113 2,280,062 14,852,424 25,481,367 3,875,166 5,383,280 34,739,813 37,047,616 4,881,279 7,663,342 49,592,237
2010 0 0 0 0 21,351,140 3,225,231 4,510,715 29,087,086 21,351,140 3,225,231 4,510,715 29,087,086
2011 8,687,448 761,795 1,723,460 11,172,703 30,055,696 4,510,339 6,349,669 40,915,703 38,743,144 5,272,133 8,073,129 52,088,406
2012 2,900,136 255,256 577,033 3,732,425 25,902,232 3,862,166 5,472,194 35,236,592 28,802,368 4,117,422 6,049,227 38,969,017
2013 14,408,078 1,307,259 2,888,219 18,603,557 8,638,096 1,286,219 1,829,388 11,753,704 23,046,174 2,593,478 4,717,608 30,357,260
2014 8,522,237 817,176 1,729,062 11,068,475 21,495,525 3,212,872 4,575,081 29,283,478 30,017,762 4,030,048 6,304,143 40,351,952
2015 16,813,866 1,698,609 3,451,942 21,964,417 34,233,598 5,136,705 7,322,575 46,692,878 51,047,465 6,835,313 10,774,517 68,657,295
2016 5,534,002 586,853 1,149,221 7,270,076 17,040,562 2,566,607 3,662,796 23,269,964 22,574,564 3,153,460 4,812,017 30,540,041
2017 11,825,436 1,312,505 2,483,225 15,621,166 36,795,051 5,562,946 7,947,182 50,305,179 48,620,487 6,875,451 10,430,408 65,926,345
2018 8,991,170 1,041,269 1,908,446 11,940,884 53,534,276 8,123,519 11,617,375 73,275,170 62,525,446 9,164,787 13,525,821 85,216,054
2019 10,638,557 1,281,972 2,281,618 14,202,147 37,960,750 5,780,978 8,276,008 52,017,736 48,599,307 7,062,950 10,557,626 66,219,883
2020 10,470,566 1,309,497 2,268,094 14,048,156 37,911,654 5,793,645 8,302,851 52,008,150 48,382,220 7,103,142 10,570,945 66,056,306
2021 9,390,267 1,216,185 2,022,153 12,628,605 35,146,546 5,389,524 7,677,820 48,213,890 44,536,813 6,605,709 9,699,973 60,842,495

2022 - 6 mo. 5,996,990 775,000 1,290,069 8,062,059 19,719,656 3,039,737 4,306,499 27,065,891 25,716,646 3,814,736 5,596,568 35,127,950

239,112,773 23,314,440 47,946,108 310,373,321 723,092,000 114,583,853 154,378,406 992,054,259 962,204,774 137,898,293 202,324,514 1,302,427,581

Notes: (a) Estimated remaining loss and ALAE payments after consideration of alternative estimates of anticipated inflation and investment income by birth year, claim category and expense category. Above estimates are based on 
                 calendar year expense estimates as shown in Section IV, Exhibit III, Sheets 1a and 1b allocated to each Birth Year. The above estimates do not include expense estimates related to Parental Care, Burial Expense and DA claims 
                (i.e. DA = Deceased when Accepted). The expense estimates related to these additional components are shown in Section IV, Exhibit VI, Sheet 1.
                The prospective inflation and investment assumptions are shown in Section IV, Exhibit III, Sheets 3a and 3b.

All Claim Classes
Claim Class A Claim Classes B, C & D   ------------------------------------------------------------------------------

  ------------------------------------------------------------------------------   ------------------------------------------------------------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit II

Estimation of Prospective Cost - Current Level (2021) Sheet 4a

By Claim Class and Expense Category

Combined Combined All Other Combined
All Other Expense - Excl. All Other Expense - Excl. Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Expense - Excl.

Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Parental Award Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Parental Award Nursing Physicians Parental Award Parental Award
Calendar Nursing Physicians Parental Award & Burial Nursing Physicians Parental Award & Burial Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense & Burial

Year Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense  (2) + (3)+ (4) Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense  (6) + (7)+ (8)  (2) + (6)  (3) + (7)  (4) + (8)  (5) + (9)
 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12) (13)

2022 - 6 Mo 5,211,247 691,419 1,097,453 7,000,119 8,010,199 1,043,629 1,764,284 10,818,112 13,221,446 1,735,048 2,861,737 17,818,232
2023 10,173,648 1,294,569 2,243,466 13,711,683 16,106,734 2,087,224 3,695,053 21,889,011 26,280,382 3,381,794 5,938,518 35,600,694
2024 9,991,332 1,228,016 2,183,755 13,403,104 16,257,269 2,090,737 3,704,382 22,052,387 26,248,601 3,318,753 5,888,137 35,455,491
2025 10,012,555 1,139,202 2,145,011 13,296,767 16,518,374 2,092,565 3,724,832 22,335,771 26,530,928 3,231,767 5,869,843 35,632,538
2026 9,837,671 1,086,059 2,089,814 13,013,544 16,658,588 2,098,111 3,736,639 22,493,338 26,496,259 3,184,171 5,826,453 35,506,883
2027 9,862,404 1,017,110 2,060,676 12,940,190 16,964,716 2,096,548 3,764,452 22,825,715 26,827,119 3,113,659 5,825,128 35,765,906
2028 9,676,844 958,847 2,002,699 12,638,390 17,443,808 2,100,477 3,812,833 23,357,117 27,120,652 3,059,324 5,815,531 35,995,508
2029 9,568,230 898,168 1,954,525 12,420,924 17,781,594 2,103,943 3,846,773 23,732,311 27,349,825 3,002,112 5,801,298 36,153,234
2030 9,374,811 840,893 1,898,786 12,114,490 18,088,627 2,106,580 3,874,517 24,069,724 27,463,439 2,947,473 5,773,302 36,184,214
2031 9,312,220 772,581 1,857,178 11,941,979 18,601,961 2,111,559 3,929,914 24,643,433 27,914,180 2,884,140 5,787,092 36,585,412
2032 9,013,001 746,325 1,795,649 11,554,975 18,552,918 2,115,951 3,919,553 24,588,422 27,565,920 2,862,276 5,715,202 36,143,397
2033 8,785,348 721,723 1,741,600 11,248,671 18,499,667 2,116,808 3,908,303 24,524,779 27,285,016 2,838,531 5,649,902 35,773,450
2034 8,528,927 697,903 1,685,742 10,912,572 18,471,808 2,123,502 3,902,417 24,497,728 27,000,736 2,821,405 5,588,159 35,410,300
2035 8,304,457 674,681 1,631,855 10,610,993 18,468,794 2,135,282 3,901,780 24,505,856 26,773,251 2,809,963 5,533,635 35,116,849
2036 8,017,609 651,850 1,572,497 10,241,956 18,429,584 2,145,774 3,893,497 24,468,854 26,447,192 2,797,625 5,465,993 34,710,810
2037 7,767,981 629,631 1,517,215 9,914,827 18,436,737 2,164,942 3,895,008 24,496,687 26,204,718 2,794,573 5,412,223 34,411,514
2038 7,535,846 607,753 1,467,115 9,610,715 18,449,875 2,190,750 3,897,784 24,538,409 25,985,722 2,798,503 5,364,899 34,149,124
2039 7,301,328 586,903 1,416,019 9,304,251 18,441,519 2,214,649 3,896,018 24,552,186 25,742,847 2,801,553 5,312,038 33,856,438
2040 7,094,333 566,844 1,370,620 9,031,797 18,458,906 2,241,202 3,899,691 24,599,799 25,553,239 2,808,046 5,270,311 33,631,596
2041 6,892,414 548,066 1,324,152 8,764,632 18,482,331 2,274,142 3,904,640 24,661,113 25,374,746 2,822,207 5,228,792 33,425,745
2042 6,598,135 529,821 1,267,616 8,395,572 18,380,632 2,295,169 3,883,155 24,558,956 24,978,767 2,824,990 5,150,771 32,954,528
2043 6,303,425 512,561 1,210,997 8,026,983 18,314,364 2,320,463 3,869,155 24,503,982 24,617,789 2,833,025 5,080,152 32,530,965
2044 6,021,571 495,757 1,156,848 7,674,176 18,206,803 2,348,236 3,846,431 24,401,470 24,228,374 2,843,993 5,003,279 32,075,646
2045 5,747,075 479,768 1,104,112 7,330,955 18,094,635 2,379,713 3,822,734 24,297,083 23,841,710 2,859,481 4,926,847 31,628,038
2046 5,493,754 464,717 1,055,445 7,013,916 18,017,261 2,415,220 3,806,388 24,238,870 23,511,015 2,879,937 4,861,833 31,252,785
2047 5,206,271 450,186 1,000,215 6,656,671 17,806,099 2,453,108 3,761,777 24,020,984 23,012,369 2,903,294 4,761,992 30,677,655
2048 4,928,177 435,752 946,788 6,310,717 17,590,527 2,490,218 3,716,235 23,796,980 22,518,704 2,925,969 4,663,023 30,107,696
2049 4,659,351 421,427 895,142 5,975,921 17,370,317 2,528,733 3,669,712 23,568,762 22,029,668 2,950,160 4,564,854 29,544,682
2050 4,399,686 406,817 845,256 5,651,759 17,145,247 2,564,678 3,622,163 23,332,088 21,544,933 2,971,495 4,467,419 28,983,847
2051 4,149,080 391,812 797,110 5,338,002 16,915,108 2,595,346 3,573,543 23,083,997 21,064,188 2,987,158 4,370,653 28,421,999
2052 3,907,439 377,135 750,687 5,035,261 16,679,676 2,627,303 3,523,805 22,830,784 20,587,115 3,004,438 4,274,492 27,866,045
2053 3,674,667 362,555 705,967 4,743,190 16,438,712 2,656,743 3,472,898 22,568,352 20,113,379 3,019,298 4,178,865 27,311,542
2054 3,450,668 348,022 662,933 4,461,624 16,191,973 2,681,089 3,420,771 22,293,833 19,642,641 3,029,112 4,083,704 26,755,457
2055 3,235,344 333,294 621,565 4,190,203 15,939,229 2,703,899 3,367,376 22,010,504 19,174,573 3,037,193 3,988,941 26,200,707
2056 3,028,595 318,990 581,846 3,929,430 15,680,262 2,721,629 3,312,666 21,714,557 18,708,857 3,040,619 3,894,511 25,643,987
2057 2,830,323 304,764 543,754 3,678,840 15,414,862 2,733,989 3,256,596 21,405,447 18,245,185 3,038,753 3,800,350 25,084,287
2058 2,640,425 290,887 507,271 3,438,584 15,142,850 2,747,560 3,199,130 21,089,541 17,783,276 3,038,447 3,706,402 24,528,125
2059 2,458,802 277,599 472,378 3,208,779 14,864,094 2,757,114 3,140,239 20,761,447 17,322,896 3,034,713 3,612,617 23,970,226
2060 2,285,342 264,531 439,054 2,988,927 14,578,483 2,764,782 3,079,900 20,423,165 16,863,825 3,029,314 3,518,954 23,412,092
2061 2,119,925 251,568 407,274 2,778,768 14,285,912 2,769,491 3,018,090 20,073,493 16,405,837 3,021,059 3,425,365 22,852,261
2062 1,962,426 239,200 377,016 2,578,642 13,986,266 2,773,189 2,954,786 19,714,242 15,948,692 3,012,389 3,331,802 22,292,883
2063 1,812,714 227,046 348,254 2,388,014 13,679,448 2,772,962 2,889,967 19,342,377 15,492,162 3,000,008 3,238,221 21,730,391
2064 1,670,658 214,872 320,962 2,206,492 13,365,424 2,772,631 2,823,625 18,961,680 15,036,082 2,987,503 3,144,587 21,168,172
2065 1,536,123 203,274 295,116 2,034,513 13,044,212 2,770,612 2,755,765 18,570,589 14,580,336 2,973,885 3,050,881 20,605,102
2066 1,408,969 191,632 270,687 1,871,288 12,715,869 2,767,402 2,686,398 18,169,669 14,124,838 2,959,034 2,957,085 20,040,957
2067 1,289,042 180,326 247,647 1,717,015 12,380,462 2,758,615 2,615,539 17,754,616 13,669,504 2,938,940 2,863,186 19,471,631
2068 1,176,181 169,125 225,965 1,571,270 12,038,130 2,746,538 2,543,216 17,327,885 13,214,311 2,915,663 2,769,181 18,899,155
2069 1,070,218 158,364 205,607 1,434,189 11,689,133 2,730,969 2,469,486 16,889,588 12,759,350 2,889,333 2,675,093 18,323,777
2070 970,974 147,596 186,541 1,305,110 11,333,843 2,708,220 2,394,426 16,436,490 12,304,817 2,855,816 2,580,967 17,741,600
2071 878,262 137,193 168,729 1,184,184 10,972,711 2,680,901 2,318,132 15,971,744 11,850,972 2,818,094 2,486,861 17,155,928

Subtotal: 269,175,827 25,945,138 53,674,608 348,795,573 805,386,554 120,690,900 171,686,475 1,097,763,929 1,074,562,381 146,636,038 225,361,083 1,446,559,502
2022 to

2071

All Claim Classes
Claim Class A Claim Classes B, C & D   ------------------------------------------------------------------------------

  ------------------------------------------------------------------------------   ------------------------------------------------------------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit II

Estimation of Prospective Cost - Current Level (2021) Sheet 4b

By Claim Class and Expense Category

Combined Combined All Other Combined
All Other Expense - Except All Other Expense - Except Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Expense - Except

Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Parental Award Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Parental Award Nursing Physicians Parental Award Parental Award
Calendar Nursing Physicians Parental Award & Burial Nursing Physicians Parental Award & Burial Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense & Burial

Year Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense  (2) + (3)+ (4) Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense  (6) + (7)+ (8)  (2) + (6)  (3) + (7)  (4) + (8)  (5) + (9)
 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12) (13)

2072 791,883 126,884 152,134 1,070,902 10,606,259 2,649,578 2,240,714 15,496,551 11,398,141 2,776,463 2,392,849 16,567,453
2073 711,633 117,014 136,717 965,364 10,235,082 2,610,522 2,162,298 15,007,902 10,946,715 2,727,536 2,299,015 15,973,267
2074 637,298 107,365 122,436 867,100 9,859,894 2,564,685 2,083,035 14,507,613 10,497,192 2,672,050 2,205,471 15,374,713
2075 568,655 98,254 109,248 776,158 9,481,506 2,515,644 2,003,095 14,000,246 10,050,161 2,613,899 2,112,344 14,776,404
2076 505,468 89,407 97,109 691,984 9,100,794 2,458,058 1,922,665 13,481,516 9,606,262 2,547,465 2,019,774 14,173,501
2077 447,495 80,959 85,972 614,425 8,718,668 2,393,843 1,841,935 12,954,446 9,166,163 2,474,802 1,927,907 13,568,872
2078 394,490 72,863 75,788 543,142 8,336,093 2,326,864 1,761,112 12,424,069 8,730,584 2,399,727 1,836,900 12,967,211
2079 346,205 65,124 66,512 477,841 7,954,065 2,252,959 1,680,403 11,887,427 8,300,270 2,318,083 1,746,915 12,365,268
2080 302,392 57,704 58,095 418,190 7,573,572 2,170,378 1,600,019 11,343,969 7,875,964 2,228,082 1,658,113 11,762,160
2081 262,801 50,931 50,489 364,221 7,195,584 2,087,670 1,520,164 10,803,417 7,458,385 2,138,601 1,570,652 11,167,637
2082 227,182 44,561 43,646 315,390 6,821,048 1,997,461 1,441,038 10,259,547 7,048,230 2,042,023 1,484,683 10,574,937
2083 195,287 38,636 37,518 271,441 6,450,885 1,900,441 1,362,836 9,714,161 6,646,172 1,939,077 1,400,354 9,985,602
2084 166,867 33,249 32,058 232,174 6,085,994 1,801,414 1,285,748 9,173,155 6,252,860 1,834,663 1,317,806 9,405,329
2085 141,674 28,324 27,218 197,216 5,726,984 1,698,734 1,209,902 8,635,620 5,868,658 1,727,058 1,237,120 8,832,836
2086 119,468 23,885 22,952 166,305 5,374,847 1,594,284 1,135,509 8,104,639 5,494,315 1,618,168 1,158,460 8,270,944
2087 100,012 19,995 19,214 139,220 5,030,295 1,492,083 1,062,717 7,585,095 5,130,307 1,512,078 1,081,931 7,724,316
2088 83,074 16,608 15,960 115,642 4,693,470 1,392,174 991,558 7,077,202 4,776,543 1,408,782 1,007,518 7,192,844
2089 68,429 13,681 13,146 95,256 4,365,753 1,294,967 922,324 6,583,044 4,434,182 1,308,647 935,470 6,678,299
2090 55,859 11,168 10,732 77,759 4,047,749 1,200,641 855,141 6,103,531 4,103,609 1,211,808 865,873 6,181,290
2091 45,156 9,028 8,675 62,859 3,739,429 1,109,187 790,005 5,638,621 3,784,585 1,118,215 798,680 5,701,480
2092 36,119 7,221 6,939 50,279 3,441,352 1,020,772 727,032 5,189,155 3,477,471 1,027,993 733,971 5,239,435
2093 28,560 5,710 5,487 39,757 3,153,159 935,288 666,147 4,754,594 3,181,719 940,998 671,634 4,794,350
2094 22,302 4,459 4,285 31,045 2,875,659 852,976 607,521 4,336,156 2,897,960 857,435 611,806 4,367,201
2095 17,179 3,435 3,300 23,914 2,610,249 774,250 551,450 3,935,949 2,627,428 777,685 554,751 3,959,864
2096 13,038 2,607 2,505 18,149 2,356,735 699,053 497,892 3,553,680 2,369,773 701,660 500,397 3,571,830
2097 9,736 1,946 1,870 13,553 2,115,599 627,528 446,949 3,190,075 2,125,335 629,474 448,819 3,203,628
2098 7,143 1,428 1,372 9,943 1,886,616 559,607 398,573 2,844,796 1,893,759 561,035 399,945 2,854,739
2099 5,140 1,028 988 7,156 1,671,156 495,697 353,054 2,519,907 1,676,296 496,725 354,042 2,527,063
2100 3,622 724 696 5,042 1,469,447 435,866 310,440 2,215,754 1,473,069 436,591 311,136 2,220,796
2101 2,493 498 479 3,471 1,281,704 380,178 270,777 1,932,659 1,284,197 380,677 271,256 1,936,130
2102 1,673 334 321 2,329 1,107,896 328,623 234,058 1,670,577 1,109,569 328,958 234,379 1,672,906
2103 1,091 218 210 1,519 948,771 281,424 200,441 1,430,635 949,862 281,642 200,650 1,432,154
2104 690 138 132 960 803,893 238,450 169,833 1,212,177 804,583 238,588 169,966 1,213,137
2105 421 84 81 586 673,344 199,727 142,253 1,015,324 673,765 199,811 142,334 1,015,910
2106 247 49 47 344 557,204 165,277 117,717 840,198 557,451 165,327 117,764 840,542
2107 139 28 27 193 454,729 134,881 96,068 685,677 454,867 134,909 96,094 685,870
2108 74 15 14 103 365,812 108,507 77,283 551,602 365,886 108,522 77,297 551,705
2109 37 7 7 52 289,910 85,993 61,247 437,151 289,948 86,001 61,255 437,203
2110 18 4 3 25 225,788 66,973 47,701 340,461 225,805 66,977 47,704 340,486
2111 8 2 1 11 172,178 51,071 36,375 259,624 172,186 51,073 36,376 259,635
2112 3 1 1 4 128,630 38,154 27,175 193,959 128,633 38,155 27,175 193,964
2113 1 0 0 2 93,493 27,732 19,752 140,976 93,494 27,732 19,752 140,978
2114 0 0 0 1 65,481 19,423 13,834 98,738 65,482 19,423 13,834 98,739
2115 0 0 0 0 44,043 13,064 9,305 66,411 44,043 13,064 9,305 66,411
2116 0 0 0 0 28,082 8,330 5,933 42,344 28,082 8,330 5,933 42,344
2117 0 0 0 0 16,740 4,965 3,536 25,241 16,740 4,965 3,536 25,241
2118 0 0 0 0 9,091 2,697 1,921 13,708 9,091 2,697 1,921 13,708
2119 0 0 0 0 4,556 1,351 962 6,870 4,556 1,351 962 6,870
2120 0 0 0 0 2,129 632 450 3,211 2,129 632 450 3,211
2121 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Subtotal: 6,321,064 1,135,576 1,214,386 8,671,026 170,251,414 48,070,076 35,967,894 254,289,383 176,572,478 49,205,652 37,182,280 262,960,409
2022 to
2071

Totals 275,496,891 27,080,714 54,888,993 357,466,599 975,637,968 168,760,975 207,654,369 1,352,053,313 1,251,134,859 195,841,689 262,543,363 1,709,519,911

  ------------------------------------------------------------------------------   ------------------------------------------------------------------------------

All Claim Classes
Claim Class A Claim Classes B, C & D   ------------------------------------------------------------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit III

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & ALAE Reserves  - Excluding Parental Award and Death Benefit Sheet 1a
After Estimated Inflation and Investment Income
Evaluated as of December 31, 2021

By Claim Class and Expense Category

Based on Current Inflation / Investment Income Differential (3.50 % Inflation and 5.0 % Investment Income)

All Other
All Other All Other Hospitals, Expense - Excl.

Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Nursing Physicians Parental Award
Calendar Nursing Physicians Parental Award Nursing Physicians Parental Award Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense

Year Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense (2) X (5) (3) X (6) (4) X (7)
 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)

2022 - 6 Mo 13,221,446 1,735,048 2,861,737 1.0101 1.0101 1.0101 13,354,409 1,752,497 2,890,516
2023 26,280,382 3,381,794 5,938,518 0.9956 0.9956 0.9956 26,165,463 3,367,006 5,912,550
2024 26,248,601 3,318,753 5,888,137 0.9814 0.9814 0.9814 25,760,481 3,257,037 5,778,641
2025 26,530,928 3,231,767 5,869,843 0.9674 0.9674 0.9674 25,665,593 3,126,359 5,678,391
2026 26,496,259 3,184,171 5,826,453 0.9536 0.9536 0.9536 25,265,882 3,036,311 5,555,896
2027 26,827,119 3,113,659 5,825,128 0.9399 0.9399 0.9399 25,215,930 2,926,658 5,475,281
2028 27,120,652 3,059,324 5,815,531 0.9265 0.9265 0.9265 25,127,665 2,834,507 5,388,171
2029 27,349,825 3,002,112 5,801,298 0.9133 0.9133 0.9133 24,977,996 2,741,763 5,298,199
2030 27,463,439 2,947,473 5,773,302 0.9002 0.9002 0.9002 24,723,447 2,653,407 5,197,307
2031 27,914,180 2,884,140 5,787,092 0.8874 0.8874 0.8874 24,770,230 2,559,302 5,135,297
2032 27,565,920 2,862,276 5,715,202 0.8747 0.8747 0.8747 24,111,748 2,503,616 4,999,053
2033 27,285,016 2,838,531 5,649,902 0.8622 0.8622 0.8622 23,525,099 2,447,378 4,871,337
2034 27,000,736 2,821,405 5,588,159 0.8499 0.8499 0.8499 22,947,422 2,397,860 4,749,272
2035 26,773,251 2,809,963 5,533,635 0.8377 0.8377 0.8377 22,429,029 2,354,019 4,635,749
2036 26,447,192 2,797,625 5,465,993 0.8258 0.8258 0.8258 21,839,364 2,310,202 4,513,667
2037 26,204,718 2,794,573 5,412,223 0.8140 0.8140 0.8140 21,330,005 2,274,715 4,405,418
2038 25,985,722 2,798,503 5,364,899 0.8023 0.8023 0.8023 20,849,579 2,245,372 4,304,513
2039 25,742,847 2,801,553 5,312,038 0.7909 0.7909 0.7909 20,359,642 2,215,707 4,201,213
2040 25,553,239 2,808,046 5,270,311 0.7796 0.7796 0.7796 19,920,974 2,189,116 4,108,666
2041 25,374,746 2,822,207 5,228,792 0.7685 0.7685 0.7685 19,499,225 2,168,725 4,018,066
2042 24,978,767 2,824,990 5,150,771 0.7575 0.7575 0.7575 18,920,722 2,139,851 3,901,566
2043 24,617,789 2,833,025 5,080,152 0.7467 0.7467 0.7467 18,380,901 2,115,281 3,793,101
2044 24,228,374 2,843,993 5,003,279 0.7360 0.7360 0.7360 17,831,714 2,093,136 3,682,337
2045 23,841,710 2,859,481 4,926,847 0.7255 0.7255 0.7255 17,296,461 2,074,470 3,574,283
2046 23,511,015 2,879,937 4,861,833 0.7151 0.7151 0.7151 16,812,887 2,059,463 3,476,730
2047 23,012,369 2,903,294 4,761,992 0.7049 0.7049 0.7049 16,221,212 2,046,506 3,356,685
2048 22,518,704 2,925,969 4,663,023 0.6948 0.6948 0.6948 15,646,471 2,033,025 3,239,967
2049 22,029,668 2,950,160 4,564,854 0.6849 0.6849 0.6849 15,088,012 2,020,550 3,126,446
2050 21,544,933 2,971,495 4,467,419 0.6751 0.6751 0.6751 14,545,219 2,006,089 3,016,003
2051 21,064,188 2,987,158 4,370,653 0.6655 0.6655 0.6655 14,017,511 1,987,853 2,908,523
2052 20,587,115 3,004,438 4,274,492 0.6560 0.6560 0.6560 13,504,320 1,970,790 2,803,895
2053 20,113,379 3,019,298 4,178,865 0.6466 0.6466 0.6466 13,005,088 1,952,245 2,702,008
2054 19,642,641 3,029,112 4,083,704 0.6374 0.6374 0.6374 12,519,276 1,930,610 2,602,757
2055 19,174,573 3,037,193 3,988,941 0.6282 0.6282 0.6282 12,046,366 1,908,107 2,506,040
2056 18,708,857 3,040,619 3,894,511 0.6193 0.6193 0.6193 11,585,871 1,882,970 2,411,762
2057 18,245,185 3,038,753 3,800,350 0.6104 0.6104 0.6104 11,137,321 1,854,931 2,319,830
2058 17,783,276 3,038,447 3,706,402 0.6017 0.6017 0.6017 10,700,284 1,828,249 2,230,160
2059 17,322,896 3,034,713 3,612,617 0.5931 0.5931 0.5931 10,274,367 1,799,916 2,142,676
2060 16,863,825 3,029,314 3,518,954 0.5846 0.5846 0.5846 9,859,201 1,771,046 2,057,307
2061 16,405,837 3,021,059 3,425,365 0.5763 0.5763 0.5763 9,454,424 1,740,989 1,973,983
2062 15,948,692 3,012,389 3,331,802 0.5681 0.5681 0.5681 9,059,679 1,711,192 1,892,635
2063 15,492,162 3,000,008 3,238,221 0.5599 0.5599 0.5599 8,674,627 1,679,814 1,813,198
2064 15,036,082 2,987,503 3,144,587 0.5519 0.5519 0.5519 8,298,976 1,648,915 1,735,615
2065 14,580,336 2,973,885 3,050,881 0.5441 0.5441 0.5441 7,932,470 1,617,950 1,659,840
2066 14,124,838 2,959,034 2,957,085 0.5363 0.5363 0.5363 7,574,874 1,586,872 1,585,827
2067 13,669,504 2,938,940 2,863,186 0.5286 0.5286 0.5286 7,225,963 1,553,581 1,513,535
2068 13,214,311 2,915,663 2,769,181 0.5211 0.5211 0.5211 6,885,549 1,519,257 1,442,930
2069 12,759,350 2,889,333 2,675,093 0.5136 0.5136 0.5136 6,553,505 1,484,030 1,373,991
2070 12,304,817 2,855,816 2,580,967 0.5063 0.5063 0.5063 6,229,760 1,445,860 1,306,708
2071 11,850,972 2,818,094 2,486,861 0.4991 0.4991 0.4991 5,914,270 1,406,380 1,241,077

Subtotal: 1,074,562,381 146,636,038 225,361,083 811,036,484 106,231,485 170,508,623
2022 to
2071

Inflation / Investment Factors  After Inflation / Investment Income
  -------------------------------------------------------   -------------------------------------------------------------

 Before Inflation / Investment Income
  -------------------------------------------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit III

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & ALAE Reserves  - Excluding Parental Award and Death Benefit Sheet 1b
After Estimated Inflation and Investment Income
Evaluated as of December 31, 2021

By Claim Class and Expense Category

Based on Current Inflation / Investment Income Differential (3.50 % Inflation and 5.0 % Investment Income)

All Other
All Other All Other Hospitals, Expense - Excl.

Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Nursing Physicians Parental Award
Calendar Nursing Physicians Parental Award Nursing Physicians Parental Award Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense

Year Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense (2) X (5) (3) X (6) (4) X (7)
 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)

2072 11,398,141 2,776,463 2,392,849 0.4919 0.4919 0.4919 5,607,022 1,365,809 1,177,100
2073 10,946,715 2,727,536 2,299,015 0.4849 0.4849 0.4849 5,308,027 1,322,573 1,114,785
2074 10,497,192 2,672,050 2,205,471 0.4780 0.4780 0.4780 5,017,340 1,277,159 1,054,148
2075 10,050,161 2,613,899 2,112,344 0.4711 0.4711 0.4711 4,735,048 1,231,516 995,213
2076 9,606,262 2,547,465 2,019,774 0.4644 0.4644 0.4644 4,461,253 1,183,071 938,005
2077 9,166,163 2,474,802 1,927,907 0.4578 0.4578 0.4578 4,196,054 1,132,906 882,551
2078 8,730,584 2,399,727 1,836,900 0.4512 0.4512 0.4512 3,939,561 1,082,845 828,877
2079 8,300,270 2,318,083 1,746,915 0.4448 0.4448 0.4448 3,691,882 1,031,061 777,011
2080 7,875,964 2,228,082 1,658,113 0.4384 0.4384 0.4384 3,453,110 976,872 726,977
2081 7,458,385 2,138,601 1,570,652 0.4322 0.4322 0.4322 3,223,313 924,246 678,794
2082 7,048,230 2,042,023 1,484,683 0.4260 0.4260 0.4260 3,002,540 869,900 632,474
2083 6,646,172 1,939,077 1,400,354 0.4199 0.4199 0.4199 2,790,817 814,244 588,027
2084 6,252,860 1,834,663 1,317,806 0.4139 0.4139 0.4139 2,588,151 759,394 545,459
2085 5,868,658 1,727,058 1,237,120 0.4080 0.4080 0.4080 2,394,422 704,643 504,747
2086 5,494,315 1,618,168 1,158,460 0.4022 0.4022 0.4022 2,209,665 650,784 465,902
2087 5,130,307 1,512,078 1,081,931 0.3964 0.3964 0.3964 2,033,796 599,429 428,908
2088 4,776,543 1,408,782 1,007,518 0.3908 0.3908 0.3908 1,866,503 550,502 393,702
2089 4,434,182 1,308,647 935,470 0.3852 0.3852 0.3852 1,707,967 504,068 360,326
2090 4,103,609 1,211,808 865,873 0.3797 0.3797 0.3797 1,558,056 460,099 328,754
2091 3,784,585 1,118,215 798,680 0.3743 0.3743 0.3743 1,416,402 418,498 298,910
2092 3,477,471 1,027,993 733,971 0.3689 0.3689 0.3689 1,282,870 379,236 270,768
2093 3,181,719 940,998 671,634 0.3636 0.3636 0.3636 1,156,997 342,183 244,232
2094 2,897,960 857,435 611,806 0.3584 0.3584 0.3584 1,038,757 307,342 219,298
2095 2,627,428 777,685 554,751 0.3533 0.3533 0.3533 928,332 274,774 196,006
2096 2,369,773 701,660 500,397 0.3483 0.3483 0.3483 825,335 244,371 174,276
2097 2,125,335 629,474 448,819 0.3433 0.3433 0.3433 729,629 216,099 154,080
2098 1,893,759 561,035 399,945 0.3384 0.3384 0.3384 640,841 189,852 135,340
2099 1,676,296 496,725 354,042 0.3336 0.3336 0.3336 559,149 165,689 118,095
2100 1,473,069 436,591 311,136 0.3288 0.3288 0.3288 484,340 143,550 102,301
2101 1,284,197 380,677 271,256 0.3241 0.3241 0.3241 416,208 123,377 87,914
2102 1,109,569 328,958 234,379 0.3195 0.3195 0.3195 354,474 105,092 74,877
2103 949,862 281,642 200,650 0.3149 0.3149 0.3149 299,117 88,691 63,186
2104 804,583 238,588 169,966 0.3104 0.3104 0.3104 249,748 74,059 52,759
2105 673,765 199,811 142,334 0.3060 0.3060 0.3060 206,154 61,137 43,550
2106 557,451 165,327 117,764 0.3016 0.3016 0.3016 168,128 49,863 35,518
2107 454,867 134,909 96,094 0.2973 0.2973 0.2973 135,229 40,108 28,568
2108 365,886 108,522 77,297 0.2930 0.2930 0.2930 107,222 31,802 22,652
2109 289,948 86,001 61,255 0.2889 0.2889 0.2889 83,754 24,842 17,694
2110 225,805 66,977 47,704 0.2847 0.2847 0.2847 64,294 19,070 13,583
2111 172,186 51,073 36,376 0.2807 0.2807 0.2807 48,327 14,334 10,210
2112 128,633 38,155 27,175 0.2767 0.2767 0.2767 35,587 10,556 7,518
2113 93,494 27,732 19,752 0.2727 0.2727 0.2727 25,496 7,563 5,386
2114 65,482 19,423 13,834 0.2688 0.2688 0.2688 17,602 5,221 3,719
2115 44,043 13,064 9,305 0.2650 0.2650 0.2650 11,670 3,462 2,465
2116 28,082 8,330 5,933 0.2612 0.2612 0.2612 7,334 2,176 1,550
2117 16,740 4,965 3,536 0.2575 0.2575 0.2575 4,310 1,278 910
2118 9,091 2,697 1,921 0.2538 0.2538 0.2538 2,307 684 487
2119 4,556 1,351 962 0.2501 0.2501 0.2501 1,140 338 241
2120 2,129 632 450 0.2466 0.2466 0.2466 525 156 111

Subtotal: 176,572,478 49,205,652 37,182,280 75,085,805 20,786,524 15,807,966
2022 to
2071

Totals 1,251,134,859 195,841,689 262,543,363 886,122,289 127,018,009 186,316,589

Inflation / Investment Factors  After Inflation / Investment Income Before Inflation / Investment Income
  -------------------------------------------------------------   -------------------------------------------------------   -------------------------------------------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit III

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & ALAE Reserves  - Excluding Parental Award and Death Benefit Sheet 2a
After Estimated Inflation and Investment Income
Evaluated as of December 31, 2021

By Claim Class and Expense Category

Based on Short Term Increase in Inflation and Decrease in Investment Income and then a Return 
 to Current Inflation / Investment Income Differential

All Other
All Other All Other Hospitals, Expense - Excl.

Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Nursing Physicians Parental Award
Calendar Nursing Physicians Parental Award Nursing Physicians Parental Award Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense

Year Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense (2) X (5) (3) X (6) (4) X (7)
 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)

2022 - 6 Mo 13,221,446 1,735,048 2,861,737 1.0590 1.0590 1.0590 14,001,870 1,837,463 3,030,657
2023 26,280,382 3,381,794 5,938,518 1.0792 1.0792 1.0792 28,361,764 3,649,629 6,408,844
2024 26,248,601 3,318,753 5,888,137 1.0792 1.0792 1.0792 28,327,466 3,581,595 6,354,472
2025 26,530,928 3,231,767 5,869,843 1.0590 1.0590 1.0590 28,096,973 3,422,528 6,216,323
2026 26,496,259 3,184,171 5,826,453 1.0490 1.0490 1.0490 27,795,538 3,340,311 6,112,161
2027 26,827,119 3,113,659 5,825,128 1.0292 1.0292 1.0292 27,611,629 3,204,712 5,995,473
2028 27,120,652 3,059,324 5,815,531 1.0098 1.0098 1.0098 27,387,071 3,089,378 5,872,660
2029 27,349,825 3,002,112 5,801,298 0.9908 0.9908 0.9908 27,097,392 2,974,403 5,747,754
2030 27,463,439 2,947,473 5,773,302 0.9766 0.9766 0.9766 26,821,243 2,878,550 5,638,302
2031 27,914,180 2,884,140 5,787,092 0.9627 0.9627 0.9627 26,871,996 2,776,460 5,571,029
2032 27,565,920 2,862,276 5,715,202 0.9489 0.9489 0.9489 26,157,641 2,716,049 5,423,225
2033 27,285,016 2,838,531 5,649,902 0.9354 0.9354 0.9354 25,521,215 2,655,039 5,284,673
2034 27,000,736 2,821,405 5,588,159 0.9220 0.9220 0.9220 24,894,522 2,601,320 5,152,250
2035 26,773,251 2,809,963 5,533,635 0.9088 0.9088 0.9088 24,332,143 2,553,759 5,029,094
2036 26,447,192 2,797,625 5,465,993 0.8958 0.8958 0.8958 23,692,444 2,506,223 4,896,654
2037 26,204,718 2,794,573 5,412,223 0.8830 0.8830 0.8830 23,139,866 2,467,726 4,779,220
2038 25,985,722 2,798,503 5,364,899 0.8704 0.8704 0.8704 22,618,676 2,435,893 4,669,753
2039 25,742,847 2,801,553 5,312,038 0.8580 0.8580 0.8580 22,087,168 2,403,711 4,557,688
2040 25,553,239 2,808,046 5,270,311 0.8457 0.8457 0.8457 21,611,279 2,374,864 4,457,288
2041 25,374,746 2,822,207 5,228,792 0.8337 0.8337 0.8337 21,153,744 2,352,743 4,359,001
2042 24,978,767 2,824,990 5,150,771 0.8217 0.8217 0.8217 20,526,155 2,321,419 4,232,616
2043 24,617,789 2,833,025 5,080,152 0.8100 0.8100 0.8100 19,940,530 2,294,764 4,114,948
2044 24,228,374 2,843,993 5,003,279 0.7984 0.7984 0.7984 19,344,743 2,270,739 3,994,785
2045 23,841,710 2,859,481 4,926,847 0.7870 0.7870 0.7870 18,764,074 2,250,490 3,877,562
2046 23,511,015 2,879,937 4,861,833 0.7758 0.7758 0.7758 18,239,469 2,234,209 3,771,732
2047 23,012,369 2,903,294 4,761,992 0.7647 0.7647 0.7647 17,597,590 2,220,153 3,641,501
2048 22,518,704 2,925,969 4,663,023 0.7538 0.7538 0.7538 16,974,082 2,205,529 3,514,879
2049 22,029,668 2,950,160 4,564,854 0.7430 0.7430 0.7430 16,368,237 2,191,995 3,391,727
2050 21,544,933 2,971,495 4,467,419 0.7324 0.7324 0.7324 15,779,388 2,176,307 3,271,913
2051 21,064,188 2,987,158 4,370,653 0.7219 0.7219 0.7219 15,206,903 2,156,524 3,155,313
2052 20,587,115 3,004,438 4,274,492 0.7116 0.7116 0.7116 14,650,168 2,138,013 3,041,807
2053 20,113,379 3,019,298 4,178,865 0.7015 0.7015 0.7015 14,108,577 2,117,893 2,931,275
2054 19,642,641 3,029,112 4,083,704 0.6914 0.6914 0.6914 13,581,542 2,094,423 2,823,602
2055 19,174,573 3,037,193 3,988,941 0.6816 0.6816 0.6816 13,068,506 2,070,011 2,718,679
2056 18,708,857 3,040,619 3,894,511 0.6718 0.6718 0.6718 12,568,938 2,042,741 2,616,401
2057 18,245,185 3,038,753 3,800,350 0.6622 0.6622 0.6622 12,082,328 2,012,323 2,516,668
2058 17,783,276 3,038,447 3,706,402 0.6528 0.6528 0.6528 11,608,208 1,983,376 2,419,390
2059 17,322,896 3,034,713 3,612,617 0.6434 0.6434 0.6434 11,146,152 1,952,640 2,324,483
2060 16,863,825 3,029,314 3,518,954 0.6342 0.6342 0.6342 10,695,759 1,921,320 2,231,871
2061 16,405,837 3,021,059 3,425,365 0.6252 0.6252 0.6252 10,256,636 1,888,712 2,141,477
2062 15,948,692 3,012,389 3,331,802 0.6163 0.6163 0.6163 9,828,397 1,856,388 2,053,226
2063 15,492,162 3,000,008 3,238,221 0.6074 0.6074 0.6074 9,410,673 1,822,347 1,967,049
2064 15,036,082 2,987,503 3,144,587 0.5988 0.5988 0.5988 9,003,148 1,788,826 1,882,883
2065 14,580,336 2,973,885 3,050,881 0.5902 0.5902 0.5902 8,605,543 1,755,234 1,800,678
2066 14,124,838 2,959,034 2,957,085 0.5818 0.5818 0.5818 8,217,606 1,721,519 1,720,385
2067 13,669,504 2,938,940 2,863,186 0.5735 0.5735 0.5735 7,839,090 1,685,403 1,641,959
2068 13,214,311 2,915,663 2,769,181 0.5653 0.5653 0.5653 7,469,791 1,648,167 1,565,364
2069 12,759,350 2,889,333 2,675,093 0.5572 0.5572 0.5572 7,109,573 1,609,951 1,490,575
2070 12,304,817 2,855,816 2,580,967 0.5492 0.5492 0.5492 6,758,358 1,568,542 1,417,583
2071 11,850,972 2,818,094 2,486,861 0.5414 0.5414 0.5414 6,416,099 1,525,712 1,346,383

Subtotal: 1,074,562,381 146,636,038 225,361,083 880,747,902 115,348,023 185,175,235
2022 to

2071

 Before Inflation / Investment Income Inflation / Investment Factors  After Inflation / Investment Income
  -------------------------------------------------------------   -------------------------------------------------------   -------------------------------------------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit III

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & ALAE Reserves  - Excluding Parental Award and Death Benefit Sheet 2b
After Estimated Inflation and Investment Income
Evaluated as of December 31, 2021

By Claim Class and Expense Category

Based on Short Term Increase in Inflation and Decrease in Investment Income and then a Return 
 to Current Inflation / Investment Income Differential

All Other
All Other All Other Hospitals, Expense - Excl.

Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Nursing Physicians Parental Award
Calendar Nursing Physicians Parental Award Nursing Physicians Parental Award Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense

Year Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense (2) X (5) (3) X (6) (4) X (7)
 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)

2072 11,398,141 2,776,463 2,392,849 0.5337 0.5337 0.5337 6,082,781 1,481,699 1,276,978
2073 10,946,715 2,727,536 2,299,015 0.5260 0.5260 0.5260 5,758,415 1,434,794 1,209,375
2074 10,497,192 2,672,050 2,205,471 0.5185 0.5185 0.5185 5,443,063 1,385,526 1,143,593
2075 10,050,161 2,613,899 2,112,344 0.5111 0.5111 0.5111 5,136,820 1,336,011 1,079,657
2076 9,606,262 2,547,465 2,019,774 0.5038 0.5038 0.5038 4,839,793 1,283,455 1,017,595
2077 9,166,163 2,474,802 1,927,907 0.4966 0.4966 0.4966 4,552,091 1,229,034 957,435
2078 8,730,584 2,399,727 1,836,900 0.4895 0.4895 0.4895 4,273,834 1,174,725 899,207
2079 8,300,270 2,318,083 1,746,915 0.4825 0.4825 0.4825 4,005,140 1,118,548 842,941
2080 7,875,964 2,228,082 1,658,113 0.4756 0.4756 0.4756 3,746,108 1,059,760 788,662
2081 7,458,385 2,138,601 1,570,652 0.4688 0.4688 0.4688 3,496,813 1,002,668 736,389
2082 7,048,230 2,042,023 1,484,683 0.4621 0.4621 0.4621 3,257,307 943,711 686,140
2083 6,646,172 1,939,077 1,400,354 0.4555 0.4555 0.4555 3,027,619 883,333 637,922
2084 6,252,860 1,834,663 1,317,806 0.4490 0.4490 0.4490 2,807,757 823,829 591,742
2085 5,868,658 1,727,058 1,237,120 0.4426 0.4426 0.4426 2,597,590 764,432 547,575
2086 5,494,315 1,618,168 1,158,460 0.4363 0.4363 0.4363 2,397,157 706,003 505,434
2087 5,130,307 1,512,078 1,081,931 0.4301 0.4301 0.4301 2,206,364 650,291 465,301
2088 4,776,543 1,408,782 1,007,518 0.4239 0.4239 0.4239 2,024,877 597,212 427,108
2089 4,434,182 1,308,647 935,470 0.4179 0.4179 0.4179 1,852,889 546,838 390,900
2090 4,103,609 1,211,808 865,873 0.4119 0.4119 0.4119 1,690,258 499,138 356,649
2091 3,784,585 1,118,215 798,680 0.4060 0.4060 0.4060 1,536,584 454,008 324,273
2092 3,477,471 1,027,993 733,971 0.4002 0.4002 0.4002 1,391,723 411,414 293,743
2093 3,181,719 940,998 671,634 0.3945 0.3945 0.3945 1,255,168 371,218 264,955
2094 2,897,960 857,435 611,806 0.3889 0.3889 0.3889 1,126,896 333,420 237,906
2095 2,627,428 777,685 554,751 0.3833 0.3833 0.3833 1,007,101 298,089 212,638
2096 2,369,773 701,660 500,397 0.3778 0.3778 0.3778 895,365 265,106 189,064
2097 2,125,335 629,474 448,819 0.3724 0.3724 0.3724 791,538 234,435 167,154
2098 1,893,759 561,035 399,945 0.3671 0.3671 0.3671 695,217 205,961 146,824
2099 1,676,296 496,725 354,042 0.3619 0.3619 0.3619 606,593 179,747 128,115
2100 1,473,069 436,591 311,136 0.3567 0.3567 0.3567 525,437 155,730 110,981
2101 1,284,197 380,677 271,256 0.3516 0.3516 0.3516 451,524 133,846 95,374
2102 1,109,569 328,958 234,379 0.3466 0.3466 0.3466 384,551 114,009 81,230
2103 949,862 281,642 200,650 0.3416 0.3416 0.3416 324,497 96,216 68,547
2104 804,583 238,588 169,966 0.3367 0.3367 0.3367 270,940 80,343 57,235
2105 673,765 199,811 142,334 0.3319 0.3319 0.3319 223,646 66,324 47,246
2106 557,451 165,327 117,764 0.3272 0.3272 0.3272 182,394 54,094 38,532
2107 454,867 134,909 96,094 0.3225 0.3225 0.3225 146,703 43,511 30,992
2108 365,886 108,522 77,297 0.3179 0.3179 0.3179 116,319 34,500 24,574
2109 289,948 86,001 61,255 0.3134 0.3134 0.3134 90,861 26,950 19,195
2110 225,805 66,977 47,704 0.3089 0.3089 0.3089 69,750 20,689 14,735
2111 172,186 51,073 36,376 0.3045 0.3045 0.3045 52,427 15,551 11,076
2112 128,633 38,155 27,175 0.3001 0.3001 0.3001 38,607 11,451 8,156
2113 93,494 27,732 19,752 0.2958 0.2958 0.2958 27,659 8,204 5,843
2114 65,482 19,423 13,834 0.2916 0.2916 0.2916 19,096 5,664 4,034
2115 44,043 13,064 9,305 0.2875 0.2875 0.2875 12,660 3,755 2,675
2116 28,082 8,330 5,933 0.2833 0.2833 0.2833 7,957 2,360 1,681
2117 16,740 4,965 3,536 0.2793 0.2793 0.2793 4,675 1,387 988
2118 9,091 2,697 1,921 0.2753 0.2753 0.2753 2,503 742 529
2119 4,556 1,351 962 0.2714 0.2714 0.2714 1,236 367 261
2120 2,129 632 450 0.2675 0.2675 0.2675 570 169 120

Subtotal: 176,572,478 49,205,652 37,182,280 81,456,871 22,550,271 17,149,279
2022 to

2071

Totals 1,251,134,859 195,841,689 262,543,363 962,204,774 137,898,293 202,324,514

 Before Inflation / Investment Income Inflation / Investment Factors  After Inflation / Investment Income
  -------------------------------------------------------------   -------------------------------------------------------   -------------------------------------------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit III

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & ALAE Reserves  - Excluding Parental Award and Death Benefit Sheet 3a
After Estimated Inflation and Investment Income
Evaluated as of June 30, 2022

Alternative Inflation / Investment Rates

All Other All Other
Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Hospitals, Expense - Excl.

Calendar Nursing Physicians Parental Award Nursing Physicians Parental Award Current (a) Short - Term
Year Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense Assumptions Shock (c)

 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

2022 - 6 Mo 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 5.00% 4.00%
2023 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 5.00% 5.00%
2024 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 6.00%
2025 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 7.00%
2026 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 6.00%
2027 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 5.00% 6.00%
2028 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 5.00% 6.00%
2029 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 5.00% 6.00%
2030 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2031 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2032 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2033 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2034 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2035 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2036 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2037 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2038 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2039 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2040 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2041 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2042 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2043 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2044 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2045 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2046 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2047 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2048 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2049 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2050 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2051 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2052 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2053 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2054 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2055 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2056 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2057 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2058 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2059 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2060 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2061 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2062 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2063 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2064 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2065 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2066 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2067 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2068 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2069 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2070 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2071 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%

Notes: (a) Based on long-term inflation and investment return assumptions selected based on a review of U.S. experience from 1929 to 2020.

Prospective Inflation
 -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Current Assumptions (a) Alternative - Short Term Increase (b)
 ------------------------------------------  ------------------------------------------ Prospective Investment Returns

 -------------------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit III

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & ALAE Reserves  - Excluding Parental Award and Death Benefit Sheet 3b
After Estimated Inflation and Investment Income
Evaluated as of June 30, 2022

Alternative Inflation / Investment Rates

All Other All Other
Hospitals, Expense - Excl. Hospitals, Expense - Excl.

Calendar Nursing Physicians Parental Award Nursing Physicians Parental Award Current (a) Short - Term
Year Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense Care  & Drugs & Burial Expense Assumptions Shock (c)

 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

2072 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2073 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2074 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2075 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2076 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2077 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2078 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2079 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2080 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2081 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2082 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2083 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2084 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2085 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2086 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2087 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2088 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2089 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2090 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2091 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2092 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2093 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2094 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2095 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2096 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2097 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2098 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2099 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2100 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2101 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2102 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2103 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2104 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2105 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2106 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2107 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2108 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2109 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2110 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2111 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2112 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2113 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2114 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2115 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2116 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2117 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2118 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2119 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%
2120 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00%

Notes: (a) Based on long-term inflation and investment return assumptions selected based on a review of U.S. experience from 1929 to 2020.
           (b) Sensitivity test to illustrate the potential impact of short term variability in the relationship of inflation and investment return.

Prospective Inflation
 -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Current Assumptions (a) Alternative - Short Term Increase (b)
 ------------------------------------------  ------------------------------------------ Prospective Investment Returns

 -------------------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit IV

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & ALAE Reserves  Sheet 1
Summary of Open (Reported and Unreported) Claim Counts by Claim Classification Category
Evaluated as of June 30, 2022

By Claim Class Category - Excluding AAD and DA Claims

Classes Classes Class Classes
Birth Class  B, C, D Combined Class  B, C, D Combined A  B, C & D Combined
Year A  & Blank  (2) + (3) A  & Blank  (5) + (6)  (2) + (5)  (3) + (6)  (4) + (7)

  -------   -------   -------   -------   -------   -------   -------   -------   -------   -------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)

1989 1 2 3 0 1 2 3
1990 1 2 3 0 1 2 3
1991 1 3 4 0 1 3 4
1992 1 8 9 0 1 8 9
1993 2 5 7 0 2 5 7
1994 0 3 3 0 0 3 3
1995 0 5 5 0 0 5 5
1996 3 3 6 0 3 3 6
1997 1 7 8 0 1 7 8
1998 3 8 11 0 3 8 11
1999 2 1 3 0 2 1 3
2000 1 2 3 0 1 2 3
2001 2 2 4 0 2 2 4
2002 6 6 12 0 6 6 12
2003 1 2 3 0 1 2 3
2004 1 4 5 0 1 4 5
2005 4 3 7 0 4 3 7
2006 3 6 9 0 3 6 9
2007 5 2 7 0 5 2 7
2008 2 7 9 0 2 7 9
2009 4 6 10 0 4 6 10
2010 0 5 5 0 0 5 5
2011 3 7 10 0 3 7 10
2012 1 6 7 0 1 6 7
2013 5 2 7 0 5 2 7
2014 3 5 8 0 3 5 8
2015 6 8 14 0 6 8 14
2016 2 4 6 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 4.00 6.00
2017 4 8 12 0.33 0.68 1.00 4.33 8.68 13.00
2018 3 12 15 0.33 0.68 1.00 3.33 12.68 16.00
2019 3 7 10 0.98 2.03 3.00 3.98 9.03 13.00
2020 2 5 7 1.95 4.05 6.00 3.95 9.05 13.00
2021 0 1 1 3.58 7.43 11.00 3.58 8.43 12.00

 2022 - 6 mo. 0 0 0 2.28 4.73 7.00 2.28 4.73 7.00

76 157 233 9.43 19.58 29.00 85.43 176.58 262.00

Notes: (a) Based on claim count information provided by NICA and the classification assignment plan as shown in Section I, Exhibit III.
            (b) Estimated unreported claim counts are based on analysis shown in Section VI. The estimates are shown in Section VI, Exhibit II, Cols. (14)
                  to (18).

 ----------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------  -----------------------------------------

Estimate O/S Claim CountsOpen Accepted Claim Counts Estimated Unreported
 as of 6/30/2022 as of 6/30/2022 (a)  as of 6/30/2022 (b)



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit IV

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & Expense Sheet 2

Estimated Annual Payments By Class and Expense Category
 2021 Level Incremental Payments

Classes Classes Classes
Class B, C Class B, C Class B, C

Age A  & D A  & D A  & D
  ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

1 85,260 60,339 21,875 11,250 6,552 4,856
2 85,260 60,339 21,875 11,250 23,751 16,997
3 85,260 60,339 21,875 11,250 23,751 16,997
4 85,260 60,339 21,875 11,250 23,751 16,997
5 85,260 60,339 21,875 11,250 23,751 16,997
6 85,260 60,339 21,875 11,250 23,751 16,997
7 85,260 60,339 21,875 11,250 23,751 16,997
8 85,260 60,339 21,875 11,250 23,751 16,997
9 85,260 60,339 21,875 11,250 23,751 16,997

10 132,153 100,565 12,500 11,250 27,846 21,246
11 132,153 100,565 12,500 11,250 27,846 21,246
12 132,153 100,565 12,500 11,250 27,846 21,246
13 132,153 100,565 12,500 11,250 27,846 21,246
14 132,153 100,565 12,500 11,250 27,846 21,246
15 132,153 100,565 12,500 11,250 27,846 21,246
16 132,153 100,565 12,500 11,250 27,846 21,246
17 132,153 100,565 12,500 11,250 27,846 21,246
18 132,153 100,565 12,500 11,250 27,846 21,246
19 132,153 100,565 12,500 11,250 27,846 21,246
20 170,519 114,932 12,500 12,500 32,760 24,281
21 170,519 114,932 12,500 12,500 32,760 24,281
22 170,519 114,932 12,500 12,500 32,760 24,281
23 170,519 114,932 12,500 12,500 32,760 24,281
24 170,519 114,932 12,500 12,500 32,760 24,281
25 187,571 126,425 12,550 12,550 36,036 26,709
26 187,571 126,425 12,800 12,800 36,036 26,709
27 187,571 126,425 13,100 13,100 36,036 26,709
28 187,571 126,425 13,588 13,588 36,036 26,709
29 187,571 126,425 13,988 13,988 36,036 26,709
30 187,571 126,425 14,188 14,188 36,036 26,709
31 187,571 126,425 14,488 14,488 36,036 26,709
32 187,571 126,425 14,788 14,788 36,036 26,709
33 187,571 126,425 14,975 14,975 36,036 26,709
34 187,571 126,425 15,175 15,175 36,036 26,709
35 187,571 126,425 15,275 15,275 36,036 26,709
36 187,571 126,425 15,375 15,375 36,036 26,709
37 187,571 126,425 15,475 15,475 36,036 26,709
38 187,571 126,425 15,575 15,575 36,036 26,709
39 187,571 126,425 15,775 15,775 36,036 26,709
40 187,571 126,425 15,975 15,975 36,036 26,709
41 187,571 126,425 16,275 16,275 36,036 26,709
42 187,571 126,425 16,563 16,563 36,036 26,709
43 187,571 126,425 16,963 16,963 36,036 26,709
44 187,571 126,425 17,463 17,463 36,036 26,709
45 187,571 126,425 18,050 18,050 36,036 26,709
46 187,571 126,425 18,750 18,750 36,036 26,709
47 187,571 126,425 19,538 19,538 36,036 26,709
48 187,571 126,425 20,438 20,438 36,036 26,709
49 187,571 126,425 21,325 21,325 36,036 26,709
50 187,571 126,425 22,325 22,325 36,036 26,709
51 187,571 126,425 23,313 23,313 36,036 26,709
52 187,571 126,425 24,400 24,400 36,036 26,709
53 187,571 126,425 25,500 25,500 36,036 26,709
54 187,571 126,425 26,688 26,688 36,036 26,709
55 187,571 126,425 27,875 27,875 36,036 26,709
56 187,571 126,425 29,163 29,163 36,036 26,709
57 187,571 126,425 30,463 30,463 36,036 26,709
58 187,571 126,425 31,850 31,850 36,036 26,709
59 187,571 126,425 32,538 32,538 36,036 26,709
60 187,571 126,425 33,925 33,925 36,036 26,709
61 187,571 126,425 35,125 35,125 36,036 26,709
62 187,571 126,425 35,913 35,913 36,036 26,709
63 187,571 126,425 36,900 36,900 36,036 26,709
64 187,571 126,425 37,500 37,500 36,036 26,709
65 187,571 126,425 37,500 37,500 36,036 26,709

 66 & Over 187,571 126,425 37,500 37,500 36,036 26,709

Hospital, Physicians All Other Expense
Nursing Care  & Drugs Categories

  -------------------   -------------------   -------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit IV

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & Expense Sheet 3

Selected Current Level (Age 20 to 24) Average Annual Expense

Current Level = 2021

Classes Classes Classes
Class B, C Class B, C Class B, C

Description A  & D A  & D A  & D
  ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

Best Estimate 175,000 125,000 12,500 12,500 35,000 25,000

Best Estimate 160,000 90,000 12,500 12,500 27,500 22,500

Open Claims - Medicaid 54 104
Open Claims - Non - Medicaid 23 42

Combined 77 146

Best Estimate 170,519 114,932 12,500 12,500 32,760 24,281

Selected 170,519 114,932 12,500 12,500 32,760 24,281

Hospital, Physicians All Other Expense
Nursing Care  & Drugs Categories

  -------------------   -------------------   -------------------

 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Medicaid Claimants
 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Non - Medicaid Claimants
 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Combined -Medicaid and Non-Medicaid Claimants



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit IV

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & Expense Sheet 4
Adjustment in Annual Payments - Incremental
Adjustment for Age and Class By Expense Category
Relativity to Age 20 to 24
Factors Shown are Selected Based on an Averages
of the Medicaid and Non-Medicaid Factors Shown in 
Sheet 5

Classes Classes Classes
Class B, C Class B, C Class B, C

Age A  & D A  & D A  & D
  ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

1 0.5000 0.5250 1.7500 0.9000 0.2000 0.2000
2 0.5000 0.5250 1.7500 0.9000 0.7250 0.7000
3 0.5000 0.5250 1.7500 0.9000 0.7250 0.7000
4 0.5000 0.5250 1.7500 0.9000 0.7250 0.7000
5 0.5000 0.5250 1.7500 0.9000 0.7250 0.7000
6 0.5000 0.5250 1.7500 0.9000 0.7250 0.7000
7 0.5000 0.5250 1.7500 0.9000 0.7250 0.7000
8 0.5000 0.5250 1.7500 0.9000 0.7250 0.7000
9 0.5000 0.5250 1.7500 0.9000 0.7250 0.7000

10 0.7750 0.8750 1.0000 0.9000 0.8500 0.8750
11 0.7750 0.8750 1.0000 0.9000 0.8500 0.8750
12 0.7750 0.8750 1.0000 0.9000 0.8500 0.8750
13 0.7750 0.8750 1.0000 0.9000 0.8500 0.8750
14 0.7750 0.8750 1.0000 0.9000 0.8500 0.8750
15 0.7750 0.8750 1.0000 0.9000 0.8500 0.8750
16 0.7750 0.8750 1.0000 0.9000 0.8500 0.8750
17 0.7750 0.8750 1.0000 0.9000 0.8500 0.8750
18 0.7750 0.8750 1.0000 0.9000 0.8500 0.8750
19 0.7750 0.8750 1.0000 0.9000 0.8500 0.8750
20 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000
21 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000
22 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000
23 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000
24 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000
25 1.1000 1.1000 1.0040 1.0040 1.1000 1.1000
26 1.1000 1.1000 1.0240 1.0240 1.1000 1.1000
27 1.1000 1.1000 1.0480 1.0480 1.1000 1.1000
28 1.1000 1.1000 1.0870 1.0870 1.1000 1.1000
29 1.1000 1.1000 1.1190 1.1190 1.1000 1.1000
30 1.1000 1.1000 1.1350 1.1350 1.1000 1.1000
31 1.1000 1.1000 1.1590 1.1590 1.1000 1.1000
32 1.1000 1.1000 1.1830 1.1830 1.1000 1.1000
33 1.1000 1.1000 1.1980 1.1980 1.1000 1.1000
34 1.1000 1.1000 1.2140 1.2140 1.1000 1.1000
35 1.1000 1.1000 1.2220 1.2220 1.1000 1.1000
36 1.1000 1.1000 1.2300 1.2300 1.1000 1.1000
37 1.1000 1.1000 1.2380 1.2380 1.1000 1.1000
38 1.1000 1.1000 1.2460 1.2460 1.1000 1.1000
39 1.1000 1.1000 1.2620 1.2620 1.1000 1.1000
40 1.1000 1.1000 1.2780 1.2780 1.1000 1.1000
41 1.1000 1.1000 1.3020 1.3020 1.1000 1.1000
42 1.1000 1.1000 1.3250 1.3250 1.1000 1.1000
43 1.1000 1.1000 1.3570 1.3570 1.1000 1.1000
44 1.1000 1.1000 1.3970 1.3970 1.1000 1.1000
45 1.1000 1.1000 1.4440 1.4440 1.1000 1.1000
46 1.1000 1.1000 1.5000 1.5000 1.1000 1.1000
47 1.1000 1.1000 1.5630 1.5630 1.1000 1.1000
48 1.1000 1.1000 1.6350 1.6350 1.1000 1.1000
49 1.1000 1.1000 1.7060 1.7060 1.1000 1.1000
50 1.1000 1.1000 1.7860 1.7860 1.1000 1.1000
51 1.1000 1.1000 1.8650 1.8650 1.1000 1.1000
52 1.1000 1.1000 1.9520 1.9520 1.1000 1.1000
53 1.1000 1.1000 2.0400 2.0400 1.1000 1.1000
54 1.1000 1.1000 2.1350 2.1350 1.1000 1.1000
55 1.1000 1.1000 2.2300 2.2300 1.1000 1.1000
56 1.1000 1.1000 2.3330 2.3330 1.1000 1.1000
57 1.1000 1.1000 2.4370 2.4370 1.1000 1.1000
58 1.1000 1.1000 2.5480 2.5480 1.1000 1.1000
59 1.1000 1.1000 2.6030 2.6030 1.1000 1.1000
60 1.1000 1.1000 2.7140 2.7140 1.1000 1.1000
61 1.1000 1.1000 2.8100 2.8100 1.1000 1.1000
62 1.1000 1.1000 2.8730 2.8730 1.1000 1.1000
63 1.1000 1.1000 2.9520 2.9520 1.1000 1.1000
64 1.1000 1.1000 3.0000 3.0000 1.1000 1.1000
65 1.1000 1.1000 3.0000 3.0000 1.1000 1.1000

 66 & Over 1.1000 1.1000 3.0000 3.0000 1.1000 1.1000

  -------------------  -------------------   -------------------
Nursing Care

Hospital, Physicians
 & Drugs

All Other Expense
Categories



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit IV

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & ALAE Reserves  - Excluding Parental Award and Burial Expense Sheet 5
Summary of Selected Annual Loss & ALAE Payment Assumptions (a)
Current Level (2021)

NICA & Medicaid NICA & Medicaid NICA & Medicaid
Payments Payments Payments

Non Medicaid Medicaid Medicaid Non Medicaid Medicaid Medicaid Non Medicaid Medicaid Medicaid
Claimants Claimants Claimants Claimants Claimants Claimants Claimants Claimants Claimants

Age
Range
 ---------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)

 1 to 9 73,754 44,945 82,477 10,090 2,735 49,441 16,170 6,805 29,366
 10 to 19 113,034 83,894 125,237 11,862 5,095 18,231 24,311 15,205 20,868
 20 to 24 137,613 95,465 172,674 6,108 7,477 18,307 14,821 19,408 43,269
25 to 30 163,919 109,945 113,465 8,140 6,308 17,983 22,210 7,604 26,743

Selected
Age 20 - 24 160,000 110,000 175,000 12,500 10,000 12,500 27,500 17,500 35,000

Selected
Relativity

 1 to 9 0.500 0.600 0.500 1.000 0.500 2.500 0.750 0.500 0.700
 10 to 19 0.800 0.850 0.750 1.000 0.750 1.000 1.000 0.800 0.700
 20 to 24 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
25 to 30 1.100 1.100 1.100 1.100 1.100 1.100 1.100 1.100 1.100

(11) (12) (13) (14) (15) (16) (17) (18) (19)

 1 to 9 50,231 34,149 31,105 6,266 3,501 13,514 9,293 7,117 15,570
 10 to 19 74,903 85,061 89,385 3,749 3,619 13,627 13,215 12,556 17,252
 20 to 24 84,906 108,765 99,975 7,551 5,145 7,029 15,896 13,676 20,986
25 to 30 77,007 89,405 80,591 10,969 5,912 15,438 11,912 16,665 20,220

Selected
Age 20 - 24 90,000 100,000 125,000 12,500 6,500 12,500 22,500 15,000 25,000

Selected
Relativity

 1 to 9 0.650 0.500 0.400 0.800 0.600 1.000 0.650 0.500 0.750
 10 to 19 0.900 0.850 0.850 0.800 0.750 1.000 0.900 0.900 0.850
 20 to 24 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
25 to 30 1.100 1.100 1.100 1.100 1.100 1.100 1.100 1.100 1.100

Notes: (a) Selected average incremental payment amounts by category (age 20 to 24) and relativity factors for the various age intervals are based on the review of NICA and Medicaid
                 annual payments over the period from 2013 to 2020 for each open accepted claim with a reserve worksheet.

  ----------------------------------   ----------------------------------   ----------------------------------

Nursing Care Physician, Hospital, Drugs and Therapy All Other Expenses - Excl. Parental Award
 -------------------------------------------------------------  -------------------------------------------------------------  -------------------------------------------------------------

Classes B, C & D Classes B, C & D Classes B, C & D
 ---------------------------------------------------------------  ---------------------------------------------------------------  ---------------------------------------------------------------

Class A Class A Class A
 ---------------------------------------------------------------  ---------------------------------------------------------------  ---------------------------------------------------------------

NICA Payments Only NICA Payments Only NICA Payments Only



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit V

Estimation of Remaining Open Claim Counts - By Year End Sheet 1a-1

Class A

Based on Mortality Tables Shown in Section VIII

Calendar BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY
Year 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999

 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12)

 6/30/22 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 2.000 0.000 0.000 3.000 1.000 3.000 2.000

2022 0.953 0.954 0.955 0.956 1.913 0.000 0.000 2.876 0.959 2.879 1.921
2023 0.908 0.909 0.911 0.912 1.828 0.000 0.000 2.754 0.919 2.762 1.843
2024 0.863 0.866 0.868 0.871 1.745 0.000 0.000 2.636 0.881 2.647 1.768
2025 0.821 0.824 0.827 0.830 1.665 0.000 0.000 2.522 0.843 2.535 1.695
2026 0.779 0.783 0.787 0.790 1.587 0.000 0.000 2.410 0.806 2.427 1.623
2027 0.739 0.743 0.747 0.752 1.511 0.000 0.000 2.301 0.770 2.321 1.554
2028 0.700 0.705 0.710 0.714 1.438 0.000 0.000 2.195 0.736 2.218 1.486
2029 0.662 0.667 0.673 0.678 1.366 0.000 0.000 2.092 0.702 2.118 1.420
2030 0.625 0.631 0.637 0.643 1.297 0.000 0.000 1.992 0.669 2.021 1.356
2031 0.590 0.597 0.603 0.609 1.230 0.000 0.000 1.895 0.637 1.926 1.294
2032 0.556 0.563 0.570 0.576 1.165 0.000 0.000 1.801 0.606 1.834 1.233
2033 0.523 0.530 0.537 0.544 1.102 0.000 0.000 1.710 0.576 1.745 1.174
2034 0.491 0.499 0.506 0.514 1.041 0.000 0.000 1.621 0.547 1.658 1.117
2035 0.460 0.468 0.476 0.484 0.982 0.000 0.000 1.536 0.518 1.574 1.061
2036 0.430 0.439 0.447 0.455 0.925 0.000 0.000 1.453 0.491 1.493 1.008
2037 0.402 0.411 0.419 0.427 0.870 0.000 0.000 1.373 0.464 1.414 0.956
2038 0.374 0.383 0.392 0.400 0.817 0.000 0.000 1.295 0.439 1.337 0.905
2039 0.348 0.357 0.366 0.375 0.766 0.000 0.000 1.220 0.414 1.263 0.856
2040 0.322 0.332 0.341 0.350 0.717 0.000 0.000 1.147 0.390 1.192 0.809
2041 0.298 0.308 0.317 0.326 0.669 0.000 0.000 1.077 0.367 1.123 0.763
2042 0.275 0.284 0.294 0.303 0.623 0.000 0.000 1.010 0.344 1.056 0.719
2043 0.253 0.262 0.272 0.281 0.579 0.000 0.000 0.945 0.323 0.992 0.676
2044 0.232 0.241 0.250 0.260 0.537 0.000 0.000 0.882 0.302 0.929 0.635
2045 0.212 0.221 0.230 0.239 0.496 0.000 0.000 0.821 0.282 0.869 0.595
2046 0.193 0.202 0.211 0.220 0.458 0.000 0.000 0.763 0.263 0.812 0.557
2047 0.175 0.184 0.193 0.202 0.421 0.000 0.000 0.708 0.244 0.756 0.520
2048 0.158 0.167 0.175 0.184 0.386 0.000 0.000 0.654 0.226 0.703 0.484
2049 0.142 0.150 0.159 0.168 0.352 0.000 0.000 0.603 0.209 0.651 0.450
2050 0.127 0.135 0.144 0.152 0.321 0.000 0.000 0.555 0.193 0.602 0.417
2051 0.113 0.121 0.129 0.137 0.291 0.000 0.000 0.508 0.177 0.555 0.386
2052 0.100 0.108 0.115 0.123 0.262 0.000 0.000 0.464 0.163 0.511 0.356
2053 0.088 0.095 0.103 0.110 0.236 0.000 0.000 0.423 0.148 0.468 0.327
2054 0.077 0.084 0.091 0.098 0.211 0.000 0.000 0.383 0.135 0.427 0.300
2055 0.067 0.073 0.080 0.087 0.188 0.000 0.000 0.346 0.123 0.389 0.274
2056 0.058 0.064 0.070 0.077 0.166 0.000 0.000 0.311 0.111 0.353 0.249
2057 0.049 0.055 0.061 0.067 0.146 0.000 0.000 0.278 0.099 0.318 0.226
2058 0.042 0.047 0.052 0.058 0.128 0.000 0.000 0.248 0.089 0.286 0.204
2059 0.035 0.040 0.045 0.050 0.111 0.000 0.000 0.219 0.079 0.256 0.183
2060 0.029 0.034 0.038 0.043 0.096 0.000 0.000 0.193 0.070 0.228 0.164
2061 0.024 0.028 0.032 0.036 0.082 0.000 0.000 0.169 0.062 0.202 0.146
2062 0.020 0.023 0.027 0.031 0.070 0.000 0.000 0.147 0.054 0.178 0.129
2063 0.016 0.019 0.022 0.025 0.059 0.000 0.000 0.126 0.047 0.155 0.114
2064 0.012 0.015 0.018 0.021 0.049 0.000 0.000 0.108 0.040 0.135 0.099
2065 0.010 0.012 0.014 0.017 0.040 0.000 0.000 0.092 0.035 0.116 0.086
2066 0.007 0.009 0.011 0.014 0.033 0.000 0.000 0.077 0.029 0.100 0.074
2067 0.006 0.007 0.009 0.011 0.026 0.000 0.000 0.064 0.025 0.084 0.064
2068 0.004 0.005 0.007 0.008 0.021 0.000 0.000 0.053 0.021 0.071 0.054
2069 0.003 0.004 0.005 0.006 0.016 0.000 0.000 0.043 0.017 0.059 0.045
2070 0.002 0.003 0.004 0.005 0.012 0.000 0.000 0.035 0.014 0.049 0.038
2071 0.001 0.002 0.003 0.004 0.009 0.000 0.000 0.027 0.011 0.040 0.031



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit V

Estimation of Remaining Open Claim Counts - By Year End Sheet 1a-2

Class A

Based on Mortality Tables Shown in Section VIII

Calendar BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY
Year 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999

 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12)

2072 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.003 0.007 0.000 0.000 0.021 0.009 0.032 0.025
2073 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.016 0.007 0.025 0.020
2074 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.003 0.000 0.000 0.012 0.005 0.020 0.016
2075 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.000 0.000 0.009 0.004 0.015 0.013
2076 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.002 0.000 0.000 0.006 0.003 0.011 0.010
2077 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.005 0.002 0.008 0.007
2078 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.001 0.006 0.005
2079 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.001 0.004 0.004
2080 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.003 0.003
2081 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.000 0.002 0.002
2082 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001
2083 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001
2084 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2085 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2086 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2087 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2088 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2089 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2090 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2091 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2092 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2093 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2094 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2095 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2096 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2097 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2098 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2099 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2100 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2101 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2102 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2103 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2104 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2105 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2106 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2107 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2108 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2109 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2110 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2111 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2112 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2113 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2114 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2115 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2116 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2117 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2118 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2119 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2120 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit V

Estimation of Remaining Open Claim Counts - By Year End Sheet 1a-2

Class A

Based on Mortality Tables Shown in Section VIII

Calendar BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY
Year 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999

 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12)

2072 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.003 0.007 0.000 0.000 0.021 0.009 0.032 0.025
2073 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.016 0.007 0.025 0.020
2074 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.003 0.000 0.000 0.012 0.005 0.020 0.016
2075 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.000 0.000 0.009 0.004 0.015 0.013
2076 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.002 0.000 0.000 0.006 0.003 0.011 0.010
2077 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.005 0.002 0.008 0.007
2078 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.001 0.006 0.005
2079 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.001 0.004 0.004
2080 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.003 0.003
2081 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.000 0.002 0.002
2082 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001
2083 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001
2084 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2085 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2086 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2087 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2088 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2089 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2090 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2091 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2092 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2093 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2094 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2095 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2096 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2097 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2098 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2099 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2100 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2101 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2102 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2103 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2104 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2105 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2106 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2107 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2108 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2109 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2110 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2111 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2112 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2113 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2114 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2115 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2116 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2117 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2118 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2119 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2120 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit V

Estimation of Remaining Open Claim Counts - By Year End Sheet 1b-2

Class A

Based on Mortality Tables Shown in Section VIII

Calendar BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY
Year 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
(1) (13) (14) (15) (16) (18) (19) (20) (21) (22) (23) (24)

2072 0.015 0.035 0.121 0.023 0.026 0.118 0.099 0.184 0.081 0.178 0.000
2073 0.012 0.029 0.101 0.019 0.022 0.101 0.086 0.160 0.071 0.157 0.000
2074 0.010 0.023 0.083 0.016 0.019 0.086 0.073 0.138 0.062 0.137 0.000
2075 0.008 0.019 0.068 0.013 0.016 0.072 0.062 0.118 0.053 0.119 0.000
2076 0.006 0.015 0.054 0.011 0.013 0.060 0.052 0.100 0.045 0.103 0.000
2077 0.005 0.012 0.043 0.009 0.010 0.050 0.043 0.084 0.039 0.088 0.000
2078 0.003 0.009 0.034 0.007 0.008 0.040 0.036 0.070 0.032 0.075 0.000
2079 0.003 0.007 0.026 0.005 0.007 0.032 0.029 0.058 0.027 0.063 0.000
2080 0.002 0.005 0.019 0.004 0.005 0.026 0.023 0.047 0.022 0.052 0.000
2081 0.001 0.004 0.014 0.003 0.004 0.020 0.019 0.038 0.018 0.043 0.000
2082 0.001 0.002 0.010 0.002 0.003 0.015 0.014 0.030 0.015 0.035 0.000
2083 0.001 0.002 0.007 0.002 0.002 0.011 0.011 0.023 0.012 0.028 0.000
2084 0.000 0.001 0.005 0.001 0.002 0.008 0.008 0.018 0.009 0.022 0.000
2085 0.000 0.001 0.003 0.001 0.001 0.006 0.006 0.013 0.007 0.017 0.000
2086 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.004 0.010 0.005 0.013 0.000
2087 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.003 0.007 0.004 0.010 0.000
2088 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.002 0.005 0.003 0.007 0.000
2089 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.003 0.002 0.005 0.000
2090 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.004 0.000
2091 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.003 0.000
2092 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.000
2093 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.000
2094 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.000
2095 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2096 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2097 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2098 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2099 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2100 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2101 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2102 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2103 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2104 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2105 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2106 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2107 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2108 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2109 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2110 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2111 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2112 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2113 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2114 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2115 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2116 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2117 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2118 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2119 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2120 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit V

Estimation of Remaining Open Claim Counts - By Year End Sheet 1c-1

Class A

Based on Mortality Tables Shown in Section VIII

Calendar BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY
Year 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 - 6

 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
(1) (25) (26) (27) (28) (29) (30) (31) (32) (33) (34) (35) (36)

 6/30/22 3.000 1.000 5.000 3.000 6.000 2.000 4.325 3.325 3.975 3.950 3.575 2.275

2022 2.902 0.968 4.842 2.907 5.816 1.939 4.196 3.227 3.859 3.836 3.472 2.190
2023 2.806 0.936 4.687 2.815 5.635 1.880 4.069 3.131 3.745 3.724 3.372 2.127
2024 2.712 0.906 4.535 2.725 5.457 1.821 3.944 3.036 3.633 3.614 3.273 2.066
2025 2.619 0.875 4.385 2.636 5.282 1.764 3.821 2.943 3.523 3.506 3.177 2.006
2026 2.527 0.845 4.237 2.549 5.110 1.707 3.700 2.851 3.415 3.400 3.082 1.946
2027 2.437 0.815 4.092 2.463 4.941 1.652 3.582 2.761 3.309 3.296 2.989 1.888
2028 2.348 0.786 3.948 2.379 4.775 1.597 3.465 2.673 3.204 3.193 2.897 1.831
2029 2.261 0.758 3.807 2.295 4.611 1.543 3.351 2.586 3.102 3.092 2.807 1.775
2030 2.176 0.730 3.668 2.213 4.449 1.490 3.238 2.500 3.001 2.993 2.718 1.720
2031 2.094 0.702 3.533 2.133 4.290 1.438 3.127 2.416 2.902 2.896 2.631 1.665
2032 2.013 0.676 3.400 2.054 4.134 1.387 3.017 2.333 2.804 2.800 2.546 1.612
2033 1.934 0.650 3.271 1.977 3.981 1.336 2.909 2.251 2.708 2.706 2.461 1.560
2034 1.857 0.624 3.145 1.902 3.832 1.287 2.803 2.171 2.613 2.613 2.378 1.508
2035 1.783 0.599 3.022 1.828 3.686 1.239 2.700 2.092 2.519 2.521 2.297 1.457
2036 1.710 0.575 2.902 1.757 3.544 1.192 2.599 2.014 2.428 2.431 2.216 1.407
2037 1.639 0.552 2.785 1.687 3.406 1.146 2.500 1.939 2.338 2.343 2.137 1.358
2038 1.570 0.529 2.671 1.619 3.270 1.101 2.403 1.865 2.250 2.256 2.059 1.309
2039 1.503 0.507 2.561 1.553 3.139 1.057 2.309 1.793 2.165 2.172 1.983 1.262
2040 1.437 0.485 2.453 1.488 3.010 1.015 2.218 1.723 2.081 2.089 1.909 1.215
2041 1.373 0.464 2.348 1.426 2.886 0.973 2.128 1.655 2.000 2.008 1.836 1.170
2042 1.311 0.443 2.245 1.365 2.764 0.933 2.041 1.588 1.920 1.930 1.765 1.125
2043 1.251 0.423 2.146 1.305 2.646 0.893 1.957 1.523 1.843 1.853 1.696 1.082
2044 1.192 0.404 2.049 1.247 2.530 0.855 1.874 1.460 1.768 1.779 1.629 1.039
2045 1.135 0.385 1.954 1.191 2.418 0.818 1.794 1.398 1.694 1.706 1.563 0.998
2046 1.080 0.366 1.863 1.136 2.309 0.782 1.716 1.339 1.623 1.635 1.500 0.958
2047 1.027 0.349 1.774 1.083 2.203 0.746 1.640 1.280 1.554 1.566 1.437 0.919
2048 0.975 0.331 1.688 1.031 2.099 0.712 1.566 1.223 1.486 1.499 1.377 0.881
2049 0.924 0.314 1.604 0.981 1.999 0.679 1.494 1.168 1.420 1.434 1.318 0.844
2050 0.875 0.298 1.523 0.932 1.902 0.646 1.424 1.114 1.356 1.370 1.260 0.807
2051 0.828 0.282 1.444 0.885 1.807 0.615 1.356 1.062 1.293 1.308 1.204 0.772
2052 0.782 0.267 1.367 0.839 1.716 0.584 1.290 1.012 1.233 1.248 1.150 0.738
2053 0.738 0.252 1.294 0.795 1.627 0.555 1.226 0.962 1.174 1.190 1.097 0.705
2054 0.695 0.238 1.222 0.752 1.541 0.526 1.164 0.914 1.117 1.133 1.046 0.672
2055 0.654 0.224 1.153 0.710 1.458 0.498 1.103 0.868 1.061 1.078 0.996 0.641
2056 0.614 0.211 1.086 0.670 1.377 0.471 1.045 0.823 1.008 1.024 0.947 0.610
2057 0.575 0.198 1.022 0.631 1.299 0.445 0.989 0.780 0.955 0.972 0.900 0.580
2058 0.538 0.186 0.959 0.594 1.224 0.420 0.934 0.738 0.905 0.922 0.855 0.552
2059 0.503 0.174 0.899 0.558 1.151 0.396 0.881 0.697 0.856 0.873 0.810 0.524
2060 0.468 0.162 0.841 0.523 1.081 0.372 0.830 0.657 0.809 0.826 0.768 0.497
2061 0.435 0.151 0.785 0.489 1.013 0.349 0.781 0.619 0.763 0.780 0.726 0.470
2062 0.403 0.140 0.731 0.456 0.948 0.328 0.733 0.582 0.719 0.736 0.686 0.445
2063 0.373 0.130 0.680 0.425 0.885 0.306 0.687 0.547 0.676 0.694 0.647 0.420
2064 0.344 0.120 0.630 0.395 0.824 0.286 0.643 0.513 0.635 0.652 0.610 0.397
2065 0.316 0.111 0.583 0.366 0.766 0.266 0.600 0.480 0.595 0.613 0.573 0.374
2066 0.290 0.102 0.537 0.339 0.710 0.248 0.559 0.448 0.557 0.574 0.538 0.351
2067 0.265 0.093 0.494 0.312 0.657 0.230 0.519 0.417 0.520 0.537 0.505 0.330
2068 0.241 0.085 0.453 0.287 0.606 0.212 0.482 0.388 0.484 0.501 0.472 0.309
2069 0.218 0.078 0.414 0.263 0.557 0.196 0.445 0.359 0.450 0.467 0.441 0.289
2070 0.197 0.070 0.376 0.240 0.510 0.180 0.411 0.332 0.417 0.434 0.411 0.270
2071 0.177 0.064 0.341 0.219 0.466 0.165 0.378 0.306 0.386 0.402 0.382 0.252



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit V

Estimation of Remaining Open Claim Counts - By Year End Sheet 1c-2

Class A

Based on Mortality Tables Shown in Section VIII

Calendar BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY
Year 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 - 6

 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
(1) (25) (26) (27) (28) (29) (30) (31) (32) (33) (34) (35) (36)

2072 0.159 0.057 0.308 0.198 0.424 0.151 0.346 0.282 0.356 0.372 0.354 0.234
2073 0.141 0.051 0.277 0.179 0.385 0.137 0.316 0.258 0.327 0.343 0.327 0.217
2074 0.125 0.046 0.248 0.161 0.347 0.124 0.288 0.236 0.300 0.315 0.302 0.200
2075 0.110 0.040 0.221 0.144 0.312 0.112 0.261 0.215 0.274 0.289 0.277 0.185
2076 0.096 0.035 0.195 0.128 0.279 0.101 0.235 0.195 0.249 0.264 0.254 0.170
2077 0.084 0.031 0.172 0.114 0.249 0.090 0.212 0.176 0.226 0.240 0.232 0.156
2078 0.072 0.027 0.150 0.100 0.220 0.080 0.189 0.158 0.204 0.218 0.211 0.142
2079 0.062 0.023 0.131 0.087 0.194 0.071 0.169 0.141 0.183 0.197 0.192 0.129
2080 0.052 0.020 0.113 0.076 0.169 0.063 0.149 0.126 0.164 0.177 0.173 0.117
2081 0.044 0.017 0.096 0.065 0.147 0.055 0.131 0.111 0.146 0.158 0.155 0.106
2082 0.037 0.014 0.082 0.056 0.127 0.048 0.115 0.098 0.129 0.141 0.139 0.095
2083 0.030 0.012 0.069 0.048 0.109 0.041 0.100 0.086 0.114 0.125 0.124 0.085
2084 0.025 0.010 0.057 0.040 0.092 0.035 0.086 0.074 0.099 0.110 0.110 0.076
2085 0.020 0.008 0.047 0.033 0.077 0.030 0.074 0.064 0.086 0.096 0.096 0.067
2086 0.016 0.006 0.038 0.027 0.064 0.025 0.062 0.055 0.074 0.083 0.084 0.059
2087 0.012 0.005 0.031 0.022 0.053 0.021 0.053 0.047 0.064 0.072 0.073 0.052
2088 0.009 0.004 0.024 0.018 0.043 0.017 0.044 0.039 0.054 0.061 0.063 0.045
2089 0.007 0.003 0.019 0.014 0.035 0.014 0.036 0.033 0.045 0.052 0.054 0.039
2090 0.005 0.002 0.015 0.011 0.027 0.011 0.029 0.027 0.038 0.044 0.046 0.033
2091 0.004 0.002 0.011 0.008 0.021 0.009 0.024 0.022 0.031 0.037 0.039 0.028
2092 0.003 0.001 0.008 0.006 0.016 0.007 0.019 0.018 0.025 0.030 0.032 0.024
2093 0.002 0.001 0.006 0.005 0.012 0.005 0.015 0.014 0.020 0.024 0.026 0.020
2094 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.003 0.009 0.004 0.011 0.011 0.016 0.020 0.022 0.016
2095 0.001 0.000 0.003 0.002 0.007 0.003 0.008 0.008 0.013 0.016 0.017 0.013
2096 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.002 0.005 0.002 0.006 0.006 0.010 0.012 0.014 0.011
2097 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.003 0.001 0.004 0.005 0.007 0.009 0.011 0.008
2098 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.005 0.007 0.008 0.007
2099 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.002 0.004 0.005 0.006 0.005
2100 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.000 0.001 0.002 0.003 0.004 0.005 0.004
2101 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.003 0.003 0.003
2102 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.002 0.002
2103 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001
2104 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.001
2105 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001
2106 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2107 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2108 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2109 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2110 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2111 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2112 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2113 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2114 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2115 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2116 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2117 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2118 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2119 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
2120 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit V

Estimation of Remaining Open Claim Counts - By Year End Sheet 2a-1

Classes B, C & D

Based on Mortality Tables Shown in Section VIII

Calendar BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY
Year 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999

 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12)

 12/31/21 2.000 2.000 3.000 8.000 5.000 3.000 5.000 3.000 7.000 8.000 1.000

2022 1.981 1.982 2.973 7.930 4.957 2.975 4.959 2.976 6.944 7.937 0.992
2023 1.962 1.963 2.946 7.859 4.914 2.949 4.917 2.951 6.888 7.874 0.984
2024 1.943 1.944 2.918 7.787 4.870 2.924 4.875 2.927 6.832 7.811 0.977
2025 1.924 1.925 2.891 7.715 4.825 2.898 4.833 2.902 6.775 7.746 0.969
2026 1.904 1.906 2.862 7.641 4.780 2.871 4.790 2.876 6.717 7.682 0.961
2027 1.884 1.887 2.834 7.566 4.735 2.844 4.746 2.851 6.658 7.616 0.953
2028 1.864 1.867 2.805 7.491 4.689 2.817 4.701 2.825 6.598 7.549 0.945
2029 1.843 1.847 2.775 7.414 4.642 2.790 4.657 2.798 6.538 7.482 0.936
2030 1.823 1.827 2.746 7.336 4.594 2.762 4.611 2.771 6.477 7.413 0.928
2031 1.801 1.806 2.715 7.258 4.546 2.733 4.565 2.744 6.415 7.344 0.920
2032 1.780 1.785 2.685 7.178 4.497 2.705 4.518 2.717 6.353 7.274 0.911
2033 1.758 1.763 2.653 7.096 4.448 2.676 4.471 2.689 6.289 7.203 0.902
2034 1.735 1.742 2.622 7.014 4.397 2.646 4.423 2.661 6.225 7.131 0.893
2035 1.712 1.719 2.589 6.930 4.346 2.616 4.374 2.632 6.159 7.058 0.884
2036 1.688 1.696 2.556 6.844 4.294 2.586 4.325 2.603 6.093 6.984 0.875
2037 1.664 1.673 2.522 6.756 4.241 2.555 4.274 2.574 6.026 6.909 0.866
2038 1.639 1.649 2.487 6.666 4.186 2.523 4.223 2.544 5.958 6.833 0.857
2039 1.613 1.624 2.451 6.574 4.131 2.491 4.171 2.513 5.889 6.756 0.848
2040 1.586 1.598 2.414 6.479 4.073 2.458 4.117 2.482 5.818 6.677 0.838
2041 1.559 1.572 2.376 6.381 4.015 2.424 4.062 2.450 5.746 6.597 0.828
2042 1.531 1.545 2.337 6.281 3.954 2.389 4.006 2.418 5.672 6.515 0.818
2043 1.502 1.517 2.296 6.177 3.892 2.353 3.948 2.384 5.596 6.431 0.808
2044 1.472 1.488 2.255 6.070 3.828 2.316 3.889 2.350 5.519 6.346 0.798
2045 1.441 1.458 2.212 5.960 3.761 2.277 3.828 2.314 5.439 6.258 0.787
2046 1.409 1.427 2.168 5.847 3.693 2.238 3.764 2.278 5.358 6.168 0.776
2047 1.376 1.396 2.122 5.730 3.623 2.197 3.699 2.240 5.273 6.075 0.765
2048 1.342 1.363 2.075 5.609 3.551 2.156 3.632 2.202 5.186 5.979 0.753
2049 1.307 1.330 2.026 5.485 3.476 2.112 3.563 2.162 5.096 5.880 0.742
2050 1.271 1.295 1.976 5.357 3.399 2.068 3.492 2.121 5.004 5.779 0.729
2051 1.234 1.259 1.925 5.224 3.319 2.022 3.418 2.078 4.909 5.674 0.717
2052 1.195 1.222 1.872 5.088 3.237 1.975 3.343 2.034 4.811 5.566 0.704
2053 1.156 1.184 1.817 4.948 3.153 1.926 3.264 1.989 4.709 5.455 0.690
2054 1.115 1.145 1.761 4.803 3.066 1.876 3.184 1.943 4.605 5.340 0.677
2055 1.074 1.105 1.703 4.654 2.976 1.824 3.101 1.895 4.497 5.222 0.662
2056 1.031 1.064 1.643 4.501 2.884 1.771 3.015 1.846 4.386 5.099 0.648
2057 0.988 1.022 1.582 4.343 2.789 1.716 2.927 1.795 4.272 4.974 0.632
2058 0.943 0.979 1.519 4.180 2.691 1.659 2.836 1.742 4.154 4.844 0.617
2059 0.899 0.935 1.455 4.014 2.590 1.601 2.743 1.688 4.033 4.710 0.601
2060 0.853 0.890 1.390 3.845 2.488 1.541 2.647 1.632 3.908 4.573 0.584
2061 0.807 0.845 1.324 3.673 2.383 1.480 2.548 1.575 3.779 4.431 0.567
2062 0.760 0.800 1.257 3.499 2.276 1.418 2.447 1.516 3.646 4.285 0.550
2063 0.714 0.754 1.189 3.322 2.168 1.354 2.343 1.456 3.510 4.134 0.531
2064 0.666 0.707 1.120 3.142 2.058 1.290 2.239 1.395 3.370 3.980 0.513
2065 0.619 0.660 1.051 2.961 1.947 1.225 2.132 1.332 3.228 3.822 0.494
2066 0.572 0.613 0.981 2.778 1.835 1.159 2.024 1.269 3.084 3.661 0.474
2067 0.525 0.567 0.912 2.594 1.722 1.092 1.915 1.205 2.937 3.497 0.454
2068 0.479 0.520 0.842 2.410 1.608 1.024 1.805 1.140 2.789 3.331 0.434
2069 0.434 0.474 0.773 2.226 1.493 0.957 1.693 1.074 2.638 3.162 0.413
2070 0.390 0.430 0.705 2.044 1.380 0.889 1.581 1.008 2.486 2.991 0.392
2071 0.347 0.386 0.639 1.865 1.267 0.821 1.469 0.941 2.333 2.819 0.371



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit V

Estimation of Remaining Open Claim Counts - By Year End Sheet 2a-2

Classes B, C & D

Based on Mortality Tables Shown in Section VIII

Calendar BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY
Year 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999

 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12)

2072 0.306 0.344 0.574 1.688 1.155 0.754 1.357 0.874 2.178 2.645 0.350
2073 0.267 0.303 0.511 1.517 1.046 0.687 1.246 0.807 2.023 2.470 0.328
2074 0.230 0.264 0.451 1.351 0.940 0.623 1.136 0.741 1.869 2.294 0.306
2075 0.196 0.228 0.393 1.191 0.837 0.559 1.029 0.676 1.716 2.119 0.285
2076 0.165 0.194 0.339 1.039 0.738 0.498 0.924 0.612 1.565 1.946 0.263
2077 0.136 0.163 0.289 0.896 0.644 0.439 0.823 0.550 1.418 1.775 0.241
2078 0.111 0.135 0.242 0.763 0.555 0.383 0.726 0.490 1.274 1.607 0.220
2079 0.088 0.110 0.200 0.641 0.473 0.330 0.633 0.432 1.134 1.444 0.199
2080 0.069 0.088 0.163 0.530 0.397 0.281 0.546 0.377 1.000 1.286 0.179
2081 0.053 0.069 0.130 0.431 0.328 0.236 0.465 0.325 0.873 1.134 0.159
2082 0.040 0.053 0.102 0.344 0.267 0.195 0.390 0.277 0.752 0.989 0.141
2083 0.029 0.039 0.078 0.270 0.213 0.159 0.323 0.232 0.641 0.853 0.123
2084 0.021 0.029 0.059 0.207 0.167 0.127 0.263 0.192 0.538 0.726 0.106
2085 0.012 0.020 0.043 0.155 0.128 0.099 0.210 0.156 0.445 0.610 0.090
2086 0.007 0.012 0.030 0.113 0.096 0.076 0.164 0.125 0.362 0.504 0.076
2087 0.004 0.007 0.018 0.080 0.070 0.057 0.126 0.098 0.289 0.410 0.063
2088 0.002 0.004 0.010 0.048 0.050 0.042 0.094 0.075 0.226 0.328 0.051
2089 0.001 0.002 0.006 0.027 0.030 0.030 0.069 0.056 0.173 0.257 0.041
2090 0.001 0.001 0.003 0.015 0.017 0.018 0.049 0.041 0.130 0.197 0.032
2091 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.007 0.009 0.010 0.029 0.029 0.095 0.147 0.024
2092 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.005 0.005 0.016 0.017 0.068 0.108 0.018
2093 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.003 0.009 0.010 0.040 0.077 0.013
2094 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.005 0.005 0.023 0.045 0.009
2095 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.003 0.012 0.026 0.006
2096 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.006 0.014 0.003
2097 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.007 0.002
2098 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.001
2099 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2100 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2101 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2102 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2103 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2104 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2105 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2106 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2107 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2108 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2109 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2110 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2111 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2112 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2113 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2114 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2115 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2116 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2117 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2118 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2119 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000
2120 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.004 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.003 0.000



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit V

Estimation of Remaining Open Claim Counts - By Year End Sheet 2b-1

Classes B, C & D

Based on Mortality Tables Shown in Section VIII

Calendar BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY
Year 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
(1) (13) (14) (15) (16) (18) (19) (20) (21) (22) (23) (24)

 12/31/21 2.000 2.000 6.000 2.000 4.000 3.000 6.000 2.000 7.000 6.000 5.000

2022 1.985 1.985 5.956 1.986 3.972 2.979 5.960 1.987 6.956 5.964 4.971
2023 1.969 1.970 5.911 1.971 3.943 2.958 5.918 1.974 6.911 5.926 4.941
2024 1.954 1.955 5.866 1.956 3.914 2.937 5.876 1.960 6.864 5.888 4.910
2025 1.938 1.939 5.821 1.941 3.885 2.915 5.834 1.946 6.817 5.848 4.878
2026 1.923 1.924 5.775 1.926 3.855 2.893 5.791 1.932 6.768 5.808 4.845
2027 1.907 1.908 5.729 1.911 3.825 2.871 5.747 1.918 6.719 5.766 4.811
2028 1.891 1.893 5.683 1.896 3.795 2.849 5.704 1.903 6.670 5.725 4.777
2029 1.875 1.877 5.636 1.881 3.765 2.827 5.659 1.889 6.620 5.683 4.743
2030 1.858 1.861 5.589 1.865 3.734 2.804 5.615 1.874 6.569 5.640 4.708
2031 1.842 1.845 5.541 1.850 3.704 2.781 5.570 1.859 6.519 5.597 4.672
2032 1.825 1.828 5.493 1.834 3.673 2.759 5.525 1.845 6.467 5.554 4.637
2033 1.808 1.811 5.444 1.818 3.641 2.735 5.480 1.830 6.416 5.510 4.601
2034 1.791 1.794 5.394 1.801 3.610 2.712 5.434 1.815 6.364 5.466 4.565
2035 1.773 1.777 5.344 1.785 3.577 2.688 5.388 1.800 6.312 5.422 4.529
2036 1.755 1.760 5.293 1.768 3.545 2.664 5.341 1.784 6.259 5.378 4.492
2037 1.738 1.742 5.241 1.751 3.512 2.640 5.293 1.769 6.206 5.333 4.455
2038 1.719 1.724 5.189 1.734 3.478 2.615 5.244 1.753 6.151 5.287 4.418
2039 1.701 1.706 5.135 1.717 3.444 2.590 5.195 1.737 6.096 5.241 4.380
2040 1.682 1.688 5.082 1.699 3.410 2.565 5.146 1.721 6.041 5.194 4.342
2041 1.663 1.670 5.027 1.682 3.375 2.539 5.096 1.704 5.984 5.146 4.303
2042 1.644 1.651 4.972 1.664 3.339 2.513 5.045 1.688 5.927 5.098 4.264
2043 1.624 1.631 4.915 1.645 3.303 2.487 4.993 1.671 5.869 5.050 4.224
2044 1.604 1.612 4.858 1.627 3.267 2.460 4.941 1.654 5.811 5.000 4.183
2045 1.583 1.592 4.800 1.608 3.230 2.433 4.888 1.636 5.751 4.950 4.143
2046 1.562 1.571 4.740 1.588 3.193 2.406 4.834 1.619 5.691 4.900 4.101
2047 1.541 1.550 4.679 1.569 3.154 2.378 4.779 1.601 5.630 4.848 4.059
2048 1.518 1.529 4.617 1.549 3.115 2.349 4.724 1.583 5.568 4.796 4.017
2049 1.495 1.507 4.553 1.528 3.075 2.320 4.667 1.564 5.505 4.744 3.974
2050 1.472 1.484 4.488 1.507 3.034 2.290 4.609 1.545 5.441 4.690 3.930
2051 1.448 1.461 4.420 1.485 2.992 2.260 4.550 1.526 5.375 4.635 3.885
2052 1.423 1.437 4.350 1.463 2.949 2.229 4.489 1.507 5.309 4.580 3.840
2053 1.397 1.412 4.279 1.440 2.905 2.196 4.427 1.487 5.241 4.523 3.794
2054 1.370 1.386 4.205 1.416 2.859 2.163 4.363 1.466 5.171 4.465 3.747
2055 1.343 1.360 4.128 1.391 2.812 2.129 4.297 1.445 5.099 4.405 3.699
2056 1.315 1.333 4.050 1.366 2.763 2.094 4.230 1.423 5.026 4.344 3.650
2057 1.285 1.305 3.969 1.340 2.713 2.058 4.160 1.401 4.950 4.282 3.599
2058 1.255 1.276 3.885 1.313 2.661 2.021 4.088 1.378 4.872 4.217 3.547
2059 1.224 1.246 3.799 1.286 2.608 1.982 4.014 1.354 4.792 4.151 3.494
2060 1.192 1.215 3.710 1.257 2.553 1.942 3.938 1.329 4.709 4.082 3.439
2061 1.160 1.184 3.619 1.228 2.497 1.902 3.859 1.304 4.623 4.012 3.382
2062 1.126 1.151 3.524 1.198 2.438 1.859 3.778 1.278 4.535 3.939 3.323
2063 1.091 1.117 3.427 1.166 2.378 1.816 3.694 1.251 4.445 3.864 3.263
2064 1.055 1.083 3.327 1.134 2.316 1.771 3.607 1.223 4.351 3.787 3.201
2065 1.018 1.047 3.224 1.101 2.252 1.725 3.518 1.195 4.255 3.707 3.137
2066 0.980 1.010 3.117 1.067 2.186 1.677 3.427 1.165 4.155 3.625 3.071
2067 0.941 0.972 3.008 1.032 2.118 1.628 3.332 1.135 4.053 3.540 3.003
2068 0.901 0.934 2.896 0.995 2.049 1.578 3.235 1.104 3.947 3.453 2.933
2069 0.861 0.894 2.781 0.958 1.977 1.526 3.134 1.071 3.838 3.363 2.860
2070 0.820 0.854 2.663 0.920 1.903 1.472 3.031 1.038 3.726 3.270 2.786
2071 0.778 0.814 2.544 0.881 1.827 1.417 2.925 1.004 3.610 3.174 2.709



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit V

Estimation of Remaining Open Claim Counts - By Year End Sheet 2b-2

Classes B, C & D

Based on Mortality Tables Shown in Section VIII

Calendar BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY
Year 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
(1) (13) (14) (15) (16) (18) (19) (20) (21) (22) (23) (24)

2072 0.736 0.773 2.423 0.842 1.750 1.361 2.815 0.969 3.491 3.076 2.630
2073 0.694 0.731 2.301 0.802 1.672 1.304 2.704 0.932 3.369 2.974 2.548
2074 0.651 0.689 2.177 0.761 1.593 1.245 2.590 0.895 3.243 2.870 2.464
2075 0.608 0.646 2.051 0.720 1.512 1.186 2.474 0.858 3.114 2.763 2.378
2076 0.565 0.603 1.924 0.679 1.430 1.126 2.356 0.819 2.983 2.653 2.289
2077 0.522 0.561 1.797 0.637 1.348 1.065 2.237 0.780 2.849 2.541 2.198
2078 0.479 0.518 1.669 0.595 1.265 1.004 2.116 0.741 2.714 2.428 2.105
2079 0.437 0.475 1.542 0.552 1.181 0.942 1.994 0.701 2.577 2.312 2.011
2080 0.396 0.434 1.416 0.510 1.097 0.880 1.871 0.660 2.438 2.195 1.916
2081 0.355 0.393 1.292 0.469 1.013 0.817 1.747 0.620 2.297 2.077 1.819
2082 0.317 0.353 1.170 0.427 0.930 0.755 1.623 0.579 2.155 1.957 1.720
2083 0.279 0.314 1.051 0.387 0.849 0.693 1.499 0.538 2.012 1.836 1.621
2084 0.244 0.277 0.936 0.348 0.769 0.632 1.377 0.497 1.870 1.715 1.521
2085 0.210 0.242 0.825 0.310 0.690 0.572 1.256 0.456 1.727 1.593 1.420
2086 0.179 0.208 0.720 0.273 0.615 0.514 1.137 0.416 1.586 1.471 1.320
2087 0.150 0.178 0.621 0.238 0.542 0.458 1.022 0.377 1.446 1.351 1.219
2088 0.124 0.149 0.529 0.205 0.473 0.404 0.910 0.338 1.310 1.232 1.119
2089 0.101 0.123 0.444 0.175 0.408 0.352 0.802 0.301 1.177 1.116 1.021
2090 0.081 0.100 0.367 0.147 0.347 0.304 0.700 0.266 1.048 1.002 0.924
2091 0.063 0.080 0.298 0.121 0.292 0.259 0.604 0.232 0.924 0.893 0.830
2092 0.048 0.063 0.238 0.099 0.241 0.217 0.514 0.200 0.806 0.787 0.739
2093 0.036 0.048 0.187 0.079 0.196 0.180 0.432 0.170 0.695 0.687 0.652
2094 0.026 0.036 0.143 0.062 0.157 0.146 0.357 0.143 0.592 0.592 0.569
2095 0.019 0.026 0.107 0.047 0.123 0.117 0.290 0.118 0.497 0.504 0.491
2096 0.011 0.019 0.078 0.035 0.094 0.091 0.232 0.096 0.411 0.423 0.418
2097 0.006 0.011 0.056 0.026 0.070 0.070 0.182 0.077 0.334 0.350 0.351
2098 0.003 0.006 0.033 0.018 0.051 0.052 0.139 0.060 0.267 0.285 0.290
2099 0.002 0.003 0.019 0.011 0.037 0.038 0.104 0.046 0.209 0.227 0.236
2100 0.001 0.002 0.010 0.006 0.022 0.027 0.076 0.035 0.160 0.178 0.188
2101 0.001 0.001 0.005 0.003 0.012 0.016 0.054 0.025 0.120 0.137 0.148
2102 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.002 0.007 0.009 0.032 0.018 0.088 0.102 0.113
2103 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.005 0.018 0.011 0.062 0.075 0.085
2104 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.003 0.010 0.006 0.037 0.053 0.062
2105 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.005 0.003 0.021 0.032 0.044
2106 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.002 0.011 0.018 0.026
2107 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.006 0.010 0.015
2108 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.005 0.008
2109 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.002 0.004
2110 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.002 0.002
2111 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.002 0.002
2112 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.002 0.002
2113 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.002 0.002
2114 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.002 0.002
2115 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.002 0.002
2116 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.002 0.002
2117 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.002 0.002
2118 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.002 0.002
2119 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.002 0.002
2120 0.001 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.001 0.003 0.002 0.002



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit V

Estimation of Remaining Open Claim Counts - By Year End Sheet 2c-1

Classes B, C & D

Based on Mortality Tables Shown in Section VIII

Calendar BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY
Year 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 - 6

 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
(1) (25) (26) (27) (28) (29) (30) (31) (32) (33) (34) (35) (36)

 12/31/21 7.000 6.000 2.000 5.000 8.000 4.000 8.675 12.675 9.025 9.050 8.425 4.725

2022 6.960 5.966 1.989 4.972 7.956 3.978 8.629 12.608 8.977 9.002 8.379 4.659
2023 6.919 5.932 1.978 4.945 7.913 3.957 8.582 12.541 8.930 8.954 8.334 4.633
2024 6.877 5.897 1.966 4.917 7.868 3.935 8.535 12.473 8.882 8.907 8.290 4.608
2025 6.834 5.862 1.955 4.889 7.824 3.913 8.488 12.405 8.834 8.859 8.246 4.584
2026 6.790 5.825 1.943 4.860 7.779 3.891 8.441 12.337 8.786 8.811 8.202 4.560
2027 6.744 5.787 1.931 4.831 7.734 3.869 8.394 12.268 8.738 8.763 8.158 4.535
2028 6.697 5.748 1.918 4.801 7.687 3.846 8.346 12.199 8.689 8.715 8.113 4.511
2029 6.650 5.708 1.905 4.769 7.639 3.823 8.297 12.129 8.640 8.667 8.069 4.486
2030 6.602 5.668 1.892 4.737 7.589 3.799 8.247 12.058 8.591 8.618 8.024 4.462
2031 6.553 5.627 1.879 4.704 7.538 3.774 8.195 11.985 8.540 8.568 7.978 4.437
2032 6.504 5.585 1.865 4.671 7.486 3.749 8.142 11.910 8.489 8.518 7.933 4.412
2033 6.454 5.543 1.851 4.637 7.433 3.723 8.087 11.833 8.436 8.467 7.886 4.387
2034 6.404 5.501 1.838 4.603 7.379 3.696 8.031 11.753 8.381 8.414 7.839 4.361
2035 6.354 5.459 1.824 4.569 7.325 3.670 7.974 11.672 8.324 8.359 7.790 4.335
2036 6.304 5.416 1.809 4.534 7.270 3.643 7.916 11.589 8.266 8.303 7.739 4.307
2037 6.253 5.373 1.795 4.499 7.214 3.615 7.858 11.505 8.208 8.245 7.687 4.279
2038 6.201 5.329 1.781 4.463 7.159 3.588 7.799 11.420 8.148 8.187 7.633 4.251
2039 6.150 5.286 1.767 4.428 7.102 3.560 7.739 11.335 8.088 8.127 7.579 4.221
2040 6.097 5.241 1.752 4.392 7.046 3.532 7.680 11.248 8.028 8.068 7.524 4.191
2041 6.044 5.197 1.737 4.356 6.989 3.504 7.619 11.161 7.967 8.007 7.469 4.161
2042 5.990 5.151 1.723 4.320 6.932 3.476 7.559 11.074 7.905 7.946 7.413 4.130
2043 5.935 5.105 1.707 4.283 6.874 3.447 7.498 10.985 7.843 7.885 7.357 4.099
2044 5.879 5.058 1.692 4.245 6.815 3.418 7.436 10.897 7.781 7.823 7.300 4.068
2045 5.823 5.011 1.677 4.207 6.755 3.389 7.374 10.807 7.718 7.760 7.242 4.036
2046 5.767 4.963 1.661 4.169 6.695 3.359 7.311 10.717 7.654 7.698 7.185 4.005
2047 5.709 4.915 1.645 4.130 6.634 3.329 7.247 10.625 7.590 7.635 7.127 3.973
2048 5.650 4.866 1.629 4.090 6.572 3.299 7.182 10.532 7.525 7.571 7.068 3.941
2049 5.591 4.816 1.613 4.050 6.509 3.268 7.116 10.438 7.460 7.506 7.009 3.909
2050 5.531 4.765 1.596 4.010 6.445 3.237 7.050 10.343 7.393 7.440 6.949 3.876
2051 5.470 4.714 1.580 3.969 6.381 3.205 6.983 10.246 7.325 7.374 6.888 3.843
2052 5.408 4.662 1.563 3.927 6.316 3.173 6.915 10.148 7.257 7.306 6.827 3.809
2053 5.345 4.610 1.545 3.885 6.249 3.141 6.845 10.049 7.188 7.238 6.764 3.775
2054 5.281 4.556 1.528 3.842 6.182 3.108 6.775 9.949 7.118 7.169 6.701 3.741
2055 5.216 4.501 1.510 3.799 6.114 3.075 6.704 9.847 7.046 7.099 6.637 3.706
2056 5.149 4.445 1.492 3.755 6.045 3.041 6.632 9.744 6.974 7.028 6.573 3.670
2057 5.080 4.388 1.474 3.710 5.975 3.006 6.559 9.639 6.901 6.956 6.507 3.634
2058 5.010 4.330 1.455 3.664 5.903 2.971 6.485 9.533 6.827 6.883 6.440 3.598
2059 4.938 4.270 1.435 3.617 5.830 2.936 6.410 9.425 6.752 6.809 6.373 3.561
2060 4.863 4.208 1.415 3.568 5.755 2.899 6.333 9.316 6.676 6.734 6.304 3.524
2061 4.787 4.145 1.395 3.519 5.678 2.862 6.254 9.204 6.598 6.658 6.235 3.486
2062 4.708 4.080 1.374 3.468 5.600 2.824 6.174 9.089 6.519 6.581 6.164 3.448
2063 4.626 4.012 1.352 3.416 5.519 2.785 6.092 8.973 6.438 6.502 6.093 3.409
2064 4.542 3.943 1.330 3.362 5.436 2.745 6.007 8.853 6.355 6.421 6.019 3.369
2065 4.456 3.871 1.307 3.307 5.350 2.703 5.921 8.731 6.270 6.339 5.945 3.329
2066 4.367 3.798 1.283 3.250 5.262 2.661 5.831 8.605 6.184 6.254 5.868 3.287
2067 4.275 3.722 1.259 3.191 5.171 2.617 5.740 8.475 6.094 6.168 5.790 3.245
2068 4.180 3.644 1.234 3.130 5.077 2.572 5.645 8.342 6.003 6.079 5.710 3.202
2069 4.082 3.563 1.208 3.067 4.981 2.525 5.547 8.204 5.908 5.987 5.628 3.158
2070 3.982 3.479 1.181 3.003 4.881 2.477 5.447 8.062 5.811 5.893 5.543 3.112
2071 3.878 3.394 1.153 2.936 4.778 2.427 5.343 7.916 5.710 5.796 5.456 3.065



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit V

Estimation of Remaining Open Claim Counts - By Year End Sheet 2c-2

Classes B, C & D

Based on Mortality Tables Shown in Section VIII

Calendar BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY BY
Year 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 - 6

 ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
(1) (25) (26) (27) (28) (29) (30) (31) (32) (33) (34) (35) (36)

2072 3.771 3.305 1.125 2.868 4.672 2.376 5.236 7.765 5.607 5.695 5.366 3.017
2073 3.661 3.214 1.096 2.797 4.563 2.324 5.126 7.610 5.500 5.592 5.273 2.967
2074 3.547 3.120 1.065 2.724 4.450 2.269 5.012 7.450 5.390 5.486 5.177 2.916
2075 3.430 3.023 1.034 2.649 4.334 2.213 4.895 7.285 5.276 5.376 5.079 2.863
2076 3.310 2.924 1.002 2.571 4.215 2.156 4.774 7.114 5.159 5.263 4.977 2.808
2077 3.186 2.821 0.969 2.492 4.092 2.096 4.650 6.939 5.039 5.146 4.872 2.752
2078 3.059 2.716 0.935 2.409 3.965 2.035 4.522 6.758 4.915 5.026 4.764 2.694
2079 2.931 2.608 0.900 2.325 3.834 1.972 4.389 6.572 4.786 4.902 4.653 2.635
2080 2.799 2.498 0.864 2.238 3.699 1.907 4.253 6.379 4.654 4.774 4.538 2.573
2081 2.666 2.386 0.828 2.149 3.561 1.840 4.113 6.182 4.518 4.642 4.420 2.509
2082 2.532 2.273 0.791 2.058 3.420 1.771 3.969 5.978 4.378 4.507 4.298 2.444
2083 2.395 2.158 0.753 1.966 3.276 1.701 3.820 5.768 4.234 4.367 4.172 2.377
2084 2.257 2.041 0.715 1.873 3.129 1.629 3.669 5.552 4.085 4.223 4.043 2.307
2085 2.117 1.923 0.677 1.778 2.980 1.556 3.514 5.332 3.932 4.075 3.910 2.236
2086 1.977 1.805 0.638 1.682 2.830 1.482 3.357 5.107 3.776 3.922 3.772 2.162
2087 1.837 1.685 0.598 1.585 2.677 1.407 3.197 4.879 3.617 3.767 3.631 2.086
2088 1.697 1.566 0.559 1.487 2.522 1.331 3.035 4.647 3.455 3.608 3.487 2.008
2089 1.558 1.446 0.519 1.389 2.367 1.254 2.872 4.412 3.291 3.446 3.340 1.928
2090 1.421 1.328 0.479 1.290 2.210 1.177 2.706 4.174 3.125 3.283 3.191 1.847
2091 1.287 1.211 0.440 1.192 2.053 1.099 2.539 3.933 2.956 3.117 3.039 1.764
2092 1.156 1.097 0.401 1.094 1.896 1.021 2.371 3.690 2.785 2.948 2.885 1.681
2093 1.029 0.985 0.364 0.998 1.741 0.943 2.202 3.446 2.613 2.778 2.730 1.596
2094 0.908 0.877 0.327 0.904 1.588 0.866 2.035 3.201 2.440 2.607 2.572 1.509
2095 0.792 0.774 0.291 0.812 1.438 0.790 1.868 2.957 2.267 2.434 2.413 1.422
2096 0.683 0.675 0.256 0.723 1.292 0.715 1.704 2.715 2.094 2.261 2.254 1.334
2097 0.582 0.582 0.224 0.638 1.151 0.643 1.543 2.476 1.923 2.089 2.094 1.246
2098 0.488 0.496 0.193 0.556 1.015 0.572 1.386 2.243 1.754 1.918 1.934 1.158
2099 0.404 0.416 0.164 0.480 0.885 0.505 1.234 2.015 1.588 1.749 1.776 1.069
2100 0.328 0.344 0.138 0.409 0.763 0.440 1.088 1.794 1.427 1.584 1.620 0.982
2101 0.262 0.280 0.114 0.343 0.650 0.380 0.950 1.582 1.271 1.423 1.467 0.896
2102 0.205 0.224 0.093 0.284 0.546 0.323 0.819 1.380 1.120 1.267 1.318 0.811
2103 0.157 0.175 0.074 0.231 0.451 0.271 0.697 1.190 0.978 1.118 1.173 0.729
2104 0.118 0.134 0.058 0.184 0.367 0.224 0.586 1.014 0.843 0.975 1.035 0.649
2105 0.086 0.101 0.044 0.144 0.293 0.183 0.484 0.851 0.718 0.841 0.903 0.572
2106 0.061 0.073 0.033 0.111 0.230 0.146 0.394 0.704 0.603 0.716 0.779 0.499
2107 0.036 0.052 0.024 0.083 0.176 0.114 0.315 0.572 0.498 0.601 0.663 0.430
2108 0.021 0.031 0.017 0.061 0.132 0.088 0.246 0.457 0.405 0.497 0.557 0.367
2109 0.011 0.018 0.010 0.043 0.096 0.066 0.189 0.358 0.324 0.404 0.460 0.308
2110 0.006 0.009 0.006 0.026 0.069 0.048 0.141 0.274 0.254 0.323 0.374 0.255
2111 0.003 0.005 0.003 0.014 0.041 0.034 0.103 0.206 0.194 0.253 0.299 0.207
2112 0.003 0.002 0.002 0.008 0.023 0.020 0.073 0.150 0.146 0.194 0.234 0.165
2113 0.003 0.002 0.001 0.004 0.012 0.011 0.044 0.107 0.106 0.145 0.179 0.129
2114 0.003 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.006 0.006 0.025 0.063 0.076 0.106 0.134 0.099
2115 0.003 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.003 0.003 0.013 0.036 0.045 0.075 0.098 0.074
2116 0.003 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.003 0.002 0.007 0.019 0.025 0.045 0.070 0.054
2117 0.003 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.003 0.002 0.003 0.010 0.014 0.025 0.041 0.039
2118 0.003 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.003 0.002 0.003 0.005 0.007 0.014 0.024 0.023
2119 0.003 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.003 0.002 0.003 0.005 0.003 0.007 0.013 0.013
2120 0.003 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.003 0.002 0.003 0.005 0.003 0.003 0.006 0.007



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit VI

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & ALAE Reserves  -  Burial Expense and Parental Award Sheet 1
After Estimated Investment Income
Evaluated as of June 30, 2022

AAA, AAD
 & DA

Outstanding Case (c)
Estimated Case on Outstanding
Unreported Outstanding Unreported on DA

Claims  on Claims Claims Nominal Discounted
Birth as of Reported  (4) X as of  (2)+(5)+  (3)+(5)
Year Nominal (a) Discounted (b)  6 30 22 Open (c) 250,000  6 30 22  (6)+(7)  (6)+(7)

  -------   -------   -------   -------   -------   -------   -------   -------   -------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

1989 150,000 53,507 0 5,570 0 50,000 205,570 109,077
1990 150,000 52,667 0 0 0 100,000 250,000 152,667
1991 200,000 64,319 0 150,231 0 0 350,231 214,550
1992 450,000 124,247 0 0 0 0 450,000 124,247
1993 350,000 112,493 0 75,000 0 0 425,000 187,493
1994 150,000 35,042 0 0 0 187,500 337,500 222,542
1995 250,000 57,168 0 0 0 50,000 300,000 107,168
1996 300,000 110,649 0 225,000 0 100,000 625,000 435,649
1997 400,000 102,216 0 299,976 0 100,000 799,976 502,192
1998 550,000 161,659 0 48,939 0 100,000 698,939 310,598
1999 150,000 60,564 0 0 0 100,000 250,000 160,564
2000 150,000 45,452 0 8 0 75,000 225,008 120,460
2001 200,000 69,435 0 0 0 50,000 250,000 119,435
2002 600,000 205,903 0 81,501 0 40,000 721,501 327,404
2003 150,000 43,669 0 66 0 80,000 230,066 123,735
2004 250,000 62,222 0 78,788 0 40,000 368,788 181,010
2005 350,000 123,288 0 150,000 0 0 500,000 273,288
2006 450,000 125,976 0 331,823 0 0 781,823 457,799
2007 350,000 134,985 0 140,000 0 0 490,000 274,985
2008 450,000 108,290 0 405,404 0 0 855,404 513,694
2009 500,000 143,931 0 140,000 0 40,000 680,000 323,931
2010 250,000 42,464 0 164,957 0 20,000 434,957 227,421
2011 500,000 125,968 0 396,686 0 0 896,686 522,654
2012 350,000 71,304 0 319,954 0 20,000 689,954 411,258
2013 350,000 126,863 0 0 0 20,000 370,000 146,863
2014 400,000 105,149 0 17 0 40,000 440,017 145,166
2015 700,000 192,281 0 452,964 0 120,000 1,272,964 765,245
2016 300,000 73,404 0 430,967 0 48,543 779,510 552,914
2017 650,000 156,927 1 608,702 250,000 3,639 1,512,341 1,019,268
2018 800,000 162,881 2 549,650 500,000 383,781 2,233,431 1,596,311
2019 650,000 148,278 4 127,421 1,000,000 20,075 1,797,496 1,295,774
2020 650,000 146,193 8 2,000,000 800,815 3,450,815 2,947,009
2021 600,000 132,507 15 3,750,000 330,360 4,680,360 4,212,866

 2022 - 6 mo. 350,000 79,909 10 2,500,000 330,360 3,180,360 2,910,269

13,100,000 3,561,811 40 5,183,624 10,000,000 3,250,073 31,533,697 21,995,508

Notes: (a) See Section IV, Exhibit VI, Sheet 2, Column (4) multiplied by $ 50,000 nominal death benefit.
            (b) See Section IV, Exhibit VI, Sheet 2, Column (9).
            (c) Based on NICA case reserve information as of December 31, 2021.

Estimated Outstanding
Loss & ALAE Related

 to Parental Award

Estimated Outstanding
Loss & ALAE Related
 to Death Benefit (a)

 ----------------------

 ----------------------------

Additional Outstanding
Loss & ALAE Not 

Included in Expense
Category Analysis

  ----------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IV
Exhibit VI

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & ALAE Reserves  -  Death Benefit Sheet 2
After Estimated Investment Income
Evaluated as of June 30, 2022

Burial Expense - Related to Open Accepted Claimants
Excluding Remaining Amounts due Deceased Claimants
By Claim Class Category
Based on Current Investment Income Assumption  (5.0 % Annual Return)

Class Classes
A  B, C & D

Birth Class Classes Class Classes  (2) X (5)  (3) X (6) Combined
Year A  B, C & D Combined A  B, C & D  X 50,000  X 50,000  (7) + (8)

  -------   -------   -------   -------   -------   -------   -------   -------   -------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

1989 1 2 3 0.5486 0.2608 27,432 26,075 53,507
1990 1 2 3 0.5434 0.2550 27,168 25,499 52,667
1991 1 3 4 0.5382 0.2494 26,910 37,410 64,319
1992 1 8 9 0.5331 0.2440 26,656 97,591 124,247
1993 2 5 7 0.5281 0.2387 52,814 59,679 112,493
1994 0 3 3 0.0000 0.2336 0 35,042 35,042
1995 0 5 5 0.0000 0.2287 0 57,168 57,168
1996 3 3 6 0.5138 0.2239 77,064 33,585 110,649
1997 1 7 8 0.5092 0.2193 25,459 76,757 102,216
1998 3 8 11 0.5047 0.2149 75,706 85,954 161,659
1999 2 1 3 0.5003 0.2106 50,033 10,531 60,564
2000 1 2 3 0.4960 0.2065 24,802 20,650 45,452
2001 2 2 4 0.4918 0.2025 49,184 20,251 69,435
2002 6 6 12 0.4877 0.1986 146,315 59,589 205,903
2003 1 2 3 0.4837 0.1949 24,183 19,486 43,669
2004 1 4 5 0.4797 0.1912 23,984 38,239 62,222
2005 4 3 7 0.4757 0.1876 95,147 28,140 123,288
2006 3 6 9 0.4718 0.1840 70,765 55,211 125,976
2007 5 2 7 0.4677 0.1805 116,937 18,048 134,985
2008 2 7 9 0.4637 0.1769 46,369 61,921 108,290
2009 4 6 10 0.4596 0.1734 91,921 52,010 143,931
2010 0 5 5 0.0000 0.1699 0 42,464 42,464
2011 3 7 10 0.4515 0.1664 67,718 58,250 125,968
2012 1 6 7 0.4474 0.1631 22,372 48,933 71,304
2013 5 2 7 0.4435 0.1599 110,872 15,991 126,863
2014 3 5 8 0.4396 0.1568 65,940 39,209 105,149
2015 6 8 14 0.4358 0.1539 130,731 61,549 192,281
2016 2 4 6 0.4320 0.1510 43,200 30,203 73,404
2017 4.33 8.68 13.00 0.4283 0.1483 92,619 64,308 156,927
2018 3.33 12.68 16.00 0.4246 0.1456 70,598 92,283 162,881
2019 3.98 9.03 13.00 0.4211 0.1431 83,695 64,583 148,278
2020 3.95 9.05 13.00 0.4177 0.1408 82,489 63,705 146,193
2021 3.58 8.43 12.00 0.4144 0.1387 74,075 58,432 132,507

022 - 6 mo. 2.28 4.73 7.00 0.4144 0.1387 47,139 32,770 79,909

85.43 176.58 262.00 1,970,295 1,591,515 3,561,811

Notes: (a) Based on actual reported and estimated unreported NICA claimants as of December 31, 2021.
                (b) Estimated discount based on mortality factors as shown in Section VIII.

Estimate O/S Claim Counts
 as of 6/30/2022 (a)

 -----------------------------------------

Estimated Average
 Disount Factor at (b)

5 % Investment Return
 -----------------------

Estimated Discounted
 O/S Losses as of 6/30/2022

 -----------------------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section V
Exhibit I

Estimated 2021 Level Loss & ALAE Reserve - Before Inflation and Anticipated Investment Income

Evaluated As of December 31, 2021

After Consideration of Class Action and SB 1786

Indicated Indicated
2021 Level 2021 Level 2021 Level

Actual Paid (a) 2021 Level 2021 Level Outstanding Incurred Ultimate
Year of Loss & ALAE Case  O/S (a) IBNR / Bulk (a) Loss & ALAE Loss & ALAE Loss & ALAE

Birth @ 12/31/21 Loss & ALAE Oustanding (3) + (4) (2) + (3) (2) + (5)
---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ----------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

1989 16,885,994    13,842,395      4,009,141     17,851,536      30,728,389      34,737,530      
1990 7,614,059      9,234,445        2,618,295     11,852,740      16,848,503      19,466,798      
1991 11,583,942    16,572,044      2,937,697     19,509,742      28,155,986      31,093,684      
1992 19,655,224    39,595,716      8,187,318     47,783,035      59,250,940      67,438,258      
1993 25,162,173    35,066,637      9,391,712     44,458,348      60,228,810      69,620,522      
1994 9,013,849      18,464,866      4,996,139     23,461,004      27,478,715      32,474,853      
1995 13,455,395    26,789,092      6,246,316     33,035,408      40,244,487      46,490,803      
1996 12,280,555    22,009,825      6,492,436     28,502,261      34,290,380      40,782,816      
1997 16,023,557    41,847,836      11,264,192   53,112,029      57,871,394      69,135,586      
1998 27,288,891    56,474,136      20,570,783   77,044,918      83,763,026      104,333,809    
1999 14,547,024    12,555,307      9,435,219     21,990,526      27,102,331      36,537,550      
2000 8,115,680      11,049,895      6,941,273     17,991,168      19,165,575      26,106,848      
2001 10,391,789    21,689,387      7,974,128     29,663,515      32,081,176      40,055,305      
2002 22,212,715    55,180,104      21,840,689   77,020,792      77,392,818      99,233,507      
2003 6,523,162      10,424,005      3,587,144     14,011,150      16,947,167      20,534,312      
2004 7,253,282      28,979,402      7,481,407     36,460,809      36,232,684      43,714,091      
2005 10,942,541    28,874,392      11,576,573   40,450,965      39,816,933      51,393,506      
2006 12,767,247    47,032,444      13,597,804   60,630,248      59,799,691      73,397,495      
2007 13,611,989    30,562,915      11,449,903   42,012,818      44,174,904      55,624,807      
2008 9,013,337      54,039,659      15,767,600   69,807,259      63,052,996      78,820,595      
2009 11,497,957    53,971,169      18,685,870   72,657,039      65,469,126      84,154,996      
2010 4,312,574      25,327,020      8,620,367     33,947,387      29,639,594      38,259,961      
2011 7,462,398      48,033,219      14,389,136   62,422,355      55,495,618      69,884,754      
2012 5,096,672      39,007,545      9,273,214     48,280,759      44,104,217      53,377,430      
2013 7,662,639      32,228,484      11,527,702   43,756,186      39,891,123      51,418,825      
2014 8,370,886      37,511,528      16,976,110   54,487,638      45,882,414      62,858,524      
2015 8,449,447      73,520,821      32,754,350   106,275,171    81,970,267      114,724,618    
2016 2,175,886      26,499,134      14,143,075   40,642,209      28,675,020      42,818,095      
2017 4,881,618      57,671,549      41,262,065   98,933,614      62,553,167      103,815,232    
2018 6,175,043      78,707,935      80,647,736   159,355,671    84,882,978      165,530,714    
2019 4,443,644      46,120,760      85,468,923   131,589,683    50,564,404      136,033,327    
2020 1,140,612      19,576,472      82,467,618   102,044,090    20,717,084      103,184,702    
2021 994,030         447,244           72,631,612   73,078,856      1,441,273        74,072,885      

Totals: 347,005,809  1,118,907,381 675,213,548 1,794,120,930 1,465,913,190 2,141,126,739 

Notes: (a) See Section V, Exhibit I, Sheet 1 of the NICA December 31, 2021 report. Development methods
                  shown above are not updated for quarterly reviews but will updated on an annual basis only.

SOURCE : NICA DECEMBER 31, 2021 REPORT - SECTION V, EXHIBIT I, SHEET 1



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section VI
Exhibit I

 Accepted Claim Counts - Reported With Worksheets
 Allocation of Unreported Claims by Severity Class

Evaluated As of June 30, 2022

Classes
Open / Unreported Accepted Claims (AAA Claims) (b) B,C, D 

Classes B ----------------------------------------------------------------------------- & Blank
Year of Class Class Class Class Blank AAA  C & D Class Class Class Class Blank  (10) + (11) +

Birth A B C D  & AAD Combined  (3)+(4)+(5) A B C D N/A Combined   (12) + (13)
---------- ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12) (13) (14) (15)

1989 4              -           -           2              5              11            2                1.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 3.0 2.0
1990 3              2              -           2              -           7              4                1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 3.0 2.0
1991 1              2              -           1              -           4              3                1.0 2.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 4.0 3.0
1992 1              4              1              4              3              13            9                1.0 4.0 1.0 3.0 0.0 9.0 8.0
1993 4              3              2              3              1              13            8                2.0 0.0 2.0 3.0 0.0 7.0 5.0
1994 2              -           1              2              2              7              3                0.0 0.0 1.0 2.0 0.0 3.0 3.0
1995 -           3              1              2              -           6              6                0.0 2.0 1.0 2.0 0.0 5.0 5.0
1996 3              -           1              2              1              7              3                3.0 0.0 1.0 2.0 0.0 6.0 3.0
1997 2              1              3              3              2              11            7                1.0 1.0 3.0 3.0 0.0 8.0 7.0
1998 4              2              4              2              3              15            8                3.0 2.0 4.0 2.0 0.0 11.0 8.0
1999 6              2              -           -           1              9              2                2.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.0 1.0
2000 3              1              -           1              1              6              2                1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 3.0 2.0
2001 2              -           2              -           -           4              2                2.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 4.0 2.0
2002 9              3              1              2              2              17            6                6.0 3.0 1.0 2.0 0.0 12.0 6.0
2003 1              2              -           -           -           3              2                1.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.0 2.0
2004 1              2              1              1              1              6              4                1.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 5.0 4.0
2005 5              2              1              2              1              11            5                4.0 0.0 1.0 2.0 0.0 7.0 3.0
2006 4              3              -           3              2              12            6                3.0 3.0 0.0 3.0 0.0 9.0 6.0
2007 5              2              -           -           3              10            2                5.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.0 2.0
2008 3              3              2              2              -           10            7                2.0 3.0 2.0 2.0 0.0 9.0 7.0
2009 4              1              2              3              1              11            6                4.0 1.0 2.0 3.0 0.0 10.0 6.0
2010 1              1              1              3              -           6              5                0.0 1.0 1.0 3.0 0.0 5.0 5.0
2011 3              1              2              4              2              12            7                3.0 1.0 2.0 4.0 0.0 10.0 7.0
2012 1              -           3              3              -           7              6                1.0 0.0 3.0 3.0 0.0 7.0 6.0
2013 5              -           -           2              1              8              2                5.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 7.0 2.0
2014 5              3              -           2              -           10            5                3.0 3.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 8.0 5.0
2015 6              2              2              4              -           14            8                6.0 2.0 2.0 4.0 0.0 14.0 8.0
2016 2              2              -           1              1              6              3                2.0 2.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 6.0 4.0
2017 4              4              1              2              2              13            7                4.3 4.2 1.2 2.3 1.0 13.0 8.7
2018 3              2              5              3              3              16            10              3.3 2.2 5.2 3.3 2.0 16.0 12.7
2019 3              1              4              1              2              11            6                4.0 1.6 4.5 1.9 1.0 13.0 9.0
2020 2              1              1              2              2              8              4                4.0 2.2 2.1 3.8 1.0 13.0 9.1
2021 -           -           -           -           1              1              -             3.6 2.2 1.9 3.3 1.0 12.0 8.4

2022 - 6 mo. 2.3 1.4 1.2 2.1 0.0 7.0 4.7

Totals 102          55            41            64            43            305          160            85.4 52.8 46.1 70.7 7.0 262.0 176.6

Notes: (a) See Section VI, Exhibit II. Combination of open accepted claims (AAA) with closed accepted claims (AAD).
            (b) See Section VI, Exhibit II. Combination of reported open accepted claims (AAA) and unreported accepted (alive) claims (AAA).

Reported Accepted Claims (AAA & AAD Claims) (a)
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section VI
Exhibit II

Reported Accepted Claim Counts - Excluding DA Claims
Evaluated As of June 30, 2022

Open Accepted Claims (AAA Claims) Closed Accepted Claims (AAD Claims) IBNR Accepted Claims (Excluding DA Claims)
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------------------------------------

Year of Class Class Class Class Blank Class Class Class Class Blank Class Class Class Class Blank
Birth A B C D N/A Combined A B C D N/A Combined A B C D N/A Combined

---------- ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12) (13) (14) (15) (16) (17) (18) (19)

1989 1              -           -           2              -           3                3              -           -           -           5              8              -           -           -           -           -           -           
1990 1              1              -           1              -           3                2              1              -           1              -           4              -           -           -           -           -           -           
1991 1              2              -           1              -           4                -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           
1992 1              4              1              3              -           9                -           -           -           1              3              4              -           -           -           -           -           -           
1993 2              -           2              3              -           7                2              3              -           -           1              6              -           -           -           -           -           -           
1994 -           -           1              2              -           3                2              -           -           -           2              4              -           -           -           -           -           -           
1995 -           2              1              2              -           5                -           1              -           -           -           1              -           -           -           -           -           -           
1996 3              -           1              2              -           6                -           -           -           -           1              1              -           -           -           -           -           -           
1997 1              1              3              3              -           8                1              -           -           -           2              3              -           -           -           -           -           -           
1998 3              2              4              2              -           11              1              -           -           -           3              4              -           -           -           -           -           -           
1999 2              1              -           -           -           3                4              1              -           -           1              6              -           -           -           -           -           -           
2000 1              1              -           1              -           3                2              -           -           -           1              3              -           -           -           -           -           -           
2001 2              -           2              -           -           4                -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           
2002 6              3              1              2              -           12              3              -           -           -           2              5              -           -           -           -           -           -           
2003 1              2              -           -           -           3                -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           
2004 1              2              1              1              -           5                -           -           -           -           1              1              -           -           -           -           -           -           
2005 4              -           1              2              -           7                1              2              -           -           1              4              -           -           -           -           -           -           
2006 3              3              -           3              -           9                1              -           -           -           2              3              -           -           -           -           -           -           
2007 5              2              -           -           -           7                -           -           -           -           3              3              -           -           -           -           -           -           
2008 2              3              2              2              -           9                1              -           -           -           -           1              -           -           -           -           -           -           
2009 4              1              2              3              -           10              -           -           -           -           1              1              -           -           -           -           -           -           
2010 -           1              1              3              -           5                1              -           -           -           -           1              -           -           -           -           -           -           
2011 3              1              2              4              -           10              -           -           -           -           2              2              -           -           -           -           -           -           
2012 1              -           3              3              -           7                -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           
2013 5              -           -           2              -           7                -           -           -           -           1              1              -           -           -           -           -           -           
2014 3              3              -           2              -           8                2              -           -           -           -           2              -           -           -           -           -           -           
2015 6              2              2              4              -           14              -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           
2016 2              2              -           1              1              6                -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           
2017 4              4              1              2              1              12              -           -           -           -           1              1              0.325        0.200        0.175        0.300        -           1.000        
2018 3              2              5              3              2              15              -           -           -           -           1              1              0.325        0.200        0.175        0.300        -           1.000        
2019 3              1              4              1              1              10              -           -           -           -           1              1              0.975        0.600        0.525        0.900        -           3.000        
2020 2              1              1              2              1              7                -           -           -           -           1              1              1.950        1.200        1.050        1.800        -           6.000        
2021 -           -           -           -           1              1                -           -           -           -           -           -           3.575        2.200        1.925        3.300        -           11.000      

2022 -6 Mo. 2.275        1.400        1.225        2.100        7.000        

Totals 76            47            41            62            7              233            26            8              -           2              36            72            9.425        5.800        5.075        8.700        -           29.000      

Used for allocation on IBNR claim counts

Indicated 32.6% 20.2% 17.6% 26.6% 3.0% 100.0%

Selected 32.5% 20.0% 17.5% 30.0% 100.0%



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section VI
Exhibit III

Ultimate Accepted Claim Counts
Evaluated As of June 30, 2022

All Accepted DA AAD & AAA All Accepted
Year of Combined DA AAD & AAA Claim Counts Only Only Claim Counts

Birth DA (a) AAD (b) AAA (c) (2)+(3)+(4) Only  (d) Only  (d)  (6) + (7) (2) + (6) (3)+(4)+(7) (9) + (10)
---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ----------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

1989 4 8 3 15 0 0 0 4 11 15
1990 3 4 3 10 0 0 0 3 7 10
1991 4 0 4 8 0 0 0 4 4 8
1992 1 4 9 14 0 0 0 1 13 14
1993 2 6 7 15 0 0 0 2 13 15
1994 9 4 3 16 0 0 0 9 7 16
1995 5 1 5 11 0 0 0 5 6 11
1996 10 1 6 17 0 0 0 10 7 17
1997 6 3 8 17 0 0 0 6 11 17
1998 3 4 11 18 0 0 0 3 15 18
1999 9 6 3 18 0 0 0 9 9 18
2000 7 3 3 13 0 0 0 7 6 13
2001 9 0 4 13 0 0 0 9 4 13
2002 5 5 12 22 0 0 0 5 17 22
2003 6 0 3 9 0 0 0 6 3 9
2004 7 1 5 13 0 0 0 7 6 13
2005 2 4 7 13 0 0 0 2 11 13
2006 1 3 9 13 0 0 0 1 12 13
2007 5 3 7 15 0 0 0 5 10 15
2008 1 1 9 11 0 0 0 1 10 11
2009 6 1 10 17 0 0 0 6 11 17
2010 6 1 5 12 0 0 0 6 6 12
2011 2 2 10 14 0 0 0 2 12 14
2012 4 0 7 11 0 0 0 4 7 11
2013 3 1 7 11 0 0 0 3 8 11
2014 3 2 8 13 0 0 0 3 10 13
2015 6 0 14 20 0 0 0 6 14 20
2016 4 0 6 10 0 0 0 4 6 10
2017 2 1 12 15 0 1 1 2 14 16
2018 9 1 15 25 1 1 2 10 17 27
2019 4 1 10 15 1 3 4 5 14 19
2020 3 1 7 11 2 6 8 5 14 19
2021 4 0 1 5 4 11 15 8 12 20

2022 - 6 Mo. 3 7 10 3 7 10

Totals All: 155 72 233 460 11 29 40 166 334 500
2017 - 2021 22 4 45 71 8 22 30 30 71 101

Notes: (a) The accepted claims shown in Column (2), DA, are claims where claimant was deceased prior to presentation
                  of the claim to NICA.
            (b) The accepted claims shown in Column (3), AAD, are claims that deceased after acceptance as of 6/30/2022.
            (c) The accepted claims shown in Column (4), AAA, are accepted claims that are alive as of 6/30/2022.
            (d) See Section VI, Exhibit IV, Columns (6) and (7), respectively.

Reported Accepted Claim Counts
-------------------------------------------------------------------

IBNR Accepted Claim Counts
--------------------------------------------------------

Ultimate Accepted Claim Counts
-------------------------------------------------



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section VI
Exhibit IV

Open Accepted Claim Counts
Evaluated As of June 30, 2022

Total Open Accepted Claim Counts
(Reported + IBNR)

Reported Open Accepted Claim Counts IBNR Accepted Claim Counts (d) -----------------------------------------------------
------------------------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------- AAD & AAA

Year of DA (a) AAD (b) AAA (c) Combined DA AAD & AAA DA Only Combined
Birth Only Only Only (2)+(3)+(4) Only Only Combined (2) + (6) (3)+(4)+(7) (9) + (10)

---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ----------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

1989 0 0 3 3 0 3 3
1990 0 0 3 3 0 3 3
1991 0 0 4 4 0 4 4
1992 0 0 9 9 0 9 9
1993 0 0 7 7 0 7 7
1994 0 0 3 3 0 3 3
1995 0 0 5 5 0 5 5
1996 0 0 6 6 0 6 6
1997 0 0 8 8 0 8 8
1998 0 0 11 11 0 11 11
1999 0 0 3 3 0 3 3
2000 0 0 3 3 0 3 3
2001 0 0 4 4 0 4 4
2002 0 0 12 12 0 12 12
2003 0 0 3 3 0 3 3
2004 0 0 5 5 0 5 5
2005 0 0 7 7 0 7 7
2006 0 0 9 9 0 9 9
2007 0 0 7 7 0 7 7
2008 0 0 9 9 0 9 9
2009 0 0 10 10 0 10 10
2010 0 0 5 5 0 5 5
2011 0 0 10 10 0 10 10
2012 0 0 7 7 0 7 7
2013 0 0 7 7 0 7 7
2014 0 0 8 8 0 8 8
2015 0 0 14 14 0 14 14
2016 0 0 6 6 0 6 6
2017 0 0 12 12 0 1 1 0 13 13
2018 1 0 15 16 1 1 2 2 16 18
2019 0 0 10 10 1 3 4 1 13 14
2020 1 0 7 8 2 6 8 3 13 16
2021 0 0 1 1 4 11 15 4 12 16

 2022 (6 Mo) 3 7 10 3 7 10

Totals All: 2 0 233 235 11 29 40 13 262 275

Notes: (a) DA are claims where claimant was deceased prior to presentation of the claim to NICA.
            (b) AAD are claims that deceased after acceptance as of 6/30/2022.
            (c) AAA are accepted claims that are alive as of 6/30/2022.
            (d) See Section VI, Exhibit V, Sheet 1, Columns (21) and (11), respectively.



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section VI
Exhibit V

Development of Ultimate Accepted Claim Counts ( B/F Estimate) Sheet 1
Evaluated As of June 30, 2022

A. Selected Claim Frequency per Insured Physician Based on:    (a)
        1. AAA & AAD Only 0.0085
        2. DA Only 0.0038
        3. All Reported Claims 0.0340
            But Excluding DA Only

B. Ratio to Reported All Claims Excluding DA Only Based on:    (a)
        1. AAA & AAD Only 0.2500
        2. DA Only 0.1118

 B/F Method
Estimated Final 

Actual (b) All Estimated Claim Reporting Ultimate (d) Reported Selected IBNR
AAA & AAD Reported Pattern - Based on : Reported Claim Cts. AAA & AAD Ultimate AAA & AAD

Accepted Claim Cts. Insured -------------------------- Excl. DA Excl. DA Claim Cts. (d) AAA & AAD Accepted
Year of Claim Cts. Excl. DA (c) Physicians Accepted Reported (3) + {[1-(6)] (2) + {[1-(5)] (2) + {[1-(5)] Accepted Claim Cts.

Birth @ 6/30/22 @ 6/30/22 @ 6/30/22 AAA & AAD Claim Cts. x (4) x A.3} x (7) x B.1} x (4) x A.1} Claim Cts. (10) - (2)
---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ----------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

2017 13 43 1,356 98.78% 90.99% 47.15 13.14 13.14 14 1
2018 16 45 1,420 94.16% 82.09% 53.65 16.78 16.71 17 1
2019 11 44 1,501 84.84% 70.49% 59.06 13.24 12.93 14 3
2020 8 30 1,575 66.03% 50.35% 56.59 12.81 12.55 14 6
2021 1 14 1,663 32.17% 23.54% 57.23 10.71 10.59 12 11
2022 0 0 1,611 2.50% 2.50% 53.40 13.02 13.35 14 14

2022 (6 Mo.) 7 7

 Subtotals: FY 22 79.70 79.27 85.00 36.00
 @ 6 30 22 49 176 78.00 29.00

 B/F Method
Estimated Final 

Actual (b) All Estimated Claim Reporting Ultimate Reported Selected IBNR
DA Only Reported Pattern - Based on : Reported Claim Cts. DA Only Ultimate DA Only
Accepted Claim Cts. Insured -------------------------- Excl. DA Excl. DA Claim Cts. DA Only Accepted

Year of Claim Cts. Excl. DA (c) Physicians Accepted Reported (13) + {[1-(16)] (12) + {[1-(15)] (12) + {[1-(15)] Accepted Claim Cts.
Birth @ 6/30/22 @ 6/30/22 @ 6/30/22 DA Only Claim Cts. x (14) x A.3} x (17) x B.2} x (14) x A.2} Claim Cts. (20) - (12)

---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ----------
(1) (12) (13) (14) (15) (16) (17) (18) (19) (20) (21)

2017 2 43 1,356 100.00% 90.99% 47.15 2.00 2.00 2 0
2018 9 45 1,420 96.51% 82.09% 53.65 9.21 9.19 10 1
2019 4 44 1,501 87.86% 70.49% 59.06 4.80 4.69 5 1
2020 3 30 1,575 69.86% 50.35% 56.59 4.91 4.80 5 2
2021 4 14 1,663 38.02% 23.54% 57.23 7.96 7.92 8 4
2022 1,611 2.50% 2.50% 53.40 5.82 5.97 6 6

2022 (6 Mo.) 3 3

 Subtotals: FY 22 34.70 34.57 36.00 14.00
 @ 6 30 22 22 176 33.00 11.00

Notes: (a) See Section VI, Exhibit V, Sheet 2, Item (12).
            (b) See Section VI, Exhibit VI, Sheet 1, Columns (3) and (4), respectively.
            (c) See Section VI, Exhibit VI, Sheet 1, Column (2) minus Column (4).

 ---------------------------------

Indicated
Ultimate AAA & AAD

Accepted Claims Based on
 ---------------------------------

Indicated
Ultimate DA Only

Accepted Claims Based on



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section VI
Exhibit V

Development of Ultimate Accepted Claim Counts ( B/F Estimate) Sheet 2
Evaluated As of June 30, 2022

Actual  (a) All Reported Claim Frequency per Insured Physician Ratio of Ratio of 
Accepted Claim Counts Claim Cts.  Based on : AAA & AAD DA Only

--------------------------------- All  (a) Excluding --------------------------------------------------------- to Reported to Reported
AAA & AAD Reported DA Claims AAA & AAD Reported All Claims All Claims

Year of Only DA Only Claim Cts. @ 6/30/22 Insured Only DA Only Excl. DA Excl. DA Excl. DA
Birth @ 6/30/22 @ 6/30/22 @ 6/30/22 (4) - (3) Physicians (2) / (6) (3) / (6) (5) / (6)  (2) / (5)  (3) / (5)

---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ----------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

1989 11 4 32 28 570 0.0193 0.0070 0.0491 0.3929 0.1429
1990 7 3 39 36 590 0.0119 0.0051 0.0610 0.1944 0.0833
1991 4 4 38 34 653 0.0061 0.0061 0.0521 0.1176 0.1176
1992 13 1 48 47 712 0.0183 0.0014 0.0660 0.2766 0.0213
1993 13 2 40 38 731 0.0178 0.0027 0.0520 0.3421 0.0526
1994 7 9 36 27 659 0.0106 0.0137 0.0410 0.2593 0.3333
1995 6 5 26 21 682 0.0088 0.0073 0.0308 0.2857 0.2381
1996 7 10 40 30 708 0.0099 0.0141 0.0424 0.2333 0.3333
1997 11 6 47 41 737 0.0149 0.0081 0.0556 0.2683 0.1463
1998 15 3 42 39 699 0.0215 0.0043 0.0558 0.3846 0.0769
1999 9 9 40 31 665 0.0135 0.0135 0.0466 0.2903 0.2903
2000 6 7 38 31 620 0.0097 0.0113 0.0500 0.1935 0.2258
2001 4 9 41 32 676 0.0059 0.0133 0.0473 0.1250 0.2813
2002 17 5 50 45 730 0.0233 0.0068 0.0616 0.3778 0.1111
2003 3 6 23 17 785 0.0038 0.0076 0.0217 0.1765 0.3529
2004 6 7 31 24 841 0.0071 0.0083 0.0285 0.2500 0.2917
2005 11 2 41 39 891 0.0123 0.0022 0.0438 0.2821 0.0513
2006 12 1 34 33 897 0.0134 0.0011 0.0368 0.3636 0.0303
2007 10 5 36 31 963 0.0104 0.0052 0.0322 0.3226 0.1613
2008 10 1 42 41 987 0.0101 0.0010 0.0415 0.2439 0.0244
2009 11 6 50 44 1,044 0.0105 0.0057 0.0421 0.2500 0.1364
2010 6 6 40 34 1,071 0.0056 0.0056 0.0317 0.1765 0.1765
2011 12 2 44 42 1,091 0.0110 0.0018 0.0385 0.2857 0.0476
2012 7 4 50 46 1,119 0.0063 0.0036 0.0411 0.1522 0.0870
2013 8 3 32 29 1,143 0.0070 0.0026 0.0254 0.2759 0.1034
2014 10 3 45 42 1,208 0.0083 0.0025 0.0348 0.2381 0.0714
2015 14 6 50 44 1,273 0.0110 0.0047 0.0346 0.3182 0.1364
2016 6 4 36 32 1,318 0.0046 0.0030 0.0243 0.1875 0.1250

Subtotals:
89 to 16 256 133 1,111 978 24,063 0.0106 0.0055 0.0406 0.2618 0.1360
89 to 02 130 77 557 480 9,432 0.0138 0.0082 0.0509 0.2708 0.1604
03 to 16 126 56 554 498 14,631 0.0086 0.0038 0.0340 0.2530 0.1124
08 to 16 84 35 389 354 10,254 0.0082 0.0034 0.0345 0.2373 0.0989
12 to 16 45 20 213 193 6,061 0.0074 0.0033 0.0318 0.2332 0.1036

(12) Selected Frequency ====> 0.0085 0.0038 0.0340 0.2500 0.1118

Notes: (a) See Section VI, Exhibit VI, Sheet 1.



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section VII
Summary of Incurred Loss & ALAE - Actual Exhibit I
Evaluated As of June 30, 2022 Sheet 1

Incurred Loss & ALAE @ 6/30/22
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

All Expenses
Additional Excluding

Estimated Parental Awards Class Action
All Expenses One-time on Deceased & SB 1786

Excluding Changes Accepted Claims Used for
Birth All Expense Class Class Action Related to From 12/31/21 Triangle
Year Categories Action (2) - (3) SB 1786 to 6/30/22 (2) - (3) - (5) - (6)

---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ----------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

1989 32,543,854           261,214          32,282,640           2,424,240         1,815,465              28,042,935           
1990 17,973,129           758,051          17,215,078           1,692,337         1,124,625              14,398,115           
1991 28,828,609           792,094          28,036,515           3,056,301         672,622                 24,307,592           
1992 60,071,103           1,951,145       58,119,958           5,745,268         820,163                 51,554,527           
1993 61,329,475           910,230          60,419,245           5,185,190         1,100,665              54,133,390           
1994 29,398,181           634,196          28,763,985           2,591,409         1,919,466              24,253,110           
1995 41,199,698           910,904          40,288,794           3,997,441         955,211                 35,336,142           
1996 35,850,807           797,021          35,053,786           3,763,000         1,560,428              29,730,359           
1997 59,241,767           1,624,160       57,617,606           6,119,057         1,370,373              50,128,176           
1998 84,663,149           2,006,630       82,656,519           7,669,965         900,122                 74,086,432           
1999 29,398,506           873,581          28,524,925           2,391,289         2,296,175              23,837,461           
2000 20,537,947           599,907          19,938,039           2,107,487         1,372,372              16,458,181           
2001 33,431,617           115,547          33,316,070           3,139,606         1,350,441              28,826,024           
2002 78,743,226           840,587          77,902,639           7,910,793         1,350,408              68,641,438           
2003 17,847,404           -                  17,847,404           2,104,656         900,237                 14,842,512           
2004 37,282,944           -                  37,282,944           3,623,035         1,050,260              32,609,649           
2005 40,717,261           -                  40,717,261           4,103,305         900,328                 35,713,627           
2006 60,399,936           -                  60,399,936           6,239,797         600,245                 53,559,894           
2007 45,075,078           -                  45,075,078           4,468,457         900,174                 39,706,447           
2008 63,353,088           -                  63,353,088           6,230,237         300,092                 56,822,758           
2009 66,507,515           -                  66,507,515           6,706,615         1,050,171              58,750,728           
2010 30,682,798           -                  30,682,798           3,598,347         1,070,529              26,013,922           
2011 56,095,741           -                  56,095,741           6,061,579         600,124                 49,434,038           
2012 44,704,461           -                  44,704,461           5,101,270         600,244                 39,002,946           
2013 40,491,463           -                  40,491,463           4,273,503         600,145                 35,617,815           
2014 46,482,713           -                  46,482,713           5,146,311         600,299                 40,736,103           
2015 82,870,503           -                  82,870,503           8,682,304         900,235                 73,287,964           
2016 32,002,006           -                  32,002,006           3,507,763         476,023                 28,018,220           
2017 62,946,725           -                  62,946,725           6,758,447         446,952                 55,741,326           
2018 93,144,303           -                  93,144,303           8,772,474         1,347,919              83,023,910           
2019 52,632,430           -                  52,632,430           5,198,594         300,079                 47,133,758           
2020 40,359,558           -                  40,359,558           2,090,000         -                        38,269,558           
2021 4,915,238             -                  4,915,238             570,000            316,465                 4,028,773             

2022 - 6 mo. -                        -                  -                        -                    -                        -                        

Totals: 1,531,722,231      13,075,266     1,518,646,965      151,030,078     31,569,056           1,336,047,831      



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section VII
Summary of Paid Loss & ALAE - Actual Exhibit I
Evaluated As of June 30, 2022 Sheet 2

Paid Loss & ALAE @ 6/30/22
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

All Expenses
Additional Excluding

Estimated Parental Awards Class Action
All Expenses One-time on Deceased & SB 1786

Excluding Changes Accepted Claims Used for
Birth All Expense Class Class Action Related to From 12/31/21 Triangle
Year Categories Action (2) - (3) SB 1786 to 6/30/22 (2) - (3) - (5)

---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ----------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

1989 18,639,776           261,214          18,378,562           930,049          1,510,465                 15,938,049           
1990 8,524,568             758,051          7,766,517             698,915          775,224                    6,292,379             
1991 12,682,173           792,094          11,890,079           823,577          672,622                    10,393,880           
1992 20,876,784           1,951,145       18,925,639           1,719,558       525,163                    16,680,917           
1993 26,775,129           910,230          25,864,900           1,610,466       1,101,024                 23,153,409           
1994 11,092,191           634,196          10,457,995           796,810          1,956,966                 7,704,219             
1995 14,429,871           910,904          13,518,966           1,201,365       635,211                    11,682,390           
1996 13,730,549           797,021          12,933,528           1,132,770       1,055,428                 10,745,330           
1997 17,686,872           1,624,160       16,062,712           1,431,375       1,251,473                 13,379,864           
1998 28,827,267           2,006,630       26,820,637           2,057,233       450,122                    24,313,282           
1999 16,758,409           873,581          15,884,828           1,045,971       1,951,175                 12,887,682           
2000 9,493,662             589,907          8,903,755             985,160          1,228,241                 6,690,354             
2001 11,794,520           115,547          11,678,973           1,035,817       975,441                    9,667,715             
2002 24,401,471           840,587          23,560,884           2,418,470       1,240,408                 19,902,006           
2003 7,468,118             -                  7,468,118             706,488          600,237                    6,161,393             
2004 8,476,321             -                  8,476,321             994,952          750,260                    6,731,109             
2005 12,414,481           -                  12,414,481           1,227,713       900,328                    10,286,441           
2006 14,366,681           -                  14,366,681           1,285,227       640,245                    12,441,209           
2007 15,518,377           -                  15,518,377           1,265,883       825,174                    13,427,320           
2008 10,600,146           -                  10,600,146           1,132,479       300,092                    9,167,575             
2009 13,207,494           -                  13,207,494           1,686,986       865,171                    10,655,337           
2010 5,643,032             -                  5,643,032             880,648          1,033,402                 3,728,983             
2011 8,513,280             -                  8,513,280             1,425,485       600,124                    6,487,672             
2012 5,909,373             -                  5,909,373             967,709          525,244                    4,416,420             
2013 8,831,218             -                  8,831,218             1,272,304       549,145                    7,009,769             
2014 9,943,794             -                  9,943,794             1,527,350       693,132                    7,723,311             
2015 9,887,820             -                  9,887,820             2,025,990       450,235                    7,411,595             
2016 2,952,791             -                  2,952,791             698,914          524,566                    1,729,310             
2017 6,306,695             -                  6,306,695             1,253,801       450,591                    4,602,303             
2018 9,232,805             -                  9,232,805             1,775,719       1,384,349                 6,072,737             
2019 5,332,847             -                  5,332,847             1,550,195       225,154                    3,557,498             
2020 3,520,456             -                  3,520,456             580,000          444,784                    2,495,671             
2021 1,682,031             -                  1,682,031             380,000          646,824                    655,207                

2022 - 6 mo. -                        -                  -                        -                  -                            -                        

Totals: 395,520,999         13,065,266     382,455,733         40,525,378     27,738,020               314,192,335         



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IX
Exhibit I

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & Expense Sheet 2

Summary of Historical Inflation and Investment Returns Average Average Average
Yield Yield Yield NICA NICA

NICA NICA Actual Actual
CPI CPI Large Small Long-Term Intermediate Short-Term Actual Estimated Inflation Inflation

All Items Medical Company Company Inflation Gov't Gov't Gov't Investment Inflation Other All
Year % Change Index % Chg Stocks Stocks Index Bonds Bonds Bonds Return Nursing Care Expense Expense

-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- --------------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12) (13)

1972 3.41% 3.28% 18.99% 4.43% 237.10% 5.99% 5.85% 3.84%
1973 8.71% 5.29% -14.69% -30.90% 257.90% 7.26% 6.79% 6.93%
1974 12.34% 12.56% -26.47% -19.95% 289.40% 7.60% 7.12% 8.00%
1975 6.94% 9.82% 37.23% 52.82% 309.70% 8.05% 7.19% 5.80%
1976 4.86% 9.96% 23.93% 57.38% 324.60% 7.21% 6.00% 5.08%
1977 6.70% 8.87% -7.16% 25.38% 346.60% 8.03% 7.51% 5.12%
1978 9.02% 8.83% 6.57% 23.46% 377.80% 8.98% 8.83% 7.18%
1979 13.29% 10.14% 18.61% 43.46% 428.10% 10.12% 10.33% 10.38%
1980 12.52% 9.92% 32.50% 39.88% 481.20% 11.99% 12.45% 11.24%
1981 8.92% 12.50% -4.92% 13.88% 524.20% 13.34% 13.96% 14.71%
1982 3.83% 11.00% 21.55% 28.01% 544.50% 10.95% 9.90% 10.54%
1983 3.79% 6.40% 22.56% 39.67% 565.20% 11.97% 11.41% 8.80%
1984 3.95% 6.11% 6.27% -6.67% 587.50% 11.70% 11.04% 9.85%
1985 3.80% 6.76% 31.73% 24.66% 6.097 9.56% 8.55% 7.72%
1986 1.10% 7.71% 18.67% 6.85% 6.166 7.89% 6.85% 6.16%
1987 4.43% 5.80% 5.25% -9.30% 6.438 9.20% 8.32% 5.47%
1988 4.42% 6.91% 16.61% 22.87% 6.722 9.18% 9.17% 6.35%
1989 4.65% 8.50% 31.69% 10.18% 7.034 8.16% 7.94% 8.37%
1990 6.11% 9.59% -3.10% -21.56% 7.464 8.44% 7.70% 7.81% 0.00% 5.89% 1.75%
1991 3.06% 7.92% 30.47% 44.63% 7.693 7.30% 5.97% 5.60% 5.88% 0.00% 4.98% 1.49%
1992 2.90% 6.63% 7.62% 23.35% 7.916 7.26% 6.11% 3.51% 3.27% 0.00% 4.15% 1.46%
1993 2.75% 5.39% 10.08% 20.98% 8.133 6.54% 5.22% 2.90% 3.12% 0.00% 3.92% 1.62%
1994 2.67% 4.92% 1.32% 3.11% 8.351 7.99% 7.80% 3.90% 3.62% 0.00% 3.82% 1.30%
1995 2.54% 3.95% 37.58% 34.46% 8.563 6.03% 5.38% 5.60% 6.96% 0.00% 3.60% 1.00%
1996 3.32% 3.04% 22.96% 17.62% 8.847 6.73% 6.16% 5.21% 5.79% 0.00% 3.52% 1.09%
1997 1.70% 2.82% 33.36% 22.78% 8.998 6.02% 5.73% 5.26% 6.10% 0.00% 2.96% 0.91%
1998 1.61% 3.42% 28.58% -7.31% 9.143 5.42% 4.68% 4.86% 6.20% 0.00% 3.07% 0.92%
1999 2.68% 3.67% 21.04% 29.79% 9.389 6.82% 6.45% 4.68% 4.54% 0.00% 3.39% 0.97%
2000 3.39% 4.17% -9.10% -3.59% 9.707 5.58% 5.07% 5.89% 13.11% 0.00% 3.73% 0.98%
2001 1.55% 4.72% -11.89% 22.77% 9.857 5.75% 4.42% 3.83% 3.98% 0.00% 3.15% 1.05%
2002 2.38% 5.05% -22.11% -13.28% 10.091 4.84% 2.61% 1.65% -8.52% 0.00% 3.37% 1.22%
2003 1.88% 3.71% 28.68% 60.70% 10.281 5.11% 2.97% 1.02% 19.99% 0.00% 2.92% 0.99%
2004 3.26% 4.24% 10.88% 18.39% 10.618 4.84% 3.47% 1.20% 10.27% 0.00% 3.58% 1.42%
2005 3.42% 4.29% 4.91% 5.69% 10.978 4.61% 4.34% 2.98% 8.92% 0.00% 3.66% 1.41%
2006 2.54% 3.56% 15.79% 16.17% 11.257 4.91% 4.65% 4.80% 12.77% 0.00% 3.13% 0.99%
2007 4.08% 5.16% 5.49% -5.22% 11.717 4.50% 3.28% 4.66% 8.72% 0.00% 4.14% 1.32%
2008 0.09% 2.65% -37.00% -36.72% 11.728 4.37% 3.18% 1.30% -27.24% 14.38% 1.90% 6.50%
2009 2.72% 3.37% 26.46% 25.57% 4.11% 2.82% 0.10% 20.00% 13.56% 3.24% 7.62%
2010 1.50% 3.28% 15.06% 26.31% 4.03% 2.62% 0.11% 13.36% 0.00% 2.60% 0.78%
2011 2.96% 3.49% 2.11% 1.02% 3.62% 2.16% 0.04% -0.10% 0.00% 3.29% 1.00%
2012 1.74% 3.21% 16.00% 16.33% 2.54% 1.22% 0.07% 10.88% 0.00% 2.87% 0.78%
2013 1.50% 2.01% 32.39% 41.31% 3.12% 1.74% 0.05% 12.58% 0.00% 2.27% 0.57%
2014 0.76% 2.96% 13.69% 5.76% 3.07% 2.14% 0.03% 5.64% 0.00% 2.22% 0.55%
2015 0.73% 2.58% 1.38% -1.97% 2.55% 1.89% 0.04% -1.84% 0.00% 1.80% 0.40%
2016 2.07% 4.07% 11.96% 26.56% 2.22% 1.63% 0.25% 6.72% 0.20% 2.96% 0.69%
2017 2.11% 1.78% 21.83% 13.23% 2.65% 2.16% 0.85% 13.81% 0.16% 2.28% 0.59%
2018 1.91% 2.01% -4.38% -8.48% 2.91% 2.75% 1.84% -6.72% 0.00% 2.14% 0.48%
2019 2.29% 4.57% 31.49% 22.78% 2.14% 1.95% 2.12% 21.15% 0.00% 3.00% 0.57%
2020 1.36% 1.78% 18.40% 11.29% 0.89% 0.53% 0.35% 14.08% 0.00% 1.79% 0.33%
2021 1.45% 0.86% 0.04% 0.00% 2.40% 0.44%

Geometric
Averages

 2000 to 2020 2.04% 3.42% 7.47% 10.45% 3.63% 2.62% 1.35% 6.26% 1.33% 2.81% 1.44%
 1991 to 2020 2.22% 3.67% 10.07% 11.78% 4.51% 3.61% 2.36% 6.12% 0.92% 3.05% 1.35%
 1972 to 1982 8.67% 9.87% 6.72% 19.67% 9.33% 8.98% 8.46%
 1982 to 1992 3.81% 7.23% 16.17% 11.55% 9.05% 8.29% 6.95% 0.90%
 1992 to 2002 2.46% 4.11% 9.34% 11.58% 6.17% 5.34% 4.37% 4.36% 0.00% 3.45% 1.10%

 1929 to 1939 -2.04% 0.19% -0.05% 1.38% 2.96% 2.23% 0.55%
 1939 to 1949 5.36% 3.66% 9.17% 20.69% 2.24% 1.12% 0.41%
 1949 to 1959 2.22% 3.88% 19.35% 16.90% 3.11% 2.81% 1.87%
 1959 to 1969 2.52% 4.11% 7.81% 15.53% 4.77% 4.83% 3.88%
 1969 to 1979 7.36% 8.03% 5.87% 11.49% 7.56% 7.07% 6.31%
 1979 to 1989 5.10% 8.14% 17.55% 15.83% 10.38% 9.94% 8.89%



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA) Section IX
Exhibit I

Estimation of Outstanding Loss & Expense Sheet 2

Summary of Historical Inflation and Investment Returns Average Average Average
Yield Yield Yield NICA NICA

NICA NICA Actual Actual
CPI CPI Large Small Long-Term Intermediate Short-Term Actual Estimated Inflation Inflation

All Items Medical Company Company Inflation Gov't Gov't Gov't Investment Inflation Other All
Year % Change Index % Chg Stocks Stocks Index Bonds Bonds Bonds Return Nursing Care Expense Expense

-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- --------------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12) (13)

1972 3.41% 3.28% 18.99% 4.43% 237.10% 5.99% 5.85% 3.84%
1973 8.71% 5.29% -14.69% -30.90% 257.90% 7.26% 6.79% 6.93%
1974 12.34% 12.56% -26.47% -19.95% 289.40% 7.60% 7.12% 8.00%
1975 6.94% 9.82% 37.23% 52.82% 309.70% 8.05% 7.19% 5.80%
1976 4.86% 9.96% 23.93% 57.38% 324.60% 7.21% 6.00% 5.08%
1977 6.70% 8.87% -7.16% 25.38% 346.60% 8.03% 7.51% 5.12%
1978 9.02% 8.83% 6.57% 23.46% 377.80% 8.98% 8.83% 7.18%
1979 13.29% 10.14% 18.61% 43.46% 428.10% 10.12% 10.33% 10.38%
1980 12.52% 9.92% 32.50% 39.88% 481.20% 11.99% 12.45% 11.24%
1981 8.92% 12.50% -4.92% 13.88% 524.20% 13.34% 13.96% 14.71%
1982 3.83% 11.00% 21.55% 28.01% 544.50% 10.95% 9.90% 10.54%
1983 3.79% 6.40% 22.56% 39.67% 565.20% 11.97% 11.41% 8.80%
1984 3.95% 6.11% 6.27% -6.67% 587.50% 11.70% 11.04% 9.85%
1985 3.80% 6.76% 31.73% 24.66% 6.097 9.56% 8.55% 7.72%
1986 1.10% 7.71% 18.67% 6.85% 6.166 7.89% 6.85% 6.16%
1987 4.43% 5.80% 5.25% -9.30% 6.438 9.20% 8.32% 5.47%
1988 4.42% 6.91% 16.61% 22.87% 6.722 9.18% 9.17% 6.35%
1989 4.65% 8.50% 31.69% 10.18% 7.034 8.16% 7.94% 8.37%
1990 6.11% 9.59% -3.10% -21.56% 7.464 8.44% 7.70% 7.81% 0.00% 5.89% 1.75%
1991 3.06% 7.92% 30.47% 44.63% 7.693 7.30% 5.97% 5.60% 5.88% 0.00% 4.98% 1.49%
1992 2.90% 6.63% 7.62% 23.35% 7.916 7.26% 6.11% 3.51% 3.27% 0.00% 4.15% 1.46%
1993 2.75% 5.39% 10.08% 20.98% 8.133 6.54% 5.22% 2.90% 3.12% 0.00% 3.92% 1.62%
1994 2.67% 4.92% 1.32% 3.11% 8.351 7.99% 7.80% 3.90% 3.62% 0.00% 3.82% 1.30%
1995 2.54% 3.95% 37.58% 34.46% 8.563 6.03% 5.38% 5.60% 6.96% 0.00% 3.60% 1.00%
1996 3.32% 3.04% 22.96% 17.62% 8.847 6.73% 6.16% 5.21% 5.79% 0.00% 3.52% 1.09%
1997 1.70% 2.82% 33.36% 22.78% 8.998 6.02% 5.73% 5.26% 6.10% 0.00% 2.96% 0.91%
1998 1.61% 3.42% 28.58% -7.31% 9.143 5.42% 4.68% 4.86% 6.20% 0.00% 3.07% 0.92%
1999 2.68% 3.67% 21.04% 29.79% 9.389 6.82% 6.45% 4.68% 4.54% 0.00% 3.39% 0.97%
2000 3.39% 4.17% -9.10% -3.59% 9.707 5.58% 5.07% 5.89% 13.11% 0.00% 3.73% 0.98%
2001 1.55% 4.72% -11.89% 22.77% 9.857 5.75% 4.42% 3.83% 3.98% 0.00% 3.15% 1.05%
2002 2.38% 5.05% -22.11% -13.28% 10.091 4.84% 2.61% 1.65% -8.52% 0.00% 3.37% 1.22%
2003 1.88% 3.71% 28.68% 60.70% 10.281 5.11% 2.97% 1.02% 19.99% 0.00% 2.92% 0.99%
2004 3.26% 4.24% 10.88% 18.39% 10.618 4.84% 3.47% 1.20% 10.27% 0.00% 3.58% 1.42%
2005 3.42% 4.29% 4.91% 5.69% 10.978 4.61% 4.34% 2.98% 8.92% 0.00% 3.66% 1.41%
2006 2.54% 3.56% 15.79% 16.17% 11.257 4.91% 4.65% 4.80% 12.77% 0.00% 3.13% 0.99%
2007 4.08% 5.16% 5.49% -5.22% 11.717 4.50% 3.28% 4.66% 8.72% 0.00% 4.14% 1.32%
2008 0.09% 2.65% -37.00% -36.72% 11.728 4.37% 3.18% 1.30% -27.24% 14.38% 1.90% 6.50%
2009 2.72% 3.37% 26.46% 25.57% 4.11% 2.82% 0.10% 20.00% 13.56% 3.24% 7.62%
2010 1.50% 3.28% 15.06% 26.31% 4.03% 2.62% 0.11% 13.36% 0.00% 2.60% 0.78%
2011 2.96% 3.49% 2.11% 1.02% 3.62% 2.16% 0.04% -0.10% 0.00% 3.29% 1.00%
2012 1.74% 3.21% 16.00% 16.33% 2.54% 1.22% 0.07% 10.88% 0.00% 2.87% 0.78%
2013 1.50% 2.01% 32.39% 41.31% 3.12% 1.74% 0.05% 12.58% 0.00% 2.27% 0.57%
2014 0.76% 2.96% 13.69% 5.76% 3.07% 2.14% 0.03% 5.64% 0.00% 2.22% 0.55%
2015 0.73% 2.58% 1.38% -1.97% 2.55% 1.89% 0.04% -1.84% 0.00% 1.80% 0.40%
2016 2.07% 4.07% 11.96% 26.56% 2.22% 1.63% 0.25% 6.72% 0.20% 2.96% 0.69%
2017 2.11% 1.78% 21.83% 13.23% 2.65% 2.16% 0.85% 13.81% 0.16% 2.28% 0.59%
2018 1.91% 2.01% -4.38% -8.48% 2.91% 2.75% 1.84% -6.72% 0.00% 2.14% 0.48%
2019 2.29% 4.57% 31.49% 22.78% 2.14% 1.95% 2.12% 21.15% 0.00% 3.00% 0.57%
2020 1.36% 1.78% 18.40% 11.29% 0.89% 0.53% 0.35% 14.08% 0.00% 1.79% 0.33%
2021 1.45% 0.86% 0.04% 0.00% 2.40% 0.44%

Geometric
Averages

 2000 to 2020 2.04% 3.42% 7.47% 10.45% 3.63% 2.62% 1.35% 6.26% 1.33% 2.81% 1.44%
 1991 to 2020 2.22% 3.67% 10.07% 11.78% 4.51% 3.61% 2.36% 6.12% 0.92% 3.05% 1.35%
 1972 to 1982 8.67% 9.87% 6.72% 19.67% 9.33% 8.98% 8.46%
 1982 to 1992 3.81% 7.23% 16.17% 11.55% 9.05% 8.29% 6.95% 0.90%
 1992 to 2002 2.46% 4.11% 9.34% 11.58% 6.17% 5.34% 4.37% 4.36% 0.00% 3.45% 1.10%

 1929 to 1939 -2.04% 0.19% -0.05% 1.38% 2.96% 2.23% 0.55%
 1939 to 1949 5.36% 3.66% 9.17% 20.69% 2.24% 1.12% 0.41%
 1949 to 1959 2.22% 3.88% 19.35% 16.90% 3.11% 2.81% 1.87%
 1959 to 1969 2.52% 4.11% 7.81% 15.53% 4.77% 4.83% 3.88%
 1969 to 1979 7.36% 8.03% 5.87% 11.49% 7.56% 7.07% 6.31%
 1979 to 1989 5.10% 8.14% 17.55% 15.83% 10.38% 9.94% 8.89%



 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 10.B. (Tab I) 
 

Threshold Calculations  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FLORIDA BIRTH RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION Exhibit I
Sheet 1

CALCULATION OF THRESHOLD FOR SUSPENSION OF CLAIMS
(Section 766.314(9), Florida Statutes)

CALCULATION OF THRESHOLD FOR SUSPENSION OF CLAIMS As of As of As of
 9 30 21 (a)  12 31 21 (b)  6 30 22 (b)
   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐    ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐    ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

(2) (3) (4)

I. 1 Funds on hand 1,664,383,766 1,717,315,924 1,333,774,037
2 Funds available within 12 months (Exhibit I, Part A) 161,238,567 164,943,181 149,999,053
3 Total 1,825,622,333 1,882,259,105 1,483,773,089

II. Threshold for suspension (80% of line I.3.) 1,460,497,866 1,505,807,284 1,187,018,472

III. 1 Present Value Loss+LAE Reserve on Filed Claims (b) 1,129,498,318 1,011,833,465 1,004,877,789
2 Amount of claims that can be accepted (II. - III.1.) 330,999,549 493,973,819 182,140,683

Notes: (a) See latest annual NICA threshold calculation summary evaluated as of September 30, 2021.
            (b) See Exhibit II for Item I.1., Exhibit I, Sheet 2 for Item I.2. and Exhibit III, Sheets 1 and 2 for Item III.1.



FLORIDA BIRTH RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION Exhibit I
Sheet 2

CALCULATION OF THRESHOLD FOR SUSPENSION OF CLAIMS
(Section 766.314(9), Florida Statutes)

Summary of Interim Funds Available - Threshold Calculation

As of As of As of
Description  9 30 21  12 31 21  6 30 22

 ----------------------    ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐    ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐    ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
(2) (3) (4)

A.   FUNDS AVAILABLE WITHIN THE NEXT 12 MONTHS

1 Assessments from health care providers. (Fiscal year Ending 6/30/2021 and 2022 from NICA) 31,799,087 FY 6/21 31,799,087 FY 6/21 35,830,483 FY 6/22
2 Assessments against insurance companies (From C.3) (a) 25,688,344 25,688,344 25,688,344
3 Transfer from the Florida Office of Insurance Regulation 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
4 Reinsurance recovery - actual anticipated recoveries within 12 Months 0 0 0
5 Income on invested funds    (A.1 + A.4 + B.2)  x  B.5.d 83,751,136 87,455,751 68,480,226
6 Total 161,238,567 164,943,181 149,999,053

B.   RETURN ON INVESTED ASSETS

1 Investments at beginning of period at market value 1,504,973,182 1,643,223,638 1,717,315,924
2 Investments at end of period at market value 1,643,223,638 1,717,315,924 1,333,774,037
3 Average invested assets    (B.1 + B.2) / 2 1,574,098,410 1,680,269,781 1,333,774,037
4 a. Net investment income excluding change in unrealized gains / losses for 2020 / 2021 80,301,877  N / A  N / A

b. Change in unrealized capital gains / losses for 2020 / 2021 91,313,579  N / A  N / A
5 Calculated annual return on investments

a. Excluding change in unrealized gains / losses for 2020 / 2021    (B.4.a) / (B.3) 5.10%  N / A  N / A
b. Including change in unrealized gains / losses for 2020 / 2021    [(B.4.a) + (B.4.b)] / (B.3) 10.90%  N / A  N / A
c. Average annual return excluding change in unrealized gains / losses over latest 5 years 4.22%  N / A  N / A
d. Selected prospective annual return on investments 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

C.   ASSESSMENTS AGAINST INSURANCE COMPANIES.

1 Assessment rate (From Florida Statute) 0.25% 0.25% 0.25%
2 Net Direct Premium Written (From D.h) 10,275,337,500 10,275,337,500 10,275,337,500
3 Assessment against insurance companies    C.1 x C.2 25,688,344 25,688,344 25,688,344

D.   NET DIRECT PREMIUM WRITTEN    (1)

2019 Direct % Liability
Line of Insurance Written Premium Liability (2) Premium

a. Farmowners $23,427,545 20% $4,685,509
b. Homeowners $10,080,722,267 20% $2,016,144,453
c. Commercial Multi-Peril - Liability $855,273,964 100% $855,273,964
d. Medical Malpractice $647,865,265 100% $647,865,265
e. Other Liability $6,439,529,900 100% $6,439,529,900
f. Products Liability $244,001,569 100% $244,001,569
g. Aircraft $135,673,680 50% $67,836,840
h. Total $18,426,494,190 $10,275,337,500

Notes: (a) The estimated assessment amount for all three evaluations is based on the 2019 information as shown in the OIR 2020 report since the 2021 report is not yet available.



FLORIDA BIRTH RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION Exhibit II

CALCULATION OF THRESHOLD FOR SUSPENSION OF CLAIMS
(Section 766.314(9), Florida Statutes)

Summary of Invested Assets - as of December 31, 2021 and
    June 30, 2022

Balance Balance
as of as of

Description  12 31 21  6 30 22
 ----------------------  ------------  ------------

(2) (3)

(1) Mellon Account Balance (a) 1,696,365,082    1,317,241,540   

(2) SPIA Balance (a) 277,254              278,008             

(3) Annuity Values (b)
(a) Contract  # 002 7,903,813           6,263,079          
(b) Contract  # 003 12,769,774         9,991,410          

(4) Invested Assets 1,717,315,924    1,333,774,037   
 (1) + (2) + (3a) + (3b)

 Notes: (a) Provided by NICA.
            (b) See NICA Annuity valuation letter related to evaluation as of December 31, 2021 and June 30, 2022.



FLORIDA BIRTH RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION Exhibit III
Sheet 1

CALCULATION OF THRESHOLD FOR SUSPENSION OF CLAIMS
(Section 766.314(9), Florida Statutes)

Indicated Amounts of Outstanding Loss & LAE  - After Inflation and Discount
From Reserve Report to Threshold Calculation

Removal of Unreported and Family Care Outstanding Loss & LAE

Evaluated as of December 31, 2021

Outstanding Outstanding
Outstanding Loss & LAE Loss & LAE
Loss & LAE as Shown in After Removal of
as Shown in 12 31 21 Unreported

12 31 21 Report Claims and 
Report Incl. F.C But Reported F.C. Reported

Incl. F.C & Excluding Family Care as of
Year of Unreported Unreported Outstanding  12 31 21

Birth Claims (a) Claims (a) Loss & ALAE  (3) - (4)
---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ----------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

1989 12,482,592           12,482,592           -                        12,482,592           
1990 12,701,843           12,701,843           -                        12,701,843           
1991 17,705,437           17,705,437           -                        17,705,437           
1992 41,990,250           41,990,250           -                        41,990,250           
1993 31,199,074           31,199,074           -                        31,199,074           
1994 15,073,156           15,073,156           -                        15,073,156           
1995 25,146,623           25,146,623           -                        25,146,623           
1996 25,904,286           25,904,286           -                        25,904,286           
1997 39,831,360           39,831,360           -                        39,831,360           
1998 52,104,557           52,104,557           -                        52,104,557           
1999 12,407,193           12,407,193           -                        12,407,193           
2000 14,161,119           14,161,119           -                        14,161,119           
2001 17,843,259           17,843,259           -                        17,843,259           
2002 53,911,835           53,911,835           3,553,762             50,358,074           
2003 14,412,496           14,412,496           1,348,185             13,064,311           
2004 25,245,241           25,245,241           1,725,849             23,519,393           
2005 30,728,827           30,728,827           3,489,283             27,239,544           
2006 43,648,311           43,648,311           5,218,613             38,429,698           
2007 28,953,934           28,953,934           1,768,508             27,185,426           
2008 45,890,048           45,890,048           4,191,175             41,698,872           
2009 47,510,090           47,510,090           6,813,436             40,696,654           
2010 27,807,746           27,807,746           1,036,537             26,771,209           
2011 50,034,053           50,034,053           8,144,248             41,889,805           
2012 37,400,181           37,400,181           3,825,316             33,574,866           
2013 28,977,766           28,977,766           3,338,327             25,639,438           
2014 38,342,858           38,342,858           3,382,712             34,960,147           
2015 65,806,960           65,806,960           10,317,421           55,489,539           
2016 23,967,497           23,967,497           4,054,180             19,913,317           
2017 63,444,465           58,564,121           6,149,097             52,415,024           
2018 81,817,769           71,590,548           10,377,430           61,213,118           
2019 69,049,636           49,321,168           6,433,754             42,887,414           
2020 77,864,715           36,336,867           -                        36,336,867           
2021 61,642,671           -                        -                        -                        

Totals: 1,235,007,848      1,097,001,297      85,167,832           1,011,833,465      

Notes: (a) See Exhibit III, Sheet 5, Cols. (4) and (9).

Outstanding Loss & LAE Reserves  - After Inflation and Discount
Before and After Adjustment for the Exclusion of Unreported Claims and

Family Care Claims as Defined for use in the Threshold Calculation
 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



FLORIDA BIRTH RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION Exhibit III
Sheet 2

CALCULATION OF THRESHOLD FOR SUSPENSION OF CLAIMS
(Section 766.314(9), Florida Statutes)

Indicated Amounts of Outstanding Loss & LAE  - After Inflation and Discount
From Reserve Report to Threshold Calculation

Removal of Unreported and Family Care Outstanding Loss & LAE

Evaluated as of June 30, 2022

Outstanding Outstanding
Outstanding Loss & LAE Loss & LAE
Loss & LAE as Shown in After Removal of
as Shown in  6 30 22 Unreported

 6 30 22 Report Claims and 
Report Incl. F.C But Reported F.C. Reported

Incl. F.C & Excluding Family Care as of
Year of Unreported Unreported Outstanding  6 30 22

Birth Claims (a) Claims (a) Loss & ALAE  (3) - (4)
---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ----------

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

1989 12,193,759           12,193,759           -                        12,193,759           
1990 12,413,133           12,413,133           -                        12,413,133           
1991 17,423,265           17,423,265           -                        17,423,265           
1992 41,188,716           41,188,716           -                        41,188,716           
1993 30,537,702           30,537,702           -                        30,537,702           
1994 14,817,207           14,817,207           -                        14,817,207           
1995 24,721,211           24,721,211           -                        24,721,211           
1996 25,299,520           25,299,520           -                        25,299,520           
1997 39,120,906           39,120,906           -                        39,120,906           
1998 51,162,839           51,162,839           -                        51,162,839           
1999 12,116,064           12,116,064           -                        12,116,064           
2000 13,898,850           13,898,850           -                        13,898,850           
2001 17,474,082           17,474,082           -                        17,474,082           
2002 52,803,838           52,803,838           3,435,406             49,368,431           
2003 14,190,359           14,190,359           1,303,811             12,886,548           
2004 24,886,436           24,886,436           1,686,667             23,199,768           
2005 30,181,294           30,181,294           3,377,941             26,803,353           
2006 42,981,193           42,981,193           5,071,213             37,909,981           
2007 28,388,389           28,388,389           1,699,395             26,688,994           
2008 45,239,801           45,239,801           4,088,400             41,151,401           
2009 46,756,229           46,756,229           6,653,953             40,102,276           
2010 27,465,746           27,465,746           1,013,247             26,452,499           
2011 49,297,185           49,297,185           7,946,930             41,350,256           
2012 36,903,617           36,903,617           3,755,434             33,148,183           
2013 28,559,405           28,559,405           3,265,567             25,293,838           
2014 37,918,040           37,918,040           3,298,956             34,619,084           
2015 65,048,543           65,048,543           10,110,822           54,937,721           
2016 29,154,195           29,154,195           3,959,826             25,194,369           
2017 62,764,531           57,936,490           6,527,343             51,409,147           
2018 81,422,180           76,333,293           11,244,555           65,088,738           
2019 63,327,715           48,713,627           7,713,758             40,999,869           
2020 64,852,912           34,920,799           4,119,256             30,801,543           
2021 61,254,453           5,104,538             -                        5,104,538             

2022 - 6 mo 35,851,433           -                        -                        -                        

Totals: 1,241,614,746      1,095,150,269      90,272,481           1,004,877,789      

Notes: (a) See Exhibit III, Sheet 6, Cols. (4) and (9).

Outstanding Loss & LAE Reserves  - After Inflation and Discount
Before and After Adjustment for the Exclusion of Unreported Claims and

Family Care Claims as Defined for use in the Threshold Calculation
 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



FLORIDA BIRTH RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION Exhibit III
Sheet 3

CALCULATION OF THRESHOLD FOR SUSPENSION OF CLAIMS
(Section 766.314(9), Florida Statutes)

Indicated Amounts of Outstanding Loss & LAE  - After Inflation and Discount
From Reserve Report to Threshold Calculation

Adjustment of Family Care Reserves to Include Consideration of Inflation and Discount

Evaluated as of December 31, 2021

Reported Selected
Family 2021 Outstanding Indicated

Inflation / Care Level Loss & Average
Current Discount After Selected ALAE Inflation /
Level Factor Inflation / Outstanding  after Discount

Year of Provided See Discount Loss & Inflation / Factor
Birth By NICA Col. (7)  (2) X (3) ALAE (a) Discount (a)  (6) / (5)

---------- ---------- ---------- ----------  ---------- ---------- ----------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

1989 15,645,841     12,278,805   0.7848
1990 15,980,474     12,494,476   0.7819
1991 22,565,989     17,416,384   0.7718
1992 54,602,551     41,304,730   0.7565
1993 40,043,210     30,689,727   0.7664
1994 19,928,949     14,827,076   0.7440
1995 33,508,825     24,736,087   0.7382
1996 32,758,455     25,481,380   0.7779
1997 52,866,860     39,181,086   0.7411
1998 68,583,976     51,253,915   0.7473
1999 15,534,633     12,204,637   0.7856
2000 18,692,281     13,929,929   0.7452
2001 23,165,454     17,551,956   0.7577
2002 4,713,428       0.7540 3,553,762        70,337,033     53,031,687   0.7540
2003 1,839,600       0.7329 1,348,185        19,344,805     14,177,202   0.7329
2004 2,409,000       0.7164 1,725,849        34,662,903     24,833,095   0.7164
2005 4,661,415       0.7485 3,489,283        40,381,168     30,227,158   0.7485
2006 7,252,186       0.7196 5,218,613        59,666,782     42,935,722   0.7196
2007 2,330,982       0.7587 1,768,508        37,539,699     28,481,242   0.7587
2008 5,974,211       0.7015 4,191,175        64,344,963     45,140,861   0.7015
2009 9,561,978       0.7126 6,813,436        65,587,151     46,734,455   0.7126
2010 1,533,000       0.6761 1,036,537        40,455,213     27,353,765   0.6761
2011 11,702,814     0.6959 8,144,248        70,722,290     49,217,213   0.6959
2012 5,633,228       0.6791 3,825,316        54,177,017     36,789,598   0.6791
2013 4,551,368       0.7335 3,338,327        38,862,370     28,504,684   0.7335
2014 4,928,596       0.6863 3,382,712        54,953,334     37,716,885   0.6863
2015 14,993,288     0.6881 10,317,421      94,069,513     64,732,616   0.6881
2016 5,940,923       0.6824 4,054,180        34,548,158     23,576,211   0.6824
2017 9,189,788       0.6691 6,149,097        93,269,404     62,408,690   0.6691
2018 15,815,633     0.6562 10,377,430      122,657,963   80,482,038   0.6562
2019 9,773,423       0.6583 6,433,754        103,179,866   67,922,353   0.6583
2020 -                  0.6534 -                   117,224,414   76,593,520   0.6534
2021 -                  0.6629 -                   91,467,738     60,636,312   0.6629

Totals: 122,804,861   85,167,832      

Notes: (a) See NICA Report - December 31, 2021 - Section I, Exhibit I Columns (5) and (7)

Outstanding Family Care Loss & ALAE
 Excluding Unreported Loss & ALAE

 as of 12 31 21
 -----------------------------------------

Indicated Average Inflation

 as of 12 31 21
 / Discount Factors 

 ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐



FLORIDA BIRTH RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION Exhibit III
Sheet 4

CALCULATION OF THRESHOLD FOR SUSPENSION OF CLAIMS
(Section 766.314(9), Florida Statutes)

Indicated Amounts of Outstanding Loss & LAE  - After Inflation and Discount
From Reserve Report to Threshold Calculation

Adjustment of Family Care Reserves to Include Consideration of Inflation and Discount

Evaluated as of June 30, 2022

Reported Selected
Family 2021 Outstanding Indicated

Inflation / Care Level Loss & Average
Current Discount After Selected ALAE Inflation /
Level Factor Inflation / Outstanding  after Discount

Year of Provided See Discount Loss & Inflation / Factor
Birth By NICA Col. (7)  (2) X (3) ALAE (a) Discount (a)  (6) / (5)

---------- ---------- ---------- ----------  ---------- ---------- ----------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

1989 15,365,601     11,995,747   0.7807
1990 15,700,373     12,211,559   0.7778
1991 22,292,685     17,140,331   0.7689
1992 53,825,496     40,519,860   0.7528
1993 39,401,740     30,041,806   0.7624
1994 19,680,960     14,576,593   0.7406
1995 33,096,652     24,319,768   0.7348
1996 32,171,662     24,888,685   0.7736
1997 52,178,328     38,485,629   0.7376
1998 67,671,255     50,332,015   0.7438
1999 15,252,150     11,919,313   0.7815
2000 18,438,057     13,673,149   0.7416
2001 22,807,423     17,190,324   0.7537
2002 4,580,588       0.7500 3,435,406        69,262,517     51,946,366   0.7500
2003 1,786,650       0.7298 1,303,811        19,129,690     13,959,924   0.7298
2004 2,364,116       0.7134 1,686,667        34,315,609     24,482,310   0.7134
2005 4,533,761       0.7451 3,377,941        39,850,532     29,691,185   0.7451
2006 7,078,621       0.7164 5,071,213        59,020,786     42,283,230   0.7164
2007 2,250,942       0.7550 1,699,395        36,991,367     27,927,395   0.7550
2008 5,853,138       0.6985 4,088,400        63,715,591     44,505,160   0.6985
2009 9,382,259       0.7092 6,653,953        64,857,002     45,996,963   0.7092
2010 1,504,680       0.6734 1,013,247        40,124,509     27,019,735   0.6734
2011 11,472,046     0.6927 7,946,930        70,008,909     48,496,658   0.6927
2012 5,554,542       0.6761 3,755,434        53,696,596     36,304,346   0.6761
2013 4,469,918       0.7306 3,265,567        38,457,393     28,095,634   0.7306
2014 4,823,686       0.6839 3,298,956        54,542,873     37,302,296   0.6839
2015 14,747,239     0.6856 10,110,822      93,336,500     63,992,231   0.6856
2016 5,887,673       0.6726 3,959,826        42,644,037     28,680,765   0.6726
2017 9,790,451       0.6667 6,527,343        92,612,628     61,745,309   0.6667
2018 17,260,860     0.6514 11,244,555      122,956,802   80,099,980   0.6514
2019 11,772,923     0.6552 7,713,758        95,082,762     62,299,348   0.6552
2020 6,277,646       0.6562 4,119,256        97,229,321     63,799,778   0.6562
2021 -                  0.6563 -                   91,811,158     60,259,753   0.6563

2022 - 6 mo -                  0.6589 -                   53,524,645     35,269,248   0.6589

Totals: 131,391,739   90,272,481      

Notes: (a) See NICA Report - June 30, 2022 - Section I, Exhibit I Columns (5) and (7)

Outstanding Family Care Loss & ALAE Indicated Average Inflation
 Excluding Unreported Loss & ALAE  / Discount Factors 

 as of 6 30 22  as of 6 30 22
 -----------------------------------------  ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐



FLORIDA BIRTH RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION Exhibit III
Sheet 5

CALCULATION OF THRESHOLD FOR SUSPENSION OF CLAIMS
(Section 766.314(9), Florida Statutes)

Indicated Amounts of Outstanding Loss & LAE  - After Inflation and Discount
From Reserve Report to Threshold Calculation

Removal of "Unreported" Claims - Reported Family Care Still Included

Evaluated as of December 31, 2021
Indicated Indicated
Percent Outstanding

Estimated of O/S Loss & LAE
Estimated Outstanding Accepted After

Open Unreported Accepted Reported Removal of
Outstanding (a) Outstanding Accepted Accepted Claims as of Unreported
Loss & ALAE Loss & ULAE Claims Claims as of 12 31 21 Claims as

Year of Present Outstanding PV Basis as of as of 12 31 21 of 12 31 21
Birth Value  Basis ULAE (b) (2) + (3) 12 31 21 12 31 21  (5) + (6)  (5) / (7)  (4) X (8)

---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ----------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

1989 12,278,805        203,787       12,482,592        3 0 3 100.00% 12,482,592       
1990 12,494,476        207,366       12,701,843        3 0 3 100.00% 12,701,843       
1991 17,416,384        289,053       17,705,437        4 0 4 100.00% 17,705,437       
1992 41,304,730        685,520       41,990,250        9 0 9 100.00% 41,990,250       
1993 30,689,727        509,346       31,199,074        7 0 7 100.00% 31,199,074       
1994 14,827,076        246,080       15,073,156        3 0 3 100.00% 15,073,156       
1995 24,736,087        410,536       25,146,623        5 0 5 100.00% 25,146,623       
1996 25,481,380        422,905       25,904,286        6 0 6 100.00% 25,904,286       
1997 39,181,086        650,274       39,831,360        8 0 8 100.00% 39,831,360       
1998 51,253,915        850,643       52,104,557        11 0 11 100.00% 52,104,557       
1999 12,204,637        202,556       12,407,193        3 0 3 100.00% 12,407,193       
2000 13,929,929        231,190       14,161,119        3 0 3 100.00% 14,161,119       
2001 17,551,956        291,303       17,843,259        4 0 4 100.00% 17,843,259       
2002 53,031,687        880,148       53,911,835        12 0 12 100.00% 53,911,835       
2003 14,177,202        235,294       14,412,496        3 0 3 100.00% 14,412,496       
2004 24,833,095        412,146       25,245,241        5 0 5 100.00% 25,245,241       
2005 30,227,158        501,669       30,728,827        7 0 7 100.00% 30,728,827       
2006 42,935,722        712,589       43,648,311        9 0 9 100.00% 43,648,311       
2007 28,481,242        472,693       28,953,934        7 0 7 100.00% 28,953,934       
2008 45,140,861        749,187       45,890,048        9 0 9 100.00% 45,890,048       
2009 46,734,455        775,635       47,510,090        10 0 10 100.00% 47,510,090       
2010 27,353,765        453,981       27,807,746        5 0 5 100.00% 27,807,746       
2011 49,217,213        816,840       50,034,053        10 0 10 100.00% 50,034,053       
2012 36,789,598        610,584       37,400,181        7 0 7 100.00% 37,400,181       
2013 28,504,684        473,082       28,977,766        7 0 7 100.00% 28,977,766       
2014 37,716,885        625,973       38,342,858        8 0 8 100.00% 38,342,858       
2015 64,732,616        1,074,344    65,806,960        14 0 14 100.00% 65,806,960       
2016 23,576,211        391,286       23,967,497        5 0 5 100.00% 23,967,497       
2017 62,408,690        1,035,774    63,444,465        12 1 13 92.31% 58,564,121       
2018 80,482,038        1,335,731    81,817,769        14 2 16 87.50% 71,590,548       
2019 67,922,353        1,127,283    69,049,636        10 4 14 71.43% 49,321,168       
2020 76,593,520        1,271,195    77,864,715        7 8 15 46.67% 36,336,867       
2021 60,636,312        1,006,359    61,642,671        0 12 12 0.00% -                    

Totals: 1,214,845,497   20,162,351  1,235,007,848   230 27 257 1,097,001,297  

Notes: (a) See Exhibit I, Sheet 1, Col. (7) of the December 31, 2021 NICA loss and LAE reserve report.
            (b) See Exhibit I, Sheet 1, Item (11) of the December 31, 2021 NICA loss and LAE reserve report.

Excluding Deceased Claimants (DA & AAD)
  ----------------------------------------------------

Per Reserve Report  @ 12/31/21
---------------------------------------------------------

Reserve After Inflation and Discount



FLORIDA BIRTH RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION Exhibit III
Sheet 6

CALCULATION OF THRESHOLD FOR SUSPENSION OF CLAIMS
(Section 766.314(9), Florida Statutes)

Indicated Amounts of Outstanding Loss & LAE  - After Inflation and Discount
From Reserve Report to Threshold Calculation

Removal of "Unreported" Claims - Reported Family Care Still Included

Evaluated as of June 30, 2022
Indicated Indicated
Percent Outstanding

Estimated of O/S Loss & LAE
Estimated Outstanding Accepted After

Open Unreported Accepted Reported Removal of
Outstanding (a) Outstanding Accepted Accepted Claims as of Unreported
Loss & ALAE Loss & ULAE Claims Claims as of 6 30 22 Claims as

Year of Present Outstanding PV Basis as of as of 6 30 22 6 30 22
Birth Value  Basis ULAE (b) (2) + (3) 6 30 22 6 30 22  (5) + (6)  (5) / (7)  (4) X (7)

---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ----------
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

1989 11,995,747        198,012       12,193,759        3 0 3 100.00% 12,193,759       
1990 12,211,559        201,575       12,413,133        3 0 3 100.00% 12,413,133       
1991 17,140,331        282,933       17,423,265        4 0 4 100.00% 17,423,265       
1992 40,519,860        668,856       41,188,716        9 0 9 100.00% 41,188,716       
1993 30,041,806        495,896       30,537,702        7 0 7 100.00% 30,537,702       
1994 14,576,593        240,614       14,817,207        3 0 3 100.00% 14,817,207       
1995 24,319,768        401,443       24,721,211        5 0 5 100.00% 24,721,211       
1996 24,888,685        410,834       25,299,520        6 0 6 100.00% 25,299,520       
1997 38,485,629        635,277       39,120,906        8 0 8 100.00% 39,120,906       
1998 50,332,015        830,824       51,162,839        11 0 11 100.00% 51,162,839       
1999 11,919,313        196,751       12,116,064        3 0 3 100.00% 12,116,064       
2000 13,673,149        225,701       13,898,850        3 0 3 100.00% 13,898,850       
2001 17,190,324        283,758       17,474,082        4 0 4 100.00% 17,474,082       
2002 51,946,366        857,472       52,803,838        12 0 12 100.00% 52,803,838       
2003 13,959,924        230,435       14,190,359        3 0 3 100.00% 14,190,359       
2004 24,482,310        404,126       24,886,436        5 0 5 100.00% 24,886,436       
2005 29,691,185        490,108       30,181,294        7 0 7 100.00% 30,181,294       
2006 42,283,230        697,964       42,981,193        9 0 9 100.00% 42,981,193       
2007 27,927,395        460,994       28,388,389        7 0 7 100.00% 28,388,389       
2008 44,505,160        734,641       45,239,801        9 0 9 100.00% 45,239,801       
2009 45,996,963        759,266       46,756,229        10 0 10 100.00% 46,756,229       
2010 27,019,735        446,011       27,465,746        5 0 5 100.00% 27,465,746       
2011 48,496,658        800,528       49,297,185        10 0 10 100.00% 49,297,185       
2012 36,304,346        599,271       36,903,617        7 0 7 100.00% 36,903,617       
2013 28,095,634        463,771       28,559,405        7 0 7 100.00% 28,559,405       
2014 37,302,296        615,744       37,918,040        8 0 8 100.00% 37,918,040       
2015 63,992,231        1,056,311    65,048,543        14 0 14 100.00% 65,048,543       
2016 28,680,765        473,430       29,154,195        6 0 6 100.00% 29,154,195       
2017 61,745,309        1,019,222    62,764,531        12 1 13 92.31% 57,936,490       
2018 80,099,980        1,322,200    81,422,180        15 1 16 93.75% 76,333,293       
2019 62,299,348        1,028,367    63,327,715        10 3 13 76.92% 48,713,627       
2020 63,799,778        1,053,134    64,852,912        7 6 13 53.85% 34,920,799       
2021 60,259,753        994,700       61,254,453        1 11 12 8.33% 5,104,538         

2022 - 6 mo. 35,269,248        582,185       35,851,433        0 7 7 0.00% -                    

Totals: 1,221,452,395   20,162,351  1,241,614,746   233 29 262 1,095,150,269  

Notes: (a) See Exhibit I, Sheet 1, Col. (7) of the June 30, 2022 NICA loss and LAE reserve report.
            (b) See Exhibit I, Sheet 1, Item (11) of the June 30, 2022 NICA loss and LAE reserve report.

---------------------------------------------------------

Excluding Deceased Claimants (DA & AAD)
  ----------------------------------------------------

Reserve After Inflation and Discount
Per Reserve Report  @ 6 30 22



 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 11 (Tab J) 
 

June 30, 2022 Final Audited 
Financial Statements and Audit 

Report 



Financial Statements
and Other Financial Information

Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021
with Report of Independent Auditors



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Financial Statements
and Other Financial Information

Years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

Contents

Report of Independent Auditors................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................1

Management's Discussion and Analysis ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................5

Financial Statements

Statements of Net Position................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................8
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................9
Statements of Cash Flows................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................10
Notes to Financial Statements................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................11

Other Reports

Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................28

Other Financial Information

Schedule of General and Administrative Expenses................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................30



 

1 

Report of Independent Auditors 
 
Board of Directors 
Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury 
Compensation Association (NICA) which comprise the statements of net position as of June 30, 
2022 and 2021, the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and 
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of  NICA, as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the 
changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States 
(Government Auditing Standards). Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are required to be independent of NICA and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and 
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about NICA's 
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements 
are available to be issued. 
 



 
 
Page Two 
 
 

2 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the 
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. 

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NICA's internal control. Accordingly, no 
such opinion is expressed. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

 
 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 

aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about NICA's ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 
 



 
 
Page Three 
 
 

3 

Other Matters 
 
Financial Condition 
 
At June 30, 2022, NICA has a deficit net position of approximately $30.7 million.  As discussed 
in Note 8 to the financial statements, additional funding sources as well as monitoring actions are 
described. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 through 7 be presented to supplement the 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a 
part of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements 
in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with GAAS, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because 
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Management is responsible for the other financial information. The other information comprises 
the Schedule of General and Administrative Expenses but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not 
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 
 
In connection with our audits of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information 
and the financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material 
misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 
 



 
 
Page Four 
 
 

4 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 24, 2022 on our consideration of NICA's internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of NICA's internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering NICA's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 
 
 

 
 
 
Tallahassee, Florida 
October 24, 2022 



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

5 

Our discussion and analysis of the Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation 
Association’s (NICA) financial performance provides an overview of the Association’s financial 
activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.  Please read it in conjunction with NICA’s basic 
financial statements, which begin on page 8.  NICA was established by 766.315, Florida Statutes 
to administer the Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Plan (the Plan). The 
Plan was established pursuant to the Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Act, 
Chapter 88-1, Laws of Florida, beginning January 1, 1989, and was created for the purpose of 
providing limited recovery, irrespective of fault, for certain birth-related neurological injuries.  The 
Association and Plan referenced in the Florida Statutes are collectively known as NICA.   
 
In the prior fiscal year, the Florida Legislature passed Senate Bill 1786 (SB 1786) which made 
substantial changes to the NICA program including explicit changes to certain benefit obligations. 
The changes in benefits included increases in the parental award, death benefit and housing 
assistance, expansion of the transportation benefit and the addition of a mental health benefit for 
family members of NICA participants. The actuarial estimate of the present value of these benefits 
had been included in the prior year Claims Reserves. During the fiscal year ending, June 30, 2022, 
the Florida Legislature passed Senate Bill 768 (SB 768) which authorized payment of the increased 
Parental Award retroactively to parents of participants who were deceased prior to the passage of 
SB 1786.  
 
During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, NICA management refined the methodology used to 
prepare its estimates of accumulated reported claims which included the additional costs associated 
with SB 1786. In addition, an assumption that NICA will be covering, on a prospective basis, 
eligible expenses that have previously been covered by Medicaid was included in these estimates. 
As discussed below, the Medicaid change resulted in significant increases in NICA’s claim reserve 
liability.  
 
As of June 30, 2022, NICA’s total assets decreased by $354,568,456 (or -21%), primarily due to 
decreases in investments (see Table 1).  Investments decreased by $355,653,186 (or -21%) 
resulting primarily from investment holding losses which were offset by gains realized on proceeds 
from securities sold and investment income earned. Receivable for securities sold increased by 
$155,159 (or 4%) due to timing differences that occur when securities are traded by investment 
managers but are not scheduled to settle until after the end of the fiscal year.  
 
Total liabilities of NICA increased by $185,954,756 (or 16%) as of June 30, 2022, primarily due 
to an increase in claims reserve (see Table 1). Claims reserve increased by $185,000,000 (or 16%) 
primarily due to the change noted above regarding Medicaid as well as other revisions to the 
estimates of accumulated reported claims made by management and actuarial estimates of incurred 
but not reported (IBNR) claims for the current and prior birth years. The increase in payable for 
securities purchased of $733,977 (or 17%) is primarily due to timing differences that occur when 
securities are traded by the investment managers but are not scheduled to settle until after the end 
of the fiscal year.  
 
 
 
 



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued) 

6 

Table 1 – Net Position 
 
  2022  2021 
Investments  $  1,329,834,689  $  1,685,487,875 
Receivable for securities sold    4,140,980    3,985,821 
Other assets    10,942,244    10,012,673 
Total assets    1,344,917,913    1,699,486,369 
     
Claims reserves    1,369,500,000    1,184,500,000 
Payable for securities purchased    5,067,455    4,333,478 
Other liabilities    1,081,195    860,416 
Total liabilities   1,375,648,650    1,189,693,894 
     
Net investment in capital assets    2,589,514    2,734,139 
Restricted    (33,320,251)    507,058,336 
 
Total net position 

  
$  (30,730,737) 

  
$  509,792,475 

 
During the year, operating revenues from assessments increased by $ 4,031,396 (or 13%) due to 
an increase in physician assessments.  
 
Operating expenses increased by $68,550,409 (or 34%) primarily due to an increase in claims 
expenses (see Table 2). Compared to the prior fiscal year, claims expenses increased by 
$67,548,677 (or 35%). The higher claims expenses in the current fiscal year resulted primarily 
from increases in the revisions of the estimate of accumulated reported claims made by 
management as well as increases in the actuarial estimates of incurred but not reported (IBNR) 
claims for the current birth year which were offset by decreases in the actuarial estimates of IBNR 
claims for prior birth years.  
 
NICA recorded a net investment loss of $308,858,770 for the year ended June 30, 2022 (see     
Table 2). NICA’s net investment income was primarily comprised of unrealized losses of 
approximately $349.2 million which were offset by realized gains of $23.4 million, and interest 
and dividend income of approximately $20.8 million which were offset by investment 
management fees of approximately $3.9 million.   
 
The net effect of the increase in operating revenues and expenses and the recognition of investment 
losses was a decrease in net position of $ 540,523,212 (see Tables 1 and 2).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued) 

7 

Table 2 – Changes in Net Position 
 
  2022  2021 
Hospital assessments  $  3,249,950  $  3,175,050 
Physician assessments    32,580,533    28,624,037 
Total operating revenues    35,830,483    31,799,087 
     
Claims expenses    262,330,736    194,782,059 
Other operating expenses    5,164,189    4,162,457 
Total operating expenses    267,494,925   198,944,516 
     
Operating income (loss)    (231,664,442)   (167,145,429) 
     
Investment income and other income    (305,000,709)    254,082,247 
Investment fees    (3,858,061)    (3,706,519) 
Total Nonoperating revenues and expenses    (308,858,770)    250,375,728 
     

Change in net position  $  (540,523,212)  $  83,230,299 
 
During the ordinary course of business, NICA is involved in litigation.  In a lawsuit styled United 
States of America ex rel. Arven, et al. v. The Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury 
Compensation Association, et al., No. 19-CV-61053-WPD (S.D. Fla 2019), two relators 
(“Relators”) allege that NICA has violated the federal false claims act (“FCA”), 31 U.S.C. § 3729 
et seq., by treating itself as the “payor of last resort” vis-à-vis Medicaid.  In other words, where a 
NICA participant is enrolled in Medicaid and an expense is covered by both programs, NICA has 
historically taken the position that Medicaid, and not NICA, should pay for the expense. In 
Relators’ view, NICA is a “third party” under 42 U.S.C. § 1396a(a)(25)(A), and, therefore, should 
pay for expenses covered by Medicaid.  By failing to do so, the lawsuit alleges NICA has violated 
the FCA. Relators seek treble damages and penalties under the FCA’s statutory framework. NICA 
denies these allegations.  The United States filed a notice advising the court that it is not intervening 
in the case but will continue an investigation into the issues. Discussions continue with the United 
States regarding NICA’s alleged liability and changes to NICA’s treatment of Medicaid as a third 
party. (NICA has taken steps to change its process, which has impacted its loss and loss adjustment 
expenses. In addition, NICA continues to work with the Agency for Health Care Administration 
to address the issues raised during the last legislative session regarding NICA’s relationship with 
Medicaid.) 
 
NICA has several substantial defenses to the legal claims asserted.  NICA’s threshold defense that 
it is not subject to FCA liability as an arm of the state was denied by the District Court and affirmed 
on appeal. On August 22, 2022, NICA filed its Answer and Affirmative Defenses to Relators’ 
Amended Complaint.  Given the early stages of the district court litigation, the ultimate litigation 
outcome is uncertain.  Accordingly, no provision has been made in the financial statements for this 
contingency. 



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Statements of Net Position

June 30,
2022 2021

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 915,265 $ 605,717
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 44,891 76,705

Total current assets 960,156 682,422

Receivables for securities sold 4,140,980 3,985,821
Investment income receivable 4,865,824 4,361,512
Assessments receivable 2,526,750 2,234,600
Investments 1,329,834,689 1,685,487,875
Property and equipment, net 2,589,514 2,734,139
Total assets $ 1,344,917,913 $ 1,699,486,369

Liabilities and net position
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 503,795 $ 506,516
Accrued investment fees 577,400 353,900

Total current liabilities 1,081,195 860,416

Payable for securities purchased 5,067,455 4,333,478
Claims reserves 1,369,500,000 1,184,500,000
Total liabilities 1,375,648,650 1,189,693,894

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 2,589,514 2,734,139
Restricted (33,320,251) 507,058,336

Total net position (30,730,737) 509,792,475

Total liabilities and net position $ 1,344,917,913 $ 1,699,486,369

See accompanying notes.

8



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Years ended  June 30,
2022 2021

Changes in net position
Operating revenues:

Hospital assessments $ 3,249,950 $ 3,175,050
Physicians assessments 32,580,533 28,624,037

Total operating revenues 35,830,483 31,799,087

Operating expenses:
Claims incurred 262,330,736 194,782,059
General and administrative expenses 4,213,096 3,382,091
Depreciation and amortization 951,093 780,366

Total operating expenses 267,494,925 198,944,516

Operating loss (231,664,442) (167,145,429)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment (loss) income (305,000,709) 254,082,247
Investment fees (3,858,061) (3,706,519)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (308,858,770) 250,375,728

Change in net position (540,523,212) 83,230,299

Net position at beginning of year 509,792,475 426,562,176

Net position at end of year $ (30,730,737) $ 509,792,475

See accompanying notes.

     9



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30,
2022 2021

Operating activities
Cash received from hospitals and physicians $ 35,559,099 $ 31,675,137
Cash payments to claimants and vendors (77,322,889) (49,761,658)
Cash payments to service providers and suppliers (2,480,412) (1,772,271)
Cash payments to employees for service (1,268,481) (1,081,866)
Cash payments to employees for benefits (463,723) (454,605)
Net cash used in operating activities (45,976,406) (21,395,263)

Capital financing activities
Purchase of property and equipment (806,468) (862,783)
Net cash used in capital financing activities (806,468) (862,783)

Investing activities
Purchase of investments (698,688,146) (831,688,671)
Proceeds from sales of investments 728,020,330 838,655,083
Receivable from securities sold (155,158) 5,414,852
Payable for securities purchased 733,977 (4,689,568)
Interest and dividends from investments 20,817,045 18,608,227
Investment management fees (3,635,626) (3,707,320)
Net cash provided by investing activities 47,092,422 22,592,603

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 309,548 334,557
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 605,717 271,160
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 915,265 $ 605,717

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in
operating activities

Operating loss $ (231,664,442) $ (167,145,429)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used

in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 951,093 780,366
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Assessments receivable (271,384) (123,950)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 31,814 (7,616)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (23,487) 101,366
Claims reserves 185,000,000 145,000,000

Net cash used in operating activities $ (45,976,406) $ (21,395,263)

See accompanying notes.

10



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Notes to Financial Statements

Years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of the Business

The Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (the Association) was
established by Florida Statutes, Chapter 766.315, in July 1, 1988 to administer the Florida Birth-
Related Neurological Injury Compensation Plan (the Plan).  The Plan was established by the
Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Act (the Act), Chapter 88-1, Laws of
Florida for the purpose of providing limited recovery, irrespective of fault, for certain birth-
related neurological injuries beginning January 1, 1989.  The Association and Plan are
collectively known as NICA.

Initial funding for NICA was provided by hospital and physician assessments and a transfer of
$20 million from the Florida Department of Financial Service Insurance Regulatory Trust Fund.

If the hospital and physician assessments and the $20 million transfer from the Insurance
Regulatory Trust Fund are not sufficient to maintain NICA on an actuarially sound basis, an
additional $20 million is to be transferred from the Insurance Regulatory Trust Fund (Note 2).
Also, if these funds are still not sufficient to maintain NICA on an actuarially sound basis, the
Department of Financial Services, Office of Insurance Regulation may assess entities licensed in
Florida to issue casualty insurance based on a rate of no greater than .25% of net direct
premiums written.

In the event that management's estimate of the accumulated cost of reported claims (exclusive of
family residential or custodial care as defined in Section 766.302, Florida Statutes) equals 80%
of current funds, plus any additional funds available within 12 months, NICA shall not accept
new claims without express authority from the Legislature.  However, injuries occurring 18
months or more prior to the effective date of the suspension shall not be precluded.

Reporting Entity

Activities of NICA are reported in the state of Florida financial statements with other discretely
presented component units.

11



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of Accounting

NICA follows financial reporting requirements for enterprise funds, which use the accrual basis
of accounting.  Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recognized when they are incurred.

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the pronouncements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), including GASB Statement No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity, which defines NICA as a component unit of the state of Florida.

Assessments

An assessment of $250 per physician is required by Florida Statutes for all licensed physicians
in the state of Florida, subject to certain exclusions.  In addition, physicians have the option of
electing to participate in NICA.  Those physicians so electing are required to remit a total
assessment of $5,000. Certified nurse midwives who have paid 50% (or $2,500) of the
participating physician assessment and who are supervised by a participating physician may also
participate in NICA. Additionally, each hospital licensed under Chapter 395, Florida Statutes,
must pay NICA an assessment of $50 per live infant delivered at the hospital during the prior
calendar year, subject to certain exclusions.

Assessments are recognized at the time they are levied (annually) by NICA.  The amount of
physician and hospital assessments is subject to change based on the actuarial analysis of NICA.
Any increase in assessment is recommended by the Board of Directors, but must be approved by
the Office of Insurance Regulation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and interest bearing deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.  Investment purchases made
through the Office of the Treasurer, State of Florida, are considered to be investments.

Cash consists of demand deposits with financial institutions.  Deposits with financial institutions
are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per depositor.
Bank deposits at times may exceed federally insured limits.  NICA has not experienced any
losses in such accounts.

12



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)

Additionally, NICA maintains certain demand deposit accounts with qualified public
depositories.  Qualified public depositories of public funds are required to provide collateral
each month pursuant to Chapter 280.04, Florida Statutes.  The collateral is held by the Florida
Division of Treasury or other custodian with full legal rights maintained by the Florida Division
of Treasury to transfer ownership.  Any loss not covered by the pledged securities and deposit
insurance would be assessed by the Florida Division of Treasury and paid by the other public
depositories.  Therefore, any amount of NICA's demand deposits in excess of FDIC protection
would be fully insured or collateralized.

Assessments Receivable 

The management of NICA considers assessments receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly,
no allowance for doubtful accounts has been recorded.

Investments

Investments in debt and equity securities and futures are stated at fair value. Fair values are
based on quoted values in custodian statements and/or quoted market prices. NICA investments
made through the Office of the Treasurer, State of Florida, are included in the Florida Treasury
Investment Pool (SPIA), which is a pool of investments of which NICA owns a share of the
pool, not the underlying securities.  Pooled investment shares are reported at fair value. The
Auditor General, State of Florida, performs the operational audit of the activities and
investments of the Office of the Treasurer. A copy of SPIA's most recent financial statements
can be found at http://www.fltreasury.org/fs_01.html. Additionally, NICA invests in structured
settlement annuities for selected claimants.  These annuities are considered fixed income
investments and are reported at fair value based on present value of future annuity payments.
Florida Statutes and NICA's investment policy permit NICA to enter into securities lending
transactions.

The financial instruments exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of its cash,
cash equivalents, and investments. All investment transactions have credit exposure to the extent
that a counterparty may default on an obligation of NICA. Credit risk is a consequence of
carrying investment positions. To manage credit risk, NICA focuses primarily on higher quality,
fixed income securities, limits its exposure in any one investment, and monitors quality.

13



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation.  Property and
equipment is depreciated over its estimated useful lives ranging from three to fifteen years using
primarily the straight-line method.  The building is depreciated over forty years using the
straight-line method.  NICA’s policy is to capitalize asset acquisitions greater than $500.

Claims Reserves 

The liability for claims reserves is based on an actuarial determination and represents the
estimated ultimate net cost of all unpaid reported and unreported claims and claim adjustment
expenses. These liabilities are subject to the impact of future changes in claim severity and other
factors.  The unpaid claims and claim adjustment expense estimates are continually reviewed
and, as adjustments become necessary, such adjustments are reflected in current operations.  The
ultimate settlement of claims and claim adjustment expenses may vary significantly from the
actuarial estimates.

Net Position

The net position of NICA is restricted to carry out the public purpose of the program as provided
under the Act.

Revenue Recognition 

Operating revenues consist of hospital and physicians assessments and are recognized when
earned.  Nonoperating revenues consist of various forms of investment income.

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

14



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Subsequent Events 

NICA has evaluated subsequent events through October 24, 2022, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.  During the period from June 30, 2022 to October 24,
2022, NICA did not have any material recognizable subsequent events.

2. Appropriation - Office of Insurance Regulation

Pursuant to Florida Statutes, Section 766.314(5)(b), the sum of $20 million has been deposited
in the Insurance Regulatory Trust Fund.  The distribution of "up to $20 million" to NICA has
been authorized in the event that the assessments collected in accordance with Florida Statutes,
Section 766.314(4), and prior appropriations are not sufficient to maintain NICA on an
actuarially sound basis.  The entire $20 million is presently deposited in the Insurance
Regulatory Trust Fund and is not reported by NICA.

3. Investments

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under GASB 72 are described as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
a government can access at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for an
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

15



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Notes to Financial Statements

3. Investments (continued)

The following table set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, NICA’s assets at fair value
as of June 30, 2022.

Asset Type Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash sweep - short term

investment fund $ - $ - $ 17,457,132 $ 17,457,132
Equities 246,981,840 - - 246,981,840
Fixed income securities 62,477,475 316,288,680 - 378,766,155
Preferred securities 2,986,803 - - 2,986,803
Annuities - - 16,254,489 16,254,489
Futures Contracts (211,773) - - (211,773)

312,234,345 316,288,680 33,711,621 662,234,646
Other investments:
Pooled investment in Florida

State Treasury - - - 278,008
Pooled investments reported

at net asset value - - - 665,367,636
Foreign currency - - - 1,484,082
Other - - - 470,317
Total assets at fair value $ 312,234,345 $ 316,288,680 $ 33,711,621 $1,329,834,689

The following table set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, NICA’s assets at fair value
as of June 30, 2021.

Asset Type Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash sweep - short term

investment fund $ - $ - $ 33,668,167 $ 33,668,167
Equities 348,512,311 - - 348,512,311
Fixed income securities 64,998,814 382,466,139 - 447,464,953
Preferred securities 4,659,832 - - 4,659,832
Annuities - - 21,095,664 21,095,664
Futures Contracts 470,445 - - 470,445

418,641,402 382,466,139 54,763,831 855,871,372
Other investments:
Pooled investment in Florida

State Treasury - - - 283,184
Pooled investments reported

at net asset value - - - 829,262,035
Foreign currency - - - 454,310
Other - - - (383,026)
Total assets at fair value $ 418,641,402 $ 382,466,139 $ 54,763,831 $1,685,487,875

16



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Notes to Financial Statements

3. Investments (continued)

As of June 30, 2022, investments of NICA were as follows:

Types of Investments
Classifiable Investments: Fair Value

Effective
Duration
(in Years)

Annuities $ 16,254,489 n/a
Asset-backed securities 13,832,609 1.82
Corporate bonds 241,176,137 10.71
Federal Home Loan Mortgage 12,370,982 5.44
Federal National Mortgage Association 15,171,895 5.86
Futures contracts (211,773) n/a
Government National Mortgage Association 974,734 5.08
International government bonds 3,668,545 13.50
U.S. government bonds                        62,477,475 13.03
Collateralized mortgage obligations 18,179,623 3.08
Municipal bonds 10,914,155 6.34
U.S. debt 485,019,884 n/a
Pooled investment in Florida State Treasury 278,008 1.04
Equity securities 431,800,477 n/a
Total classifiable investments 1,311,907,240

Non-classifiable investments:
Cash sweep - short term investment fund 17,457,132
Other 470,317
Total non-classifiable investments 17,927,449

Total investments $1,329,834,689

17



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Notes to Financial Statements

3. Investments (continued)

As of June 30, 2021, investments of NICA were as follows:

Types of Investments
Classifiable Investments: Fair Value

Effective
Duration
(in Years)

Annuities $ 21,095,664 n/a
Asset-backed securities 10,993,601 1.98
Corporate bonds 298,232,146 11.80
Federal Home Loan Mortgage 15,115,319 2.04
Federal National Mortgage Association 17,590,359 1.90
Futures contracts 470,445 n/a
Government National Mortgage Association 1,482,100 3.48
International government bonds 5,896,199 17.40
U.S. government bonds 64,998,814 17.06
Collateralized mortgage obligations 20,412,282 5.43
Municipal bonds 12,744,133 7.47
U.S. debt 574,296,417 n/a
Pooled investment in Florida State Treasury 283,184 2.6
Equity securities 608,592,070 n/a
Total classifiable investments 1,652,202,733

Non-classifiable investments:
Cash sweep - short term investment fund 33,285,141
Other 383,026
Total non-classifiable investments 33,668,167

$1,685,870,900

Investments are diversified to minimize the risk of loss resulting from over compensation of
assets in a specific maturity period, a single issuer, or an individual class of securities.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligation.  To mitigate investment risk, investing is performed in accordance with investment
policies adopted by the Board of Directors complying with Section 215.47, Florida Statutes.
State statutes provide for investment of funds in a range of instruments, including federally
guaranteed obligations, other federal agency obligations, certain state bonds, commercial paper,
obligations of a Florida political subdivision as permitted by law, common stock, repurchase
agreements, and reverse repurchase agreements.

18



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Notes to Financial Statements

3. Investments (continued)

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, NICA will not
be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party.  Custody of NICA's investments is currently maintained in NICA's name by
Bank of New York Mellon pursuant to a custodial agreement.  Additional accounts are
maintained in NICA's name under separate agreements with BlackRock Institutional Trust
Company, N.A. and the Division of Treasury of the state of Florida.  Structured settlement
annuities are maintained under agreements with Talcott Resolution Life Insurance Company,
which has a Baa3 rating. 

Generally, investing activities are performed by investment managers hired by NICA to
implement established investment policies.

NICA's asset allocation policy is as follows:

Asset Class Permissible Range
Fixed Income 58 - 70%
Equity 31 - 37%
Cash 0 - 3%

Credit Quality Rating.  Section 215.47, Florida Statutes, and NICA's investment policy limits
investments based on ratings provided by nationally recognized statistical rating services.
Investments limited by ratings are as follows:

1. Commercial paper rated in the highest rating classification by one nationally recognized
rating agency.

2. Municipal securities rated in the top four highest rating by two nationally recognized
rating services.

3. Registered foreign bonds denominated in U.S. dollars rated in the top four rating
classifications by two nationally recognized rating services.

4. Asset-backed securities rated in the highest rating classification by one nationally
recognized rating service.

19



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Notes to Financial Statements

3. Investments (continued)

Quality
Rating

Debt Security Type Moody's Fair Value
Asset-backed Aaa $ 6,101,484
Asset-backed NR 7,731,125
Collateralized mortgage obligation Aaa 15,175,281
Collateralized mortgage obligation NR 3,004,342
Corporate bonds A1 13,915,225
Corporate bonds A2 27,173,827
Corporate bonds A3 29,010,654
Corporate bonds Aa1 233,369
Corporate bonds Aa2 1,738,565
Corporate bonds Aa3 9,666,943
Corporate bonds Aaa 3,227,239
Corporate bonds Ba1 7,656,612
Corporate bonds Baa1 49,286,827
Corporate bonds Baa2 56,603,887
Corporate bonds Baa3 38,246,457
Corporate bonds NR 4,416,532
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Aaa 12,370,982
Federal National Mortgage Association Aaa 15,171,895
Futures contracts NR (211,773)
Government National Mortgage Association Aaa 974,734
International Government Bonds Baa1 3,668,545
Municipal bonds A1 108,594
Municipal bonds A3 2,238,699
Municipal bonds Aa1 1,724,679
Municipal bonds Aa2 2,544,914
Municipal bonds Aa3 657,772
Municipal bonds Aaa 1,148,799
Municipal bonds Baa2 379,818
Municipal bonds NR 2,110,880
U.S. Debt NR 485,019,884
U.S. Government Bond Aaa 62,477,475

$ 863,574,266

Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of NICA's investment
in a single issuer.  NICA assets are expected to be diversified across and within asset classes.
However, NICA does not specify a limit on the amount that may be invested in any one issuer. 

20



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Notes to Financial Statements

3. Investments (continued)

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment.  Investments that are held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of
adverse interest rate changes.  For reporting purposes, NICA selects effective duration to
disclose the portfolio's exposure to changes in interest rates.  Duration is a measure of a fixed
income's cash flows using present values, weighted for cash flow as a percentage of the
investment's full price.  Effective duration makes assumptions regarding the most likely timing
and amounts of variable cash flows arising from such investments as callable bonds,
prepayments, and variable rate debt.

NICA is invested in collateralized mortgage obligations. These securities and obligations are
based on cash flows from payments on underlying mortgages. Therefore, they are sensitive to
prepayments by mortgagees, which may result from a decline in interest rates. 

Foreign Currency Risk is the risk that changes in the exchange rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment.  NICA's investment policy permits it to invest up to 18 percent of
total investments in international equities.  At June 30, 2022, NICA's exposure to possible
foreign currency risk by monetary unit is as follows:

Investment Type Currency Type Maturity Fair Value
Currency Australian Dollar n/a $ 928

Brazil Real n/a 3
Canadian Dollar n/a 170,698
Czech Koruna n/a 311
Euro Currency Unit n/a 13,271
Hong Kong Dollar n/a 302,797
Hungarian Forint n/a 736
Indonesian Rupiah n/a 12,271
Israeli Skekel n/a 1,042
Japanese Yen n/a 71,912
Mexican Peso n/a 935
New Taiwan Dollar n/a 137,381
Polish Zloty n/a 821
Pound Sterling n/a 619,134
Singapore Dollar n/a 980
South African Rand n/a 8
South Korean Won n/a 90,512
Swedish Krona n/a 59,974
Swiss Franc n/a 75
Turkish Lira n/a 293

(continued)

21



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Notes to Financial Statements

3. Investments (continued)

Investment Type Currency Type Maturity Fair Value
Common stock Australian Dollar n/a 5,955,939

Brazil Real n/a 1,796,315
Canadian Dollar n/a 7,645,654
Chinese Yuan Renminbi n/a 4,270,100
Danish Krone n/a 562,753
Euro Currency Unit n/a 36,665,577
Hong Kong Dollar n/a 21,687,613
Hungarian Forint n/a 266,511
Indonesian Rupiah n/a 459,501
Israeli Shekel n/a 104,685
Japanese Yen n/a 37,733,890
Malaysian Ringgit n/a 139,710
Mexican Peso n/a 1,724,324
New Taiwan Dollar n/a 5,508,695
New Zealand Dollar n/a 21,675
Norwegian Krone n/a 1,796,850
Polish Zloty n/a 323,502
Pound Sterling n/a 22,937,849
Singapore Dollar n/a 4,274,190
South African Rand n/a 1,631,264
South Korean Won n/a 5,775,141
Swedish Krona n/a 10,128,835
Swiss Franc n/a 8,409,057
Thailand Baht n/a 895,236
Turkish Lira n/a 61,208

Preferred securities Brazil Real n/a 363,051
Euro Currency Unit n/a 2,623,752

$ 185,246,959

Pooled investments with the State Treasury and investments measured at net asset value are not
subject to fair value hierarchy level classification under GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value
Measurement and Application.

22



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Notes to Financial Statements

4. Property and Equipment

Activity within the property and equipment accounts consists of the following for the year ended
June 30, 2022:

Beginning
Balances Additions Deletions

Ending
Balances

Land $ 209,088 $ - $ - $ 209,088
Building 320,585 - - 320,585
Building improvements 88,411 - - 88,411
Property and equipment 258,017 36,283 (7,403) 286,897
Software 4,174,719 718,319 - 4,893,038
Software in development - 51,941 - 51,941

5,050,820 806,543 (7,403) 5,849,960
Less accumulated depreciation

and amortization (2,316,681) (951,093) 7,328 (3,260,446)
$ 2,734,139 $ (144,550) $ (75) $ 2,589,514

Activity within the property and equipment accounts consists of the following for the year ended
June 30, 2021:

Beginning
Balances Additions Deletions

Ending
Balances

Land $ 209,088 $ - $ - $ 209,088
Building 320,585 - - 320,585
Building improvements 88,411 - - 88,411
Property and equipment 303,087 16,330 (61,400) 258,017
Software 3,328,268 846,451 - 4,174,719

4,249,439 862,781 (61,400) 5,050,820
Less accumulated depreciation

and amortization (1,597,715) (780,366) 61,400 (2,316,681)
$ 2,651,724 $ 82,415 $ - $ 2,734,139

Depreciation and amortization expense was $951,093 and $780,366 for the years ended June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively.

23



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Notes to Financial Statements

5. Claims Reserves  

Claims reserves are provided in amounts estimated to cover the custodial and rehabilitative costs
resulting from certain birth-related neurological injuries of claimants of participating physicians
and include an estimate of accumulated reported claims and claims incurred but not reported.
The claim reserve is actuarially determined for birth years 1989 through June 30, 2022.  The
reserves utilize adjustment factors for the assumption of the annual investment return and the
annual inflation rate.

A class action settlement agreement was entered into in September 2012, which was approved
pursuant to a November 26, 2012 Final Judgment and Order by the Florida Circuit Court. The
settlement terms may impact benefits payable to all parents or guardians of a child born with a
“birth-related neurological injury” in the state of Florida during the time period of January 1,
1989 through June 6, 2002, who obtained a final order which imposed on NICA the “continuing
obligation under provisions of Section 766.31, Florida Statutes, to pay future expenses as
incurred.”  The settlement agreement had both retrospective and prospective components.  

Medical liability claims are volatile by nature.  Although management of NICA believes that the
estimate of the liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses is reasonable in the
circumstances, uncertainty exists as to the ultimate amount that will be required for the payment
of losses and claims.  Due to the timeframe associated with the emergence of claims, the most
recent two years' estimates have greater uncertainty.  Accordingly, the ultimate closure of losses
and the related loss adjustment expenses may vary significantly from the estimated amounts
included in the accompanying financial statements.

In prior years, NICA maintained a reinsurance program which addressed both the frequency and
severity of claims.  Excess insurance coverage for NICA expired effective December 31, 2003.
During 2007, NICA invested in structured settlement annuities for selected claimants to fund a
portion of its future obligations.  The purpose of the annuities is to protect NICA against the
financial effects of super longevity and to reduce the mortality risk on certain claims, which is
statutorily borne by NICA. NICA has also adjusted claim reserves to provide for a risk margin in
the event claims incurred but not yet reported significantly exceed management's best estimate.
The risk margin was approximately $75.5 million as of June 30, 2022.

24



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Notes to Financial Statements

5. Claims Reserves (continued)

Activity in the liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses is summarized as
follows:

June 30,
2022 2021

Balance at beginning of year, including risk
margin $ 1,184,500,000 $ 1,039,500,000

Claims incurred related to:
Current birth year 70,538,496 55,788,432
Prior birth years 3,865,461 56,432,250

Total claims incurred 74,403,957 112,220,682

Claims adjusted related to prior birth years 182,636,459 81,999,733
Claims paid related to:

Prior years (77,330,735) (49,782,059)
Total claims paid (77,330,735) (49,782,059)

Change in unallocated loss adjustment expense 5,290,319 561,644
Balance at end of year $ 1,369,500,000 $ 1,184,500,000

6. Retirement Plan

Effective July 1, 2003, NICA established a defined contribution retirement plan, in the form of a
401(k) plan, which covers substantially all full time employees with at least one year of service. 
Contributions are accrued and funded on a current basis.  NICA contributed 15% of the
participating employees' salaries for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.  The
contribution was $147,653 and $162,107 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

7. Commitments and Contingencies

During the ordinary course of business, NICA is involved in litigation.  In a lawsuit styled
United States of America ex rel. Arven, et al. v. The Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury
Compensation Association, et al., No. 19-CV-61053-WPD (S.D. Fla 2019), two relators
(Relators) allege that NICA has violated the federal false claims act (FCA), 31 U.S.C. § 3729 et
seq., by treating itself as the “payor of last resort” vis-à-vis Medicaid.  In other words, where a
NICA participant is enrolled in Medicaid and an expense is covered by both programs, NICA
has historically taken the position that Medicaid, and not NICA, should pay for the expense. In
Relators’ view, NICA is a “third party” under 42 U.S.C. § 1396a(a)(25)(A), and, therefore,
should pay for expenses covered by Medicaid.  By failing to do so, the lawsuit alleges NICA has
violated the FCA. Relators seek treble damages and penalties under the FCA’s statutory
framework. NICA denies these allegations.  The United States filed a notice advising the court
that it is not intervening in the case but will continue an investigation into the issues. Discussions

25



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Notes to Financial Statements

7. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

continue with the United States regarding NICA’s alleged liability and changes to NICA’s
treatment of Medicaid as a third party. (NICA has taken steps to change its process, which has
impacted its loss and loss adjustment expenses. In addition, NICA continues to work with the
Agency for Health Care Administration to address the issues raised during the last legislative
session regarding NICA’s relationship with Medicaid.)

NICA has several substantial defenses to the legal claims asserted.  NICA’s threshold defense
that it is not subject to FCA liability as an arm of the state was denied by the District Court and
affirmed on appeal. On August 22, 2022, NICA filed its Answer and Affirmative Defenses to
Relators’ Amended Complaint.  Given the early stages of the district court litigation, the ultimate
litigation outcome is uncertain.  Accordingly, no provision has been made in the financial
statements for this contingency.

8. Financial Condition

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, inflation and abrupt tightening of fiscal policy,
along with war continuing to disrupt energy and food supplies, led to both stock and bond
market declines. As a result, NICA reported losses on investments of $305 million which were
comprised of unrealized losses of approximately $349.2 million which were offset by realized
gains of $23.4 million, and interest and dividend income of approximately $20.8 million. 

In the prior fiscal year, the Florida Legislature passed Senate Bill 1786 (SB 1786) which made
substantial changes to the NICA program including explicit changes to certain benefit
obligations. The actuarial estimate of the present value of these benefits had been included in the
prior year claims reserve liability. In addition to the explicit benefit modifications, SB 1786
included a requirement for review by the Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA) of the
interaction between NICA and Medicaid. Additionally, separate pending litigation alleges that
NICA should pay for expenses covered by Medicaid. During the fiscal year ending June 30,
2022, NICA revised its estimates of accumulated reported claims to include the assumption that
NICA would be covering, on a prospective basis, eligible expenses that had previously been
covered by Medicaid. This change resulted in significant increases in NICA’s claims reserve
liability. NICA continues to work with AHCA to address the issues raised during the last
legislative session regarding NICA’s relationship with Medicaid.

26



Florida Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Notes to Financial Statements

8. Financial Condition (continued)

The combined effects of the investment losses and increases in claims reserve liabilities resulted
in deficit ending net position at June 30, 2022 of ($30.7) million. The impact of adverse
investment activity and increased claims liabilities is mitigated by the following:

 As disclosed in Note 2, Florida Statutes, Section 766.314(5)(b) provides for a distribution

of “up to $20 million” from the Insurance Regulatory Trust Fund in order to maintain

NICA on an actuarially sound basis. 

 The Office of Insurance Regulation may assess certain entities licensed in Florida to issue

casualty insurance based on a rate no greater than .25% of net direct premiums written.

 NICA’s claims payments are made over many decades into the future.

 Section 766.314(9)(c), Florida Statutes, outlines a minimum funding level that NICA

must meet to continue accepting claims. This threshold calculation compares eighty

percent of the funds on hand and funds that are expected to become available within the

next 12 months to the present value of all filed claims (exclusive of family residential or

custodial care as defined in Section 766.302, Florida Statutes). At June 30, 2022, NICA

exceeded this minimum funding level by approximately $182 million.

 NICA, with the assistance of its outside investment consultants, completes an asset

allocation review and study approximately every two years. Revisions to the investment

policy are made as necessary to satisfy the primary goal of earning sufficient investment

return to ensure payment of all current and future liabilities. Actual investment results are

monitored closely by NICA, its outside consultants and the Board of Directors.

 NICA’s claims reserve liability includes a risk margin reserve of $75.5 million at June 30,

2022.

 NICA continues to monitor its actuarial position and investment structure closely.

27



Other Reports 



 

28 

Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and 
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
 
Board of Directors  
Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of 
Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA), which comprise the 
statement of net position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, 
and changes in net position and cash flows for the year ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 24, 2022.   
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered NICA’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NICA’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of NICA’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
 



 
 
Page Two 
 
 

29 

Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether NICA’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 

 
 
 
Tallahassee, Florida 
October 24, 2022 



Other Financial Information 



Variance - 

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Accounting services 84,000$       86,456$           (2,456)$          

Bank charges 4,100           386                  3,714             

Dues and subscriptions 5,185           4,294               891                

Insurance 302,000       287,319           14,681           

Legal - general attorney fees and expenses 511,000       827,649           (316,649)        

Legal - other expenses 68,800         73,848             (5,048)            

Miscellaneous 800              22                    778                

Office supplies 8,850           8,069               781                

Outreach 62,750         59,113             3,637             

Payroll taxes 90,650         96,409             (5,759)            

Postage 64,000         82,525             (18,525)          

Printing services 47,400         43,452             3,948             

Professional fees 726,055       1,089,177        (363,122)        

Repairs and maintenance 111,250       130,951           (19,701)          

Rent 111,720       111,999           (279)               

Retirement 150,000       147,653           2,347             

Salaries 1,225,000    1,122,544        102,456         

Taxes and licenses 1,145           873                  272                

Telephone 18,900         23,585             (4,685)            

Training and education 3,000           1,385               1,615             

Travel 13,700         1,141               12,559           

Utilities 11,500         14,246             (2,746)            

3,621,805$  4,213,096$      (591,291)$      

See report of independent auditors.

Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association

Schedule of General and Administrative Expenses 

Budget to Actual

Year ended June 30, 2022

30


	Agenda 12-01-2022
	Tab A-Minutes 08-25-2022-Agenda Item #2.A.
	Tab B-Minutes 11-08-2022-Agenda Item #2.B.
	Tab C-Performance Review-Agenda Item #7.A.
	Tab D-Asset Allocation-Agenda Item #7.B.
	Tab E-Fee Analysis-Agenda Item #7.C.
	Tab F-Reserve Review-Agenda Item #8
	Tab G-Cash Flow-Agenda Item #9
	Tab H-June 30 2022 Actuarial-Agenda Item #10.A.
	Tab I-Threshold Calculations-Agenda Item #10.B
	Tab J-Non Board-Audited Financials-Agenda Item #11



